
 
 

 

 To: George Wyatt, Convener; Craig Adams, Vice Convener;  Gerard Rattray 
(Representative of Holders of Premises Licences/Personal Licences); Inspector 
John Soutar (Grampian Police); Sandy Kelman (Alcohol and Drugs Partnership); 
David Wright, (Education); Kay Dunn (Children’s Services); Linda Smith (Health); 
Heather Manning (Samaritans); Garry Burnett, Michelle Wall, and Mike Saint 
(Community Safety);  Mary Crawford, Allan McIntosh, Ken Eddie, Councillor 
Martin Greig (Representatives of Residents within the Forum’s Area); Barry Black 
and Callum Martin (Representative of Youth) and Diane Sande (Licensing 
Standards Officer).  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 07 February 2013 

 
 

LOCAL LICENSING FORUM 
 

 The Members of the LOCAL LICENSING FORUM are requested to meet in 
Committee Room 4 - Town House on WEDNESDAY, 13 FEBRUARY 2013 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  

 
 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

 GENERAL 
 

 1.1  Minute of the Previous Meeting of 15 November 2012 - Ratification of 
Decisions Required as this Meeting was not Quorate  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 1.2  Minute of the Meetings of the Sub Group of the Forum - 13 December 
2012 and 31 January 2013  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 1.3  Agenda and Minute of Licensing Board Meeting of 11 December 2012   
  The agenda for this meeting can be found at: 

 
http://councilcommittees/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=2747&Ver=
4   
 

 1.4  Workplan/Decision Sheet  (Pages 15 - 20) 
 

 1.5  Further Options for Alcohol Licensing - Consultation Document  (Pages 21 
- 82) 

  Please note that this document is over 60 pages long, and only print if you 
want to.  You can also access the document at the following web link:- 
 
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2012/12/8130   
 

 1.6  Evaluation of the Implementation of the Objectives of the Licensing 
(Scotland) Act 2005 - for information  (Pages 83 - 106) 
 

 1.7  Member from Civic Forum - Mary Crawford   
 

 INTELLIGENCE (TO INFORM THE WORKING GROUP OF THE LICENSING 
FORUM) 

 

 LICENSING OBJECTIVE 1:  PREVENTING CRIME AND DISORDER 
 

 2.1  Update from Grampian Police Representative   
 

 LICENSING OBJECTIVE 2:  SECURING PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

 2.2  Update from Licensing Standards Officer and Councillor Martin Greig   
 

 LICENSING OBJECTIVE 3:  PREVENTING PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 

 2.3  Update from Unight Representative   
 

 LICENSING OBJECTIVE 4:  PROTECTING AND IMPROVING PUBLIC HEALTH 
 

 2.4  Update from Linda Smith, Public Health NHS Grampian, and Sandy 
Kelman (Alcohol and Drug Partnership)   
 

 LICENSING OBJECTIVE 5:  PROTECTING CHILDREN FROM HARM 
 



 
 
 

 2.5  Update from Kay Dunn, Children's Services Representatives   
 

 MATTERS ARISING 
 

 3.1  Any Other Competent Business   
 

 3.2  Date of Next Meeting - 24 April 2013   
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey 
McBain on 01224 522123 or email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

LOCAL LICENSING FORUM 
 
 

Thursday, 15 November 2012 
 
Present: Craig Adams, Ken Eddie, Gerard Rattray, Heather Manning, Mairi 

MacLeod, Sergeant Barry Skinner, Fraser Hoggin, Linda Smith and 
David Wright. 

 
Also Present: Heather Wilson, ADP/Public Health and Lynsey McBain, Clerk to 

the Forum. 
 
Apologies: Sandy Kelman, JP McGivney, Garry Burnett, Councillor Martin 

Greig, Barry Black, Allan McIntosh and Diane Sande. 
 

 
 
As the meeting was not quorate as per the constitution, the Forum were advised 
that any decisions made would be deferred to the next meeting for approval. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF CONVENER 
 
1. Due to the absence of the Convener, the Vice Convener took to the chair for the 
meeting. 
 
 
NON ATTENDANCE 
 
2. The Forum noted that this was the third consecutive meeting that Allan McIntosh 
had been absent from and had not sent a representative.  Members discussed his 
future on the Forum and agreed that the clerk write out to Mr McIntosh to advise him of 
the situation and to emphasise the importance of attending future Forum meetings. As 
the Forum was unable to make any decisions today, the position would be assessed at 
the next meeting. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 6 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
3. The Forum had before it the minute of the previous meeting of 6 September, 
2012. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to agree the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
AGENDA AND MINUTE OF LICENSING BOARD MEETING  
 
4. With reference to article 4 of the minute of the previous meeting, the Forum had 
before it, the minute of the Licensing Board of 21 August 2012, for information. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the minute. 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



2 
 
 
WORKPLAN/DECISION SHEET 
 
5. With reference to article 5 of the minute of the previous meeting, the Forum had 
before it an updated workplan. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the workplan. 
 
 
RESPONSE FROM LICENSING BOARD 
 
6. The Forum had before it, a copy of the response letter received from the 
Licensing Board, following requests put forward to the Licensing Board from the Forum 
after the last meeting. 
 
The first point put to the Licensing Board was that the Licensing Board set up a sub-
group involving members of the Licensing Board and Forum in order to explore 
intelligence/data that is required to assist the Licensing Board in preparation for its work 
on drafting the updated Licensing Board Policy due to be published in November 2013. 
In response the Board had agreed that a sub-group be set up to consider what relevant 
evidence can be provided to the Board in order for Members to assess and decide 
upon policy, and that four members would be at the first meeting to listen to 
suggestions on how the process can best be achieved.  It concluded that its members 
should not involve themselves in the operational side of the process. 
 
Secondly, the Licensing Forum requested that the Licensing Board formally 
acknowledge the recently refreshed publication of the Aberdeen City ADP Alcohol 
Strategy and endorse that they are in agreement with its aims and objectives.  In 
response the Board acknowledged the Aberdeen City ADP Alcohol Strategy and 
supported its aims and objectives. 
 
Thirdly the Licensing Forum requested that the Licensing Board formally acknowledged 
the results from the recently published Aberdeen City Voice questionnaire 26 (Alcohol 
purchase and promotion) and agree that the information should be considered as part 
of the intelligence/data which will help to inform it in the work it will do in preparing for 
the drafting of the updated Licensing Board Policy.  In response the Board advised that 
they acknowledged the above statement and agreed that its results would contribute to 
the information to be assessed in preparation of the Policy. 
 
Finally, The Licensing Forum requested that the Licensing Board arranged for a 
statistical mapping exercise to be carried out on (a) off sales and (b) on sales, across 
Aberdeen City.  The mapping of the off-sales should detail the location of the premise 
and total square area of ‘shelf space’ used at each location for the purposes of selling 
alcohol.  The Licensing Forum considers that the collation of this statistical data would 
prove extremely useful in relation to work needed to be done in preparation for the new 
policy statement, especially around the section on overprovision.  In response the 
Board acknowledged that statistical data was important especially when assessing 
overprovision and noted that this matter could be one of the items discussed at the first 
meeting of the sub-group. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
(i) to request that the Clerk of the Forum contact the Clerk to the Licensing Board to 

obtain the names of the four members attending the sub-group; and 
Page 2



3 
 
 
(ii) to request that the Clerk set up the first meeting of the sub-group, preferably 

before the end of 2012, and to advise members in due course. 
 
 
ALCOHOL FOCUS SCOTLAND 
 
7. The Forum had before it for information, a copy of the Licensing Resource 
Toolkit from Alcohol Focus Scotland based on Using Evidence to Support Policy and 
Decision Making. 
 
The document advised that this was the second part of a toolkit which Alcohol Focus 
Scotland was developing to provide more guidance on public health and licensing and 
to build on the report launched year named Rethinking Alcohol Licensing. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY TIMELINE 
 
8. The Forum had before it for information, a copy of the statement of Licensing 
Policy which outlined the timeline. 
 
The paper advised that Scottish Licensing law required that every Licensing Board 
publish a policy every three years setting out how it would seek to promote the five 
licensing objectives.  The new policy is due in November 2013. 
 
The paper set out timelines as guidance. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the information.  
 
 
DATES FOR 2013 
 
9. The Forum had before it the dates for the future meetings to be held in 2013 for 
approval, which would all commence at 2pm. 
 
The dates were noted as:- 
 
• Wednesday 13 February 
• Wednesday 24 April 
• Wednesday 19 June 
• Wednesday 11 September 
• Wednesday 20 November 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to approve the dates for 2013. 
 

Page 3



4 
 
 
LICENSING OBJECTIVE 1:  PREVENTING CRIME AND DISORDER 
 
10. The Forum heard from Sergeant Barry Skinner, Grampian Police in relation to 
Licensing Objective 1, Preventing Crime and Disorder. 
 
Sergeant Skinner advised that in relation to offences and trends, the amount of serious 
assaults in the city centre had reduced over the past five years, with 30 recorded in 
2007 and 14 in 2012.  In relation to serious assaults within licensed premises, it was 
noted that in August 2012, there were 25 recorded, and in both September and October 
the recorded assaults were 35. 
 
Members questioned why there was an increase during September and October, and 
discussed the student population arriving in Aberdeen during these months.    In 
particular, members discussed Fresher’s Week, which draws lots of students to the city 
centre. 
 
Fraser Hoggin explained that he had liaised with Aberdeen University about alcohol 
misuse amongst students, to see what they could do in future to help with the number 
of internal issues etc. 
 
Sergeant Skinner explained that social media messages were often used to get 
messages regarding sensible alcohol use across to students..  He also noted that it was 
vital to change the mindset with students for Fresher’s Week and beyond. 
 
Fraser Hoggin added that the Alcohol and Drug Partnership was currently trying to 
engage with the local universities and colleges, and had asked them to look at statistics 
around Counselling Services, in relation to alcohol issues. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
(i) to request that Fraser Hoggin continue to liaise with the local universities and 

Aberdeen College and to feedback to the Forum with any information, including 
any data received in relation to the Counselling Service; 

(ii) to request that this item be added to the June 2013 agenda for discussion, notably 
before Fresher’s Week in September; 

(iii) to request that the Forum delegate the task of looking at (1) spikes in trends with 
alcohol and (2) events such as Halloween, mad Friday and St Patrick’s day, to the 
Sub Group of the Forum, and to feed any information back to the Licensing Board; 
and 

(iv) to otherwise note the information provided.  
 
 
LICENSING OBJECTIVE 2:  SECURING PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
11. The Forum had before it a tabled update from Diane Sande, Licensing 
Standards Officer in relation to Licensing Objective 2, Securing Public Safety. 
 
The update advised that since the September meeting of the Forum (a) there had been 
no Notices Issued, (b) 20 visits had taken place since the last meeting to a variety of 
premises, (c) there had been several meetings with premises managers and or licence 
holders to discuss complaints, promotions or general advice relating to signage, staff 
training and policies within licensed premises, (d) there had been Review Hearings for 
four premises on 2 and 9 October, (e) outstanding payment of annual fees was a 
current issue and there would be Review Hearings for all premises which had failed to 

Page 4



5 
 
 
pay on time, (f) Licensing Standards Officers (LSO’s) continued to meet on a monthly 
basis with the police and weekly with the Noise Pollution Team and (g) a conference 
named Big Review Glasgow was being held on 30 November 2012, which would be 
attended by LSO’s. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the tabled update. 
 
 
LICENSING OBJECTIVE 3:  PREVENTING PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
12. The Forum had before it a tabled update from Ruary Campbell, Unight, in 
relation to Licensing Objective 3, Preventing Public Nuisance. 
 
The update advised that (a) Unight currently a membership of 21 Venues, (b) Nox, 
Institute and Garage/Campus had all been invited to sign up and attend the November 
meeting, with Garage/Campus accepting the offer, (c) the offender database had 25 
active profiles for various incidents across the city and a new system was being looked 
at in conjunction with Safer Aberdeen and (d) the Unight Christmas Campaigns would 
be finalised at the November meeting which would likely include a “Designated Driver 
Scheme”, and “Free Cloakroom for Handbags” to combat increasing levels of theft in 
venues. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
to note the tabled update. 
 
 
LICENSING OBJECTIVE 4:  PROTECTING AND IMPROVING PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
13. The Forum heard from Linda Smith, NHS Grampian who advised that NHS 
Grampian was now a statutory consultee for new licenses being issued and for major 
variations to existing licenses. 
 
Linda explained that they could provide postcode information on admissions relating to 
alcohol abuse, however noted that it was very difficult to determine where the alcohol 
had been bought from.  As a result it was very difficult for them to comment on new 
licensing applications. 
 
The Forum resolved:- 
(i) to request that the subject of over provision with alcohol be discussed at the first 

meeting of the sub group with members of the Licensing Board; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the update provided. 
 
 
LICENSING OBJECTIVE 5:  PROTECTING CHILDREN FROM HARM 
 
14. Mairi MacLeod, Children’s Services, Aberdeen City Council, was not present at 
this point to provide an update. 

Page 5



6 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
15. The Forum noted that the date of the next meeting was Wednesday 13 February 
at 2pm. 
 - Craig Adams, Vice Convener 

Page 6



LO
CA

L L
IC

EN
SIN

G 
FO

RU
M 

SU
B-

GR
OU

P –
 13

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20

12
 

 
Pr

es
en

t:- 
 

 
Ga

rry
 Bu

rne
tt, 

Gr
am

pia
n F

ire
 an

d R
es

cu
e S

erv
ice

 (C
ha

ir) 
 

 
Ins

pe
cto

r J
oh

n S
ou

tar
, G

ram
pia

n P
oli

ce
 

 
 

Dia
ne

 Sa
nd

e, 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il (

Lic
en

sin
g S

tan
da

rds
 O

ffic
er)

 
 

 
Sa

nd
y K

elm
an

, A
lco

ho
l a

nd
 D

rug
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

 
 

Ma
iri 

Ma
cL

eo
d, 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il (
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 
 

 
Ke

n E
dd

ie,
 Ab

erd
ee

n C
ivic

 Fo
rum

 
 

 
Ru

ary
 C

am
pb

ell
, U

nig
ht 

 
 

Er
ic 

An
de

rso
n a

nd
 Vi

kk
i C

uth
be

rt, 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il (

Le
ga

l a
nd

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 
 

 
Co

un
cill

ors
 Bo

ult
on

, C
am

ero
n (

as
 su

bs
titu

te 
for

 C
ou

nc
illo

r D
ick

so
n) 

an
d F

ors
yth

 
 

 
 

Ap
olo

gie
s:-

  
Co

un
cill

or 
Dic

ks
on

 
 To

pic
 

Di
sc

us
sio

n/D
ec

isi
on

  
Ac

tio
n B

y 
1. 

Re
mi

t 
Vik

ki 
Cu

thb
ert

, C
ler

k t
o t

he
 F

oru
m 

op
en

ed
 th

e m
ee

tin
g b

y r
em

ind
ing

 th
e S

ub
-G

rou
p t

ha
t it

 
ha

d b
ee

n e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 fo

llo
win

g t
he

 jo
int

 m
ee

tin
g b

etw
ee

n t
he

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 B
oa

rd 
(th

e B
oa

rd)
 

an
d t

he
 Lo

ca
l L

ice
ns

ing
 F

oru
m 

(th
e F

oru
m)

 in
 A

ug
us

t, 2
01

2, 
ari

sin
g o

ut 
of 

dis
cu

ss
ion

s o
n 

the
 B

oa
rd 

an
d 

Fo
rum

 w
ork

ing
 to

ge
the

r o
n 

joi
nt 

aim
s 

an
d 

ob
jec

tiv
es

. T
he

 F
oru

m 
ha

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
ntl

y a
gre

ed
 at

 its
 S

ep
tem

be
r m

ee
tin

g t
o s

et 
up

 a 
Su

b-G
rou

p, 
an

d t
he

 B
oa

rd 
ha

d 
ag

ree
d 

to 
thi

s a
t it

s N
ov

em
be

r m
ee

tin
g, 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 le

tte
r f

rom
 th

e 
Fo

rum
, a

nd
 h

ad
 a

lso
 

ag
ree

d t
ha

t th
e S

ub
-G

rou
p c

on
sid

er 
wh

at 
rel

ev
an

t e
vid

en
ce

 co
uld

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o t

he
 B

oa
rd 

in 
ord

er 
for

 m
em

be
rs 

to 
as

se
ss

 an
d d

ec
ide

 up
on

 po
licy

. T
he

 Bo
ard

 ha
d a

lso
 ag

ree
d t

ha
t fo

ur 
of 

its
 m

em
be

rs 
att

en
d t

he
 fir

st 
me

eti
ng

 an
d l

ist
en

 to
 su

gg
es

tio
ns

 on
 ho

w 
the

 pr
oc

es
s c

ou
ld 

be
st 

be
 a

ch
iev

ed
, w

hil
st 

no
tin

g 
tha

t i
ts 

me
mb

ers
 s

ho
uld

 n
ot 

inv
olv

e 
the

ms
elv

es
 in

 th
e 

op
era

tio
na

l s
ide

 of
 th

e p
roc

es
s. 

 Th
e C

ler
k t

o t
he

 Fo
rum

 ex
pla

ine
d t

ha
t th

e S
ub

-G
rou

p w
ou

ld 
ma

ke
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Fo

rum
, w

hic
h 

wo
uld

 in
 tu

rn 
ma

ke
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Bo

ard
 in

 a
gre

ein
g 

the
 d

raf
t 

Sta
tem

en
t o

f L
ice

ns
ing

 Po
licy

. 
 

 

2. 
Ap

po
int

me
nt 

of 
Ch

air
pe

rso
n 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 fo

r a
 C

ha
irp

ers
on

 fo
r th

e S
ub

-G
rou

p w
ere

 so
ug

ht.
 It 

wa
s n

ote
d t

ha
t th

is 
ou

gh
t 

to 
be

 a 
me

mb
er 

of 
the

 Lo
ca

l L
ice

ns
ing

 Fo
rum

, fo
r th

e p
urp

os
es

 of
 m

ain
tai

nin
g a

 se
pa

rat
ion

 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 Fo
rum

 an
d t

he
 Bo

ard
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 th
e S

LP
. 

 Ga
rry

 Bu
rne

tt w
as

 no
mi

na
ted

 an
d a

pp
oin

ted
 as

 C
ha

irp
ers

on
. 

  

Agenda Item 1.2

Page 7



   

2

To
pic

 
Di

sc
us

sio
n/D

ec
isi

on
  

Ac
tio

n B
y 

3. 
Tim

es
ca

les
 

Er
ic 

An
de

rso
n, 

Cle
rk 

to 
the

 Bo
ard

, a
dv

ise
d t

he
 S

ub
-G

rou
p o

f th
e t

im
eta

ble
 fo

r p
rod

uc
ing

 th
e 

Sta
tem

en
t o

f L
ice

ns
ing

 P
oli

cy
 (S

LP
). 

Th
is 

wa
s 

a 
thr

ee
-ye

ar 
do

cu
me

nt,
 c

urr
en

tly
 ru

nn
ing

 
fro

m 
No

ve
mb

er,
 20

10
 to

 N
ov

em
be

r, 2
01

3. 
 A

 dr
aft

 ve
rsi

on
 w

ou
ld 

be
 ag

ree
d b

y t
he

 B
oa

rd 
at 

its
 m

ee
tin

g o
n 3

0th
 Ap

ril,
 20

13
, a

nd
 th

e F
oru

m 
co

uld
 su

bm
it r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s o
n i

ts 
co

nte
nt 

at 
thi

s s
tag

e. 
Th

e F
oru

m 
wo

uld
 al

so
 be

 ab
le 

to 
res

po
nd

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n o

ve
r th

e 
su

mm
er 

pe
rio

d, 
an

d c
ou

ld 
ma

ke
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 th

e B
oa

rd 
pri

or 
to 

it f
ina

lisi
ng

 th
e S

LP
 

in 
No

ve
mb

er.
 E

ric
 a

lso
 e

xp
lai

ne
d 

tha
t t

he
 n

ew
 S

LP
 c

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 ra
ng

e 
of 

ch
an

ge
s 

inc
lud

ed
, a

nd
 th

at 
it s

ho
uld

 be
 vi

ew
ed

 as
 a 

wo
rki

ng
 do

cu
me

nt,
 ev

en
 be

yo
nd

 th
e N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

 da
te.

 It 
wo

uld
 be

 he
lpf

ul 
if a

ny
 ev

ide
nc

e w
ere

 av
ail

ab
le 

to 
the

 B
oa

rd 
by

 A
pri

l, 2
01

3, 
to 

as
sis

t it
 in

 pr
ep

ari
ng

 a 
dra

ft S
LP

 fo
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n p
urp

os
es

. 
 

 

4. 
Dis

cu
ss

ion
 

Th
e 

Ch
air

pe
rso

n 
inv

ite
d 

tho
se

 p
res

en
t t

o 
hig

hli
gh

t t
he

 m
ain

 a
rea

s w
hic

h 
the

y w
ou

ld 
like

 
ad

dre
ss

ed
 in

 th
e 

SL
P, 

an
d 

an
y i

ss
ue

s w
hic

h 
we

re 
wo

rth
y o

f f
urt

he
r d

isc
us

sio
n 

wit
hin

 th
e 

Su
b-G

rou
p a

s i
t d

ev
elo

pe
d a

 re
co

mm
en

de
d p

os
itio

n f
or 

the
 Fo

rum
 to

 su
bm

it t
o t

he
 B

oa
rd 

in 
Ap

ril.
 Th

es
e a

re 
su

mm
ari

se
d b

elo
w:

- 
 
�

 S
LP

 to
 be

 in
flu

en
ce

d b
y a

gre
ed

 Al
co

ho
l S

tra
teg

y f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

�
 L

ink
 to

 th
e S

ing
le 

Ou
tco

me
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
�

 S
tat

ist
ica

l in
for

ma
tio

n 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

pro
vid

ed
 a

nd
 sc

rut
ini

se
d. 

Ou
tco

me
 b

as
ed

 w
he

re 
po

ss
ibl

e 
�

 N
ee

d t
o l

ink
 to

 al
l fi

ve
 lic

en
sin

g o
bje

cti
ve

s 
�

 H
igh

-en
d o

bje
cti

ve
s r

eq
uir

ed
 fo

r th
e F

oru
m 

an
d t

his
 Su

b-G
rou

p 
�

 M
ea

su
re 

the
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f t
he

 c
urr

en
t S

LP
 s

o 
as

 to
 a

dd
res

s 
an

y 
sh

ort
co

mi
ng

s, 
ie 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
�

 C
lar

ify
 th

e p
os

itio
n i

n r
es

pe
ct 

of 
ov

er 
pro

vis
ion

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
off

-sa
les

 
�

 A
dd

res
s 

ov
er 

pro
vis

ion
 i

n 
off

-sa
les

, 
po

ss
ibl

y 
sta

rtin
g 

wit
h 

a 
loo

k 
at 

sh
elf

 
sp

ac
e/v

isib
ility

. A
dd

res
s “

pre
-lo

ad
ing

”/a
va

ila
bil

ity
 of

 al
co

ho
l.  

�
 F

utu
re 

SL
P s

ho
uld

 ta
ke

 ac
co

un
t o

f c
ity

 su
bu

rbs
 as

 w
ell

 as
 ci

ty 
ce

ntr
e 

�
 I

np
ut 

fro
m 

He
alt

h n
ee

ds
 to

 be
 fa

r m
ore

 fo
cu

se
d 

�
 S

ee
k 

gu
ida

nc
e 

fro
m 

the
 S

co
ttis

h 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t o

n 
wh

at 
the

y 
are

 lik
ely

 to
 c

on
sid

er 
ch

an
gin

g 
�

 R
ev

iew
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 b

rou
gh

t a
bo

ut 
by

 E
din

bu
rgh

 a
nd

 W
es

t D
um

ba
rto

ns
hir

e 
co

un
cils

 du
e t

o t
he

ir S
LP

 – 
ap

pro
ac

h t
his

 fr
om

 bo
th 

Po
lice

 an
d H

ea
lth

 pe
rsp

ec
tiv

es
, 

an
d a

lso
 as

k t
he

 re
sp

ec
tiv

e C
ler

ks
 to

 th
eir

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 Bo
ard

s. 

                    Lin
da

 Sm
ith

 
Jo

hn
 So

uta
r 

Er
ic 

An
de

rso
n  

Page 8



   

3

To
pic

 
Di

sc
us

sio
n/D

ec
isi

on
  

Ac
tio

n B
y 

�
 A

wa
it t

he
 im

pa
ct 

of 
mi

nim
um

 pr
icin

g o
n a

lco
ho

l 
�

 N
ee

d t
o l

ist
en

 to
 th

e s
tud

en
t v

oic
e  

�
 S

ell
ing

 of
 al

co
ho

l in
 pe

tro
l s

tat
ion

s t
o b

e a
dd

res
se

d 
 As

 p
art

 o
f t

his
 b

roa
d 

dis
cu

ss
ion

, C
ou

nc
illo

r B
ou

lto
n 

as
 C

on
ve

ne
r o

f t
he

 L
ice

ns
ing

 B
oa

rd 
hig

hli
gh

ted
 th

e n
ee

d t
o m

ak
e d

ec
isio

ns
 w

hic
h w

ere
 no

t th
en

 th
e s

ub
jec

t o
f s

uc
ce

ss
ful

 le
ga

l 
ch

all
en

ge
. E

ric
 A

nd
ers

on
 re

inf
orc

ed
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r t
he

 B
oa

rd 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
rob

us
t e

vid
en

ce
 in

 
de

ter
mi

nin
g 

its
 S

LP
, a

nd
 u

nd
ert

oo
k t

o 
1) 

wr
ite

 to
 th

e 
Sc

ott
ish

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
to 

de
ter

mi
ne

 
wh

eth
er 

the
re 

we
re 

an
y l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 pl

an
ne

d w
hic

h m
ay

 im
pa

ct 
up

on
 th

e S
LP

; a
nd

 
2) 

to 
att

em
pt 

to 
ga

the
r s

om
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 fo
r th

e S
ub

-G
rou

p o
n o

ff-s
ale

s s
he

lf s
pa

ce
, s

uc
h a

s 
the

 nu
mb

er 
of 

lice
ns

ed
 pr

em
ise

s, 
lice

nc
e f

ee
 pa

ya
ble

 an
d t

ota
l in

co
me

 to
 th

e C
ou

nc
il f

rom
 

su
ch

 lic
en

ce
s. 

 Th
e 

Su
b-G

rou
p 

als
o 

wis
he

d 
to 

inc
rea

se
 r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
 o

f U
nig

ht 
me

mb
ers

 a
t f

utu
re 

me
eti

ng
s, 

an
d 

if a
t a

ll p
os

sib
le,

 to
 se

ek
 a

n 
off

-sa
les

 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e. 

Th
e 

Su
b-G

rou
p 

wa
s 

ad
vis

ed
 th

at 
thi

s w
ou

ld 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 ra

tifi
ed

 at
 th

e n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g o

f th
e F

oru
m,

 w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
als

o b
e a

sk
ed

 to
 ag

ree
 to

 th
e a

dd
itio

n o
f C

ou
nc

illo
r G

rei
g t

o t
he

 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
of 

the
 Fo

rum
. 

Th
os

e p
res

en
t in

dic
ate

d t
he

ir s
up

po
rt 

for
 th

is,
 as

 th
is 

wo
uld

 m
ea

n v
alu

ab
le 

inp
ut 

fro
m 

the
 

co
mm

un
ity

 sa
fet

y p
ers

pe
cti

ve
. 

 

    Er
ic 

An
de

rso
n 

  

5. 
Fu

tur
e M

ee
tin

gs
 

It w
as

 ag
ree

d t
o h

old
 m

ee
tin

gs
 at

 th
e e

nd
 of

 Ja
nu

ary
, F

eb
rua

ry 
an

d M
arc

h, 
an

d t
ha

t th
e n

ex
t 

me
eti

ng
 in

clu
de

 on
 th

e a
ge

nd
a:-

 
 

1. 
Cu

rre
nt 

Sta
tem

en
t o

f L
ice

ns
ing

 P
oli

cy
 – 

it w
as

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 B

oa
rd 

me
mb

ers
 co

uld
 

no
t fo

rm
 pa

rt o
f th

is 
dis

cu
ss

ion
 

2. 
Sta

tis
tic

s 
– 

un
de

r e
ac

h 
of 

the
 fi

ve
 lic

en
sin

g 
ob

jec
tiv

es
, a

 lis
t o

f s
tat

ist
ics

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
lla

ted
 an

d t
ho

se
 w

hic
h s

ho
uld

 be
 ob

tai
ne

d. 
3. 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 fro
m 

Ed
inb

urg
h a

nd
 W

es
t D

um
ba

rto
ns

hir
e c

ou
nc

ils 
on

 th
eir

 SL
Ps

 
 

   Vik
ki 

Cu
thb

ert
 

 Al
l m

em
be

rs 
 Lin

da
 Sm

ith
 

Jo
hn

 So
uta

r 
Er

ic 
An

de
rso

n 
 

  

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



LO
CA

L L
IC
EN

SIN
G 
FO

RU
M 
SU

B-
GR

OU
P –

 31
 JA

NU
AR

Y 2
01
3 

 
Pr
es
en

t:- 
 

 
Ga

rry
 Bu

rne
tt, 

Gr
am

pia
n F

ire
 an

d R
es
cu
e S

erv
ice

 (C
ha

ir) 
 

 
Ins

pe
cto

r J
oh

n S
ou

tar
, a

nd
 Se

rge
an

ts 
Ba

rry
 Sk

inn
er 

an
d G

ill F
let
t, G

ram
pia

n P
oli
ce
 

 
 

Dia
ne

 Sa
nd

e, 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il (
Lic

en
sin

g S
tan

da
rds

 O
ffic

er)
 

 
 

Sa
nd

y K
elm

an
, A

lco
ho

l a
nd

 D
rug

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 

 
Mi
ch
ell
e W

all
, U

nig
ht 

 
 

Lin
da

 Sm
ith
, N

HS
 G
ram

pia
n 

 
 

Vik
ki 
Cu

thb
ert

 an
d L

yn
se
y M

cB
ain

, A
be

rde
en
 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il (
Le

ga
l a
nd

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce
s) 

 
 

Co
un

cill
or 

Dic
ks
on

 as
 an

 ob
se
rve

r. 
 

 
 

Ap
olo

gie
s:-

  
Ka

y D
un

n, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

 To
pic

 
Di
sc
us
sio

n/D
ec
isi
on

  
Ac

tio
n B

y 
1. 

Mi
nu

te 
of 

Pr
ev
iou

s 
Me

eti
ng

 
Th

e 
Su

b 
Gr

ou
p 
ap

pro
ve
d 
the

 m
inu

te,
 su

bje
ct 

to 
rec

ord
ing

 L
ind

a 
Sm

ith
’s 

ap
olo

gie
s w

hic
h 

ha
d b

ee
n i
nti
ma

ted
 in
 ad

va
nc
e o

f th
e m

ee
tin
g. 

 Th
e C

ha
irp
ers

on
 ad

vis
ed

 th
at 

he
 ha

d e
ma

ile
d R

ua
ry 

Ca
mp

be
ll o

f U
nig

ht,
 to

 th
an

k h
im
 fo

r 
the

 w
ork

 he
 ha

d u
nd

ert
ak
en

 in
 th

e s
ho

rt 
pe

rio
d o

f ti
me

 th
at 

he
 ha

d b
ee

n i
nv
olv

ed
 w
ith
 th

e 
Fo

rum
.  

It 
wa

s n
ote

d 
tha

t M
ich

ell
e W

all
 w

ou
ld 

be
 th

e 
ne

w 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

 fr
om

 U
nig

ht 
on
 

bo
th 

the
 Fo

rum
 an

d t
he

 Su
b G

rou
p. 

 Th
e C

ha
irp

ers
on

 al
so
 ad

vis
ed

 th
e S

ub
 G

rou
p t

ha
t m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 Li

ce
ns
ing

 B
oa

rd 
wo

uld
 

no
t a

tte
nd

 an
y f
utu

re 
me

eti
ng

s o
f th

e S
ub

 G
rou

p d
ue

 to
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

the
m 

to 
ma

ke
 de

cis
ion

s 
on

 th
e S

tat
em

en
t o

f L
ice

ns
ing

 Po
licy

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly
 of

 th
e F

oru
m.

 W
hil
st 
it w

as
 di
sa
pp

oin
tin
g 

tha
t th

ey
 co

uld
 no

t b
e i

nv
olv

ed
 in

 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 w
ith
 th

e F
oru

m 
an

d t
he

 S
ub

 G
rou

p, 
thi
s w

as
 

an
 un

de
rst

an
da

ble
 po

sit
ion

 fo
r th

e B
oa

rd 
to 

tak
e. 

 

Ly
ns
ey
 M
cB

ain
 

2. 
Cu

rre
nt 

Sta
tem

en
t 

of 
Lic

en
sin

g P
oli
cy
 

Th
e C

ha
irp

ers
on

 ad
vis

ed
 th

at 
the

 fir
st 
dra

ft o
f th

e n
ew

 S
tat

em
en

t o
f L

ice
ns
ing

 P
oli
cy
 w
as
 to

 
be

 dr
aft

ed
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

3. 
 H
e t

he
n i
nv
ite
d m

em
be

rs 
to 

dis
cu
ss
 th

e c
urr

en
t p

oli
cy
 an

d w
ha

t 
ch
an

ge
s t
he

y w
ou

ld 
like

 to
 se

e i
n t

he
 ne

w 
ve
rsi
on

. 
 Me

mb
ers

 di
sc
us
se
d h

ow
 ge

ne
ric
 th

e c
urr

en
t S

LP
 w
as
, a

nd
 no

t p
ers

on
ali
se
d t

o A
be

rde
en

, 
alt
ho

ug
h t

his
 w

as
 po

ss
ibl
y t

he
 ca

se
 fo

r a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
po

lici
es
 ac

ros
s S

co
tla
nd

. A
be

rde
en

’s 
po

licy
 w
as
 no

t p
erf

orm
an

ce
-ba

se
d, 

an
d t

his
 w
as
 fe

lt t
o b

e n
ec
es
sa
ry 

in 
ord

er 
for

 th
e B

oa
rd 

to 
be

 ab
le 
to 

as
se
ss
 its

 ow
n p

erf
orm

an
ce
, a

nd
 to

 av
oid

 th
e c

rea
tio
n o

f a
 st
ati
c p

oli
cy
.   

    
    

Page 11



   

2

To
pic

 
Di
sc
us
sio

n/D
ec
isi
on

  
Ac

tio
n B

y 
Sa

nd
y K

elm
an

 hi
gh

lig
hte

d f
ive

 po
int
s t

ha
t h

e f
elt
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 in

clu
de

d i
n t

he
 ne

w 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Po

licy
:- 
�
 A

n o
ve
rvi
ew

 of
 th

e c
urr

en
t lo

ca
l p

os
itio

n i
n r

ela
tio
n t

o t
he

 5 
lice

ns
ing

 ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d 
AD

P 
str

ate
gy
, e

ns
uri

ng
 th

at 
it c

ap
tur

es
 A
be

rde
en

 ci
ty 
as
 a 

wh
ole

, ra
the

r th
an

 ju
st 
cit
y 

ce
ntr

e i
ss
ue

s; 
  

�
 D

eta
ils 

of 
the

 da
ta,

 an
d o

the
r re

lev
an

t in
for

ma
tio
n i
t h

as
 co

ns
ide

red
 in
 fo

rm
ula

tin
g t

he
 

po
licy

; 
�
 H

ow
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f th
e p

oli
cy
 w
ill a

im
 to

 he
lp 
pro

mo
te 

the
 5 

lice
ns
ing

 ob
jec

tiv
es
; 

�
 H

ow
 th

e B
oa

rd 
int
en

ds
, o

n a
n o

n-g
oin

g b
as
is,
 to

 ga
the

r, m
on

ito
r a

nd
 as

se
ss
 na

tio
na

l 
an

d 
loc

al 
da

ta 
so
 th

at 
it 
ca
n 

me
as
ure

 o
ng

oin
g 

loc
al 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 a

ga
ins

t t
he

 5
 

lice
ns
ing

 ob
jec

tiv
es
; a

nd
 

�
 H

ow
 of

ten
 th

e B
oa

rd 
wil

l re
vie

w 
its
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 ag

ain
st 

its
 po

licy
 an

d p
erf

orm
an

ce
 

ag
ain

st 
the

 5 
lice

ns
ing

 ob
jec

tiv
es
. 

 Du
rin

g 
fur

the
r d

isc
us
sio

n, 
Mi
ch
ell
e 
W
all
 e
nq

uir
ed

 h
ow

 th
e 
Bo

ard
 in

ten
de

d 
to 

en
for

ce
 th

e 
ne

w 
po

licy
, a

nd
 qu

eri
ed

 w
he

the
r th

is 
as
pe

ct 
co
uld

 al
so
 be

 ad
de

d, 
alo

ng
 w
ith
 th

e f
ive

 po
int
s 

ab
ov
e. 

 M
em

be
rs 

ag
ree

d t
ha

t th
is 
wa

s a
 w
ort

hy
 ad

dit
ion

. 
 Th

e S
ub

 G
ro
up

 re
so
lve

d:-
 

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t th

e s
ix 
po

int
s r

ais
ed

 ab
ov
e b

e u
se
d f

or 
a b

as
is 
for

 fu
tur

e w
ork

, a
nd

 fo
r t
he
 

po
int
s t
o b

e f
urt

he
r d

ev
elo

pe
d b

efo
re 

su
bm

iss
ion

 to
 th

e L
ice

ns
ing

 Bo
ard

. 
 

                     A
ll m

em
be
rs 

3. 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 

fro
m 

Ed
inb

urg
h 

an
d 

W
es
t 

Du
mb

art
on

sh
ire

 
Co

un
cils

 
 

Th
e 

Su
b 

Gr
ou

p 
ha

d 
be

for
e 

it 
va
rio

us
 d

oc
um

en
ts 

fro
m 

bo
th 

Ed
inb

urg
h 

an
d 

W
es
t 

Du
mb

art
on

sh
ire

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 an
d d

isc
us
se
d t

he
 S
LP

s i
n p

lac
e a

t b
oth

 th
e l

oc
al 

au
tho

riti
es
. IN

 
pa

rtic
ula

r it
 w
as
 no

ted
 th

at 
W
es
t D

um
ba

rto
ns
hir

e’s
 po

licy
 w
as
 he

ld 
up

 ac
ros

s t
he

 co
un

try
 as

 
a 

ex
am

ple
 o

f g
oo

d 
pra

cti
ce
. T

his
 w

ou
ld 

be
 u

se
ful
 a

s 
the

 F
oru

m 
pro

gre
ss
ed

 w
ith
 it
’s 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s t
o t

he
 Bo

ard
. 

Fo
r in

for
ma

tio
n 

4. 
Sta

tis
tic
al 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 
un

de
r 

the
 

5 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
 

Th
e 

Su
b 

Gr
ou

p 
dis

cu
ss
ed

 s
tat

ist
ica

l i
nfo

rm
ati
on

 a
nd

 h
ow

 it
 c
ou

ld 
be

 u
se
d 

to 
pro

vid
e 

ev
ide

nc
e t

o t
he

 Li
ce
ns
ing

 Bo
ard

 in
 or

de
r fo

r th
e n

ew
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 Po
licy

 to
 be

 am
en

de
d. 

It w
as
 

no
ted

 th
at 

the
 m

ore
 ev

ide
nc
e p

res
en

ted
, th

e b
ett

er,
 an

d t
ha

t ti
me

sc
ale

s w
ere

 pr
ett

y t
igh

t.  
 Als

o n
ote

d b
y t
he

 Su
b G

rou
p -

 
�
 S

tat
ist
ica

l in
for

ma
tio
n 
sh
ou

ld 
be

 c
on

tex
tua

l, 
to 

pro
vid

e 
gre

ate
st 

as
sis

tan
ce
 to

 th
e 

   Al
l m

em
be
rs 

  

Page 12



   

3

To
pic

 
Di
sc
us
sio

n/D
ec
isi
on

  
Ac

tio
n B

y 
Bo

ard
. 

�
 P

os
sib

le 
ne

ed
 to

 id
en

tify
 da

ta 
zo
ne

s f
or 

the
 ci
ty.
 

�
 L

oo
k b

ey
on

d S
co
tla
nd

 to
 ot

he
r c

ou
ntr

ies
, a

nd
 le

arn
 fro

m 
the

ir e
xp
eri
en

ce
 as

 re
ga

rds
 

lice
ns
ing

 po
licy

. 
�
 L

ink
 w
ith
 ne

w 
Sin

gle
 O
utc

om
e A

gre
em

en
t a

nd
 in
for

ma
tio
n c

on
tai
ne

d t
he

rei
n. 

 Th
e S

ub
-G
ro
up

 re
so
lve

d:-
 

tha
t m

em
be

rs 
ga

the
r s

tat
ist
ica

l in
for

ma
tio
n f

rom
 th

eir
 re

sp
ec
tiv
e 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 a
nd

 su
bm

it 
an

y 
ev
ide

nc
e 
co
lle
cte

d 
to 

Sa
nd

y 
Ke

lm
an

 b
y 
Mo

nd
ay
 1
8 
Fe

bru
ary

 in
 o
rde

r f
or 

Sa
nd

y t
o 

co
lla
te 

the
 ev

ide
nc
e i

nto
 a 

tem
pla

te 
for

 fu
tur

e d
isc

us
sio

n; 
an

d t
ha

t a
 te

mp
lat
e b

e i
ss
ue

d t
o 

Su
b G

rou
p m

em
be

rs 
aft

er 
the

 m
ee

tin
g b

y t
he

 cl
erk

. 
 

 Ly
ns
ey
 M
cB

ain
 

 

5. 
Clo

sin
g R

em
ark

s 
Th

e 
Ch

air
pe

rso
n 

tha
nk
ed

 In
sp
ec
tor

 J
oh

n 
So

uta
r f

or 
all
 h

is 
ha

rd 
wo

rk 
ov
er 

the
 y
ea

rs,
 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 h
is 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
n 
to 

the
 L
oc
al 

Lic
en

sin
g 
Fo

rum
, a

nd
 w

ish
ed

 h
im
 a
 h
ap

py
 a
nd
 

he
alt
hy
 re

tire
me

nt 
fro

m 
the

 po
lice

 fo
rce

. 
 

 

6. 
Da

te 
of 

Ne
xt 

Me
eti
ng

  
It 
wa

s 
no

ted
 th

at 
the

 n
ex
t m

ee
tin
g 
of 

the
 S

ub
 G

rou
p 
wo

uld
 b
e 
he

ld 
on

 W
ed
ne

sd
ay
 2
7 

Fe
bru

ary
 at

 10
am

. 
Al
l m

em
be
rs 

  
  

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
AB
ER
DE
EN
 LO
CA
L L
IC
EN
SIN
G 
FO
RU
M 

 
W
OR
KP
LA
N 
AS
 AT
 13
 Fe
bru
ary
, 2
01
3 

   Re
mi
t o
f L
oc
al 
Lic
en
sin
g F
oru
ms
 as
 se
t o
ut 
in 
the
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 (S
co
tla
nd
) A
ct 
20
05
 – 
ke
ep
ing
 un
de
r re
vie
w 
the
 op
era
tio
n o
f th
e A
ct 
in 

the
 F
oru
m’
s 
are
a 
an
d 
in 
pa
rtic
ula
r t
he
 e
xe
rci
se
 b
y t
he
 L
ice
ns
ing
 B
oa
rd 
of 
the
ir 
fun
cti
on
s 
inc
lud
ing
 g
ivin
g 
ad
vic
e 
an
d 
ma
kin
g 

rec
om
me
nd
ati
on
s t
o t
he
 B
oa
rd 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
os
e m

att
ers
 w
he
re 
the
 Fo
rum

 co
ns
ide
rs 
it a
pp
rop
ria
te.
  T
he
 A
ct 
do
es
 no
t e
na
ble
 a 

Fo
rum

 to
 re
vie
w 
or 
giv
e a
dv
ice
 or
 m
ak
e r
ec
om
me
nd
ati
on
s i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o t
he
 ex
erc
ise
 by
 a 
Bo
ard
 of
 th
eir
 fu
nc
tio
n i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o a
 

pa
rtic
ula
r c
as
e. 
 “C
as
e” 
is 
tak
en
 to
 m
ea
n a
n a
pp
lica
tio
n b
efo
re 
a B
oa
rd 
an
d i
n t
he
 in
ter
es
ts 
of 
na
tur
al 
jus
tic
e i
s a
lso
 ta
ke
n t
o m

ea
n 

ind
ivid
ua
l lic
en
se
d p
rem

ise
s. 
 Th
e p
ref
err
ed
 ro
ute
 fo
r c
on
sid
era
tio
n o
f c
om
pla
int
s a
bo
ut 
the
 ru
nn
ing
 of
 lic
en
se
d p
rem

ise
s i
s t
o w
rite
 

dir
ec
tly
 to
 th
e C
ler
k o
r D
ep
ute
 C
ler
k t
o t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 Bo
ard
. 

 Th
e L
ice
ns
ing
 (S
co
tla
nd
) A
ct 
20
05
 re
qu
ire
s L
ice
ns
ing
 Bo
ard
s i
n e
xe
rci
sin
g a
ny
 of
 th
eir
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 to
 ha
ve
 re
ga
rd 
to 
an
y a
dv
ice
 gi
ve
n 

or 
rec
om
me
nd
ati
on
s 
ma
de
 to
 th
em
 b
y 
a 
Lo
ca
l L
ice
ns
ing
 F
oru
m 
an
d 
wh
ere
 th
e 
Bo
ard
 d
ec
ide
s 
no
t t
o 
fol
low
 th
e 
ad
vic
e 
or 

rec
om
me
nd
ati
on
 to
 gi
ve
 th
e F
oru
m 
rea
so
ns
 fo
r th
at 
de
cis
ion
, th
e B
oa
rd 
mu
st 
pro
vid
e c
op
ies
 of
 re
lev
an
t s
tat
ist
ica
l in
for
ma
tio
n t
o t
he
 

Fo
rum

 as
 it 
ma
y r
ea
so
na
bly
 re
qu
ire
 fo
r th
e p
urp
os
es
 of
 its
 ge
ne
ral
 fu
nc
tio
ns
. 

 Lic
en
sin
g S
tan
da
rds
 O
ffic
ers
 ha
ve
 a 
ge
ne
ral
 fu
nc
tio
n o
f p
rov
idi
ng
 to
 in
ter
es
ted
 pe
rso
ns
 in
for
ma
tio
n a
nd
 gu
ida
nc
e c
on
ce
rni
ng
 th
e 

op
era
tio
n o
f th
e A
ct,
 su
pe
rvi
sin
g c
om
pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e A
ct 
an
d t
he
 co
nd
itio
ns
 of
 th
eir
 lic
en
ce
s b
y h
old
ers
 of
 P
rem

ise
s L
ice
nc
es
 an
d 

Oc
ca
sio
na
l L
ice
nc
es
 an
d m

ed
iat
e b
etw
ee
n c
om
mu
nit
ies
 an
d t
he
 tra
de
 or
 be
tw
ee
n a
ny
 tw
o p
art
ies
 w
he
re 
the
re 
is 
a n
ee
d t
o r
es
olv
e 

a l
oc
al 
pro
ble
m 
an
d d
ev
elo
p a
 lo
ca
l s
olu
tio
n. 
 LS
Os
 do
 no
t a
ct 
as
 “p
oli
ce
me
n” 
wit
h r
eg
ard
 to
 lic
en
sin
g b
ut 
the
y w
ill 
lia
ise
 w
ith
 th
e 

po
lice
 an
d o
the
r re
lev
an
t o
ffic
ial
s s
uc
h a
s E
nv
iro
nm
en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers
 in
 pu
rsu
it o
f th
e o
bje
cti
ve
s o
f th
e A
ct.
 

    No
 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
 

Up
da

te/
Ou

tco
me

/R
es

po
ns

e 
Re

fer
ral

s t
o L

ice
ns

ing
 B
oa

rd
  

or
 C
ler

k  
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n t

o 
St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Po

lic
y C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
(1)
 

Pr
ev
en
tin
g 

Cr
im
e 

an
d 

Di
so
rd
er 

 • 
Va
rio
us
 

Iss
ue
s 

aro
un
d 

   to 
req
ue
st 
tha
t F
ras
er 
Ho
gg
in 

    

 

Agenda Item 1.4

Page 15



 
2

No
 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
 

Up
da

te/
Ou

tco
me

/R
es

po
ns

e 
Re

fer
ral

s t
o L

ice
ns

ing
 B
oa

rd
  

or
 C
ler

k  
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n t

o 
St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Po

lic
y C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
alc
oh
ol 
mi
su
se
. 

co
nti
nu
e t
o l
iai
se
 w
ith
 th
e l
oc
al 

un
ive
rsi
tie
s 

an
d 

Ab
erd
ee
n 

Co
lle
ge
 an
d t
o f
ee
db
ac
k t
o t
he
 

Fo
rum

 w
ith
 a
ny
 i
nfo
rm
ati
on
, 

inc
lud
ing
 a
ny
 d
ata
 re
ce
ive
d 
in 

rel
ati
on
 
to 

the
 
Co
un
se
llin
g 

Se
rvi
ce
; 

 to 
req
ue
st 
tha
t 
thi
s 
ite
m 
be
 

ad
de
d 

to 
the
 
Ju
ne
 
20
13
 

ag
en
da
 fo
r d
isc
us
sio
n, 
no
tab
ly 

be
for
e 

Fre
sh
er’
s 

W
ee
k 

in 
Se
pte
mb
er;
 

 to 
req
ue
st 

tha
t 
the
 
Fo
rum

 
de
leg
ate
 th
e 
tas
k o
f lo
ok
ing
 a
t 

(1)
 sp
ike
s i
n t
ren
ds
 w
ith
 al
co
ho
l 

an
d 

(2)
 
ev
en
ts 

su
ch
 
as
 

Ha
llo
we
en
, m
ad
 F
rid
ay
 a
nd
 S
t 

Pa
tric
k’s
 da
y, 
to 
the
 S
ub
 G
rou
p 

of 
the
 F
oru
m,
 a
nd
 to
 fe
ed
 a
ny
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 
ba
ck
 
to 

the
 

Lic
en
sin
g B
oa
rd;
 

  

        Cle
rk 
to 
ad
d 
thi
s 
ite
m 
to 

Ju
ne
 20
13
 ag
en
da
. 

    Cle
rk 
ref
er 
thi
s t
o 
the
 S
ub
 

Gr
ou
p f
or 
ac
tio
n. 

(2)
 

Se
cu
rin
g P

ub
lic
 Sa

fet
y 

 • 
Fin
d 
ou
t f
rom

 c
om
mu
nit
ies
 

wh
at 

are
 
the
ir 
are
as
 
of 

co
nc
ern
. 

   

  Th
e 

Co
mm
un
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

Lia
iso
n 
Of
fic
er 
is 
no
w 
inc
lud
ed
 

in 
the
 d
ist
rib
uti
on
 li
st 
of 
the
 

Fo
rum

 
so
 
tha
t 
sh
e 

ca
n 

dis
se
mi
na
te 

a 
req
ue
st 

for
 

co
nti
nu
ed
 co
mm
un
ica
tio
n t
o a
ll 

        

 

Page 16



 
3

No
 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
 

Up
da

te/
Ou

tco
me

/R
es

po
ns

e 
Re

fer
ral

s t
o L

ice
ns

ing
 B
oa

rd
  

or
 C
ler

k  
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n t

o 
St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Po

lic
y C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
 • 
To
 re
ce
ive
 re
po
rts
 fr
om
 th
e 

Lic
en
sin
g 
Bo
ard
 c
on
tai
nin
g 

rel
ev
an
t 

sta
tis
tic
al 

inf
orm

ati
on
. 

  • 
Do
ors
 S
up
erv
iso
r 
W
ork
ing
 

Gr
ou
p 

                 

co
mm
un
ity
 co
un
cils
. 

Th
e 
Fo
rum

 a
nd
 B
oa
rd 

wil
l 

co
nti
nu
e 

to 
lia
ise
 
at 

joi
nt 

me
eti
ng
s. 
 A
n 
inv
ite
 t
o 
the
 

De
pu
te 
Cle
rk 
of 
the
 B
oa
rd 
to 

att
en
d 
a 
me
eti
ng
 t
o 
dis
cu
ss
 

inc
om
ing
 le
gis
lat
ion
 w
as
 m
ad
e. 

At 
the
 fir
st 
me
eti
ng
 of
 th
e 

Lic
en
sin
g B
oa
rd 
aft
er 
the
 lo
ca
l 

ele
cti
on
s, 
it a
pp
oin
ted
 on
e 

ad
dit
ion
al 
me
mb
er 
to 
the
 D
oo
rs 

Su
pe
rvi
so
r W
ork
ing
 G
rou
p. 
 As
 

a r
es
ult
, th
e B
oa
rd 
ha
d a
sk
ed
 if 

the
 Fo
rum

 w
ou
ld 
als
o l
ike
 an
 

ad
dit
ion
al 
me
mb
er 
on
 th
e 

gro
up
. 

 

       A 
me
mb
er 

wo
uld
 
be
 

all
oc
ate
d 
fro
m 
Un
igh
t a
nd
 

rep
ort
ed
 
ba
ck
 
to 

the
 

No
ve
mb
er 
me
eti
ng
. 

(3)
 

Pr
ev
en
tin
g P

ub
lic
 N
uis

an
ce
 

 • 
Im
pro
ve
 

int
ell
ige
nc
e 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 st
atu
tor
y b
od
ies
. 

  Th
e 

Fo
rum

 
is 

ga
ini
ng
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e 

as
 
it 
co
ns
ide
rs 

top
ics
 a
nd
 in
pu
t f
rom

 F
oru
m 

me
mb
ers
 

wh
o 

are
 

rep
res
en
tat
ive
s 

of 
rel
ev
an
t 

 
 

Page 17



 
4

No
 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
 

Up
da

te/
Ou

tco
me

/R
es

po
ns

e 
Re

fer
ral

s t
o L

ice
ns

ing
 B
oa

rd
  

or
 C
ler

k  
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n t

o 
St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Po

lic
y C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ag
en
cie
s. 

 T
he
 F
oru
m 

ha
s 

be
en
 

rep
res
en
ted
 

at 
co
nfe
ren
ce
s 

an
d 

tra
ini
ng
 

ev
en
ts 
an
d 
wil
l c
on
tin
ue
 to
 d
o 

so
.  

(4)
 

Pr
ote

cti
ng
 

an
d 

Im
pr
ov
ing

 
Pu
bli
c H

ea
lth
 

 
 

 
(5)
 

Pr
ote

cti
ng
 

Ch
ild
ren

 
fro
m 

Ha
rm
 

 
 

 
(6)
 

An
y 

Ot
he
r 

Co
mp

ete
nt 

Bu
sin

es
s R

ais
ed
 

 • 
To
 re
qu
es
t a
n 
ou
tlin
e 
fro
m 

the
 
Lic
en
sin
g 

Bo
ard
 
on
 

me
as
ure
s 
it 
wil
l e
mp
loy
 to
 

en
su
re 
co
mp
lia
nc
e 
wit
h 
the
 

fiv
e 

lice
ns
ing
 
ob
jec
tiv
es
.   

Th
is 
is 
be
ing
 a
dd
res
se
d 
as
 

pa
rt 
of 
the
 r
ev
iew
 o
f 
the
 

Sta
tem
en
t 

of 
Lic
en
sin
g 

Po
licy
.   
    
    
    
 

 

   Lic
en
sin
g 

Sta
nd
ard
s 

Of
fic
er 

on
e 
oth
er 

off
ice
r 
ha
s 
be
en
 

tra
ine
d 
in 
the
 L
ice
ns
ing
 A
ct 

du
tie
s. 
 O
the
r s
taf
f h
av
e 
als
o 

rec
eiv
ed
 
ele
me
nts
 
of 

LS
O 

tra
ini
ng
 
an
d 

thi
s 

sh
ou
ld 

fac
ilita
te 

a 
mo
re 

pro
ac
tiv
e 

ap
pro
ac
h 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 v
isit
ing
 

lice
ns
ed
 p
rem

ise
s. 
 T
he
 L
SO
’s 

Lin
e 
Ma
na
ge
r w
ill 
co
nti
nu
e 
to 

mo
nit
or 
he
r w
ork
loa
d 
wh
ich
 is
 

sta
nd
ard
 C
ou
nc
il p
rac
tic
e. 

At 
the
 jo
int
 m
ee
tin
g 
wit
h 
the
 

Bo
ard
 
on
 
23
/4/
10
 
it 

wa
s 

co
nfi
rm
ed
 th
at 
it w
ill 
co
nti
nu
e t
o 

mo
nit
or 

sta
tis
tic
al 

tre
nd
s 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to
 cr
im
e a
nd
 if 
po
ss
ibl
e 

he
alt
h 
an
d 
oth
er 
ind
ica
tor
s 
in 

ord
er 
to 
ev
alu
ate
 c
on
trib
uti
on
s 

to 
the
 
ac
hie
ve
me
nt 

of 
the
 

lice
ns
ing
 ob
jec
tiv
es
. 

 
 

Page 18



 
5

   
AC
TIO

NS
 FO
R 
LIC
EN
SIN
G 
FO
RU
M 
IN
  

AL
CO
HO
L S
TR
AT
EG
Y 2
00
9 –
 20
19
 AN
D 
IN
 AL
CO
HO
L R
EL
AT
ED
 D
ISO

RD
ER
 IN
 TH
E C
ITY
 C
EN
TR
E A
CT
IO
N 
PL
AN
 

 
(1)
 

Re
du
cin
g C
on
su
mp
tio
n –
 Th
e L
ice
ns
ing
 B
oa
rd 
wil
l c
on
su
lt w
ide
ly 
on
 sp
ec
ific
 m
ea
su
res
 to
 de
live
r a
nd
 en
ha
nc
e t
he
ir p
oli
cy
 

inc
lud
ing
 re
ce
ivin
g a
dv
ice
 fro
m 
the
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 Fo
rum

. 
 (2)
 

Pr
ev
en
tio
n (
a) 
– E
nc
ou
rag
ing
 de
ve
lop
me
nts
 to
 in
cre
as
e a
cc
es
s t
o f
oo
d a
nd
 no
n-a
lco
ho
lic 
dri
nk
s i
n c
lub
s a
nd
 th
e l
ice
ns
ed
 

pre
mi
se
s a
t n
igh
t in
 lia
iso
n w
ith
 U
nig
ht,
 th
e L
ice
ns
ing
 Bo
ard
 an
d C
ity
 C
en
tre
/Sa
fer
 Ab
erd
ee
n F
oru
m.
 

 (3)
 

Pr
ev
en
tio
n (
b) 
– R
ev
iew
 to
 es
tab
lish
 ho
w 
a m

ore
 pr
ev
en
tat
ive
 ap
pro
ac
h t
o o
ve
r-c
on
su
mp
tio
n o
f a
lco
ho
l c
an
 be
 de
vis
ed
 in
 

pa
rtn
ers
hip
 be
tw
ee
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 Bo
ard
 an
d t
he
 tra
de
. 

 (4)
 

Pr
ev
en
tio
n (
c) 
– A
ttra
ct 
dif
fer
en
t ty
pe
s o
f p
rem

ise
s t
o o
ffe
r fa
mi
ly 
ori
en
tat
ed
 en
ter
tai
nm
en
t s
uc
h a
s l
ate
 ni
gh
t c
off
ee
 sh
op
s, 

ca
fes
, e
tc.
 in
 lia
iso
n w
ith
 th
e L
ice
ns
ing
 Bo
ard
, U
nig
ht,
 Sa
fer
 Ab
erd
ee
n F
oru
m 
an
d E
co
no
mi
c D
ev
elo
pm
en
t s
taf
f. 

   co
mm

itte
es

/ab
erd

ee
n l

oc
al 

lice
ns

ing
 fo

rum
/N

ote
s/w

ork
pla

n m
ay

 20
13
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Further Options for Alcohol Licensing 
– Consultation Paper 

Agenda Item 1.5

Page 21



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

 !"#$"#%&& & & & & & '()$&"*+,$-&&
&

./"/%#$-/(0&1!-$2!-3&&& & & & & 4&
&
5&6&7"#-!3*8#/!"&&& & & & & & 9&

&
:&6&'-!;!%(0%&#!&%#-$")#<$"&#<$&;!2$-%&!=&& & >&
?/8$"%/")&@!(-3%&("3&#<$&'!0/8$&

&
4&6&'-!;!%(0%&#!&/+;-!A$&#<$&$==$8#/A$"$%%&&& :4&
!=&#<$&0/8$"%/")&-$)/+$&&

&
B&C& !"80*%/!"&&& & & & & & B:&

&
D0!%%(-E& & & & & & & & B4&

&
FGGHI&FJ&K$%;!"3/")&#!&#<$&8!"%*0#(#/!"&&& B>&

&
FGGHI&@J&L<$&M8!##/%<&D!A$-"+$"#&& & & BN&
8!"%*0#(#/!"&;-!8$%%&

&
FGGHI& J& !"%*0#(#/!"&O*$%#/!""(/-$&& & 95&
P/"80*3/")&K$%;!"3$"#&7"=!-+(#/!"&1!-+Q&

&
FGGHI&RJ&&?/%#&!=&8!"%*0#$$%&&& & & & S5&

Page 22



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

 !"!#$%&!'()*+&%,+&-)
)

)
)
3)#$&#$%&4)/%*+)*0&56/'#.-*78&9/#&:;;<&-*7&+!=+%>!%*#&?%-+!"%+@&
='#$&)*&#%"?+&',&(")?-"A&59/#+8&-*7&+%/'*7-"A&.%0)+.-#)'*&566B+&-*7&
"%0!.-#)'*+8&#$%&(-+#&,%C&A%-"+&$-D%&+%%*&?-E'"&"%,'"?+&#'&#$%&
-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)?%F&&
&
3%&,!..A&"%/'0*)+%&#$%&%*%"0A&-*7&/'??)#?%*#&,"'?&#"-7%@&
G'-"7+@&46H+@&#$%&('.)/%&-*7&'#$%"+&)*&=")*0)*0&)*&#$)+&*%C&"%0)?%&
-*7&?-I)*0&)#&C'"IF&J'C%D%"&C%&-"%&-.+'&C)..)*0&#'&.)+#%*&#'&#$%)"&
/'*/%"*+&-='!#&C$%"%&#$%A&-"%&%K(%")%*/)*0&7),,)/!.#)%+@&'"&C$%"%&
#$%&.%0)+.-#)'*&)+&!*/.%-"&'"&)*%,,%/#)D%F&&&
&
3%&$-D%&#$%"%,'"%&/-"%,!..A&/'*+)7%"%7&C$-#&#$%&#"-7%@&G'-"7+@&
#$%&('.)/%@&4)/%*+)*0&G'-"7&/.%"I+@&-*7&'#$%"+@&$-D%&#'.7&!+F&3%&
$-D%&-.+'&/'*+)7%"%7&#$%&,)*7)*0+&',&C'"I&.)I%&#$%&LJ6&J%-.#$&
6/'#.-*7&"%+%-"/$&#'&%D-.!-#%&#$%&"%0)?%&-*7&#$%&E')*#&"%('"#&=A&
9./'$'.& '/!+&6/'#.-*7&-*7&6/'##)+$&J%-.#$&9/#)'*&'*&9./'$'.&
M"'=.%?+&'*&NO%#$)*I)*0&9./'$'.&4)/%*+)*0PF&&
&
3%&$-D%&7%D%.'(%7&-&+%")%+&',&("'('+-.+&#'&-77"%++&#$%+%&
/'*/%"*+F&Q$%+%&("'('+-.+&$-D%&=%%*&0"'!(%7&!*7%"&#C'&#$%?%+@&
("'('+-.+&#'&+#"%*0#$%*&#$%&('C%"+&',&4)/%*+)*0&G'-"7+&-*7&#$%&
('.)/%@&-*7&("'('+-.+&#'&)?("'D%&#$%&%,,%/#)D%*%++&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&
"%0)?%F&B*&-77)#)'*&C%&-*#)/)(-#%&#$-#&#$%+%&("'('+-.+&C)..&
/'*#")=!#%&#'&'!"&'D%"-..&-)?+&',&-77"%++)*0&#$%&("'=.%?+&',&
-./'$'.&?)+!+%@&C$).%&?)*)?)+)*0&#$%&=!"7%*+&'*&#$%&.%0)#)?-#%&
#"-7%&-*7&"%0!.-#'"+F&&
&
Q$)+&C'"I&%K)+#+&)*&-&C)7%"&/'*#%K#@&C%&-"%&.%-7)*0&#$%&RS&C)#$&'!"&
C'"I&#'&-77"%++&-./'$'.&?)+!+%&#$"'!0$&)*#"'7!/)*0&?)*)?!?&

Page 23



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

(")/)*03&4$).%&4%&-"%&-55"%++)*0&#$%&)6(-/#&'*&#"-5%&-*5&
"%0!.-#'"+&#$"'!0$&'!"&'*0')*0&4'"7&#'&"%8)%4&,%%+3&!(5-#%&#$%&
0!)5-*/%&,'"&.)/%*+)*0&9'-"5+&-*5&9")*0&,'"4-"5&-&:%##%"&
;%0!.-#)'*&:)..<&
&
=%&4'!.5&4%./'6%&>'!"&8)%4+&'*&#$%+%&("'('+-.+<&?!"&8)%4+&-"%&
*'#&,)@%5&-*5&4%&-"%&/'66)##%5&#'&-*&'(%*&-*5&("'5!/#)8%&
5)+/!++)'*&'*&#$%+%&("'('+-.+<&
&

&
 !""#$%&'()*+,,$%-.$
/&0+"!1$-!'2!1&2#$342$56)1+'!$$

Page 24



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

 !"#$%&'(')'*+$&,-./$0,+''
&
34& 5$%&6)/%*+)*0&78/'#.-*9:&;/#&<==2>&9"%?&'*&#$%&?'"@&',&#$%&
A)/$'.+'*&-*9&B-*)%.+&C'DD)##%%+>&,!..E&/'D)*0&)*#'&%,,%/#&'*&3&
8%(#%DF%"&<==G4&8)*/%&#$%*&)#&$-+&F%%*&!(9-#%9&FE&#$%&;./'$'.&
%#/4&78/'#.-*9:&;/#&<=3=&-*9&#$%&C")D)*-.&H!+#)/%&-*9&6)/%*+)*0&
78/'#.-*9:&;/#&<=3=>&-+&?%..&-+&"%.%I-*#&+%/'*9-"E&.%0)+.-#)'*4&&
&
<4& 5$%+%&D%-+!"%+&$-I%&9%.)I%"%9&+)0*),)/-*#&)D("'I%D%*#+&
)*&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0>&F!#&#$%&(-/%&',&.%0)+.-#)I%&/$-*0%&$-+&/"%-#%9&
)++!%+&',&)#+&'?*4&A'#&-..&-+(%/#+&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)D%&-"%&
?'"@)*0&%,,%/#)I%.E&-*9&+#-@%$'.9%"+&+!/$&-+&#$%&('.)/%&-*9&.'/-.&
-!#$'")#)%+&$-I%&$)0$.)0$#%9&-"%-+&#$-#&"%J!)"%&-##%*#)'*4&C'*/%"*+&
$-I%&F%%*&"-)+%9&-"'!*9&+!/$&)++!%+&-+&?$%#$%"&#$%&<=33&
K")0$#/"%?&9%/)+)'*&.)D)#+&#$%&-F).)#E&',&K'-"9+&#'&/'*+)9%"&?)9%"&
)++!%+>&#$%&#"%-#D%*#&',&D%DF%"+L&/.!F+&-*9&("'/%9!"%+&-#&
6)/%*+)*0&K'-"9+4&&
&
M4& N%&-"%&-.+'&@%%*&#'&+#"%*0#$%*&#$%&('?%"+&',&6)/%*+)*0&
K'-"9+&-*9&#$%&('.)/%>&-*9&-"%&+%%@)*0&I)%?+&'*&("'('+-.+&#'&
/")D)*-.)+%&#$%&+!((.E&',&-./'$'.&#'&!*9%"&3O+&)*&-&(!F.)/&(.-/%>&
D-@)*0&)#&%-+)%"&#'&-99"%++&("'PE&+-.%+&',&-./'$'.&-*9&0)I)*0&#$%&
('.)/%&-*9&K'-"9+&('?%"+&#'&)D('+%&"%+#")/#)'*+&'*&.)/%*+%9&
("%D)+%+&?$%"%&9)+'"9%"&)+&.)@%.E&#'&'//!"4&&
&
Q4& R*&-99)#)'*>&?%&"%D-)*&/'DD)##%9&#'&-99"%++)*0&#$%&)++!%&',&
-./'$'.&D)+!+%>&,'"&%P-D(.%&#$"'!0$&("'('+-.+&#'&+#"%*0#$%*&#$%&
"%J!)"%D%*#&'*&K'-"9+&#'&-++%++&'I%"("'I)+)'*4&&
&
24& 5$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&)+&-&+)*0.%&/'D('*%*#&?)#$)*&-&
("'0"-DD%&',&?'"@&#'&!(9-#%&-*9&)D("'I%&#$%&.%0)+.-#)'*&)*&
"%.-#)'*&#'&.)/%*+)*04&5$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&,'"&-&K%##%"&S%0!.-#)'*&K)..&
/'*/.!9%9&'*&<T#$&U/#'F%">&#$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&'*&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&',&
#-P)+&-*9&(")I-#%&$)"%&/-"+&/'DD%*/%9&'*&<O#$&A'I%DF%"4&N'"@&)+&
-."%-9E&'*0')*0&#'&"%I)%?&#$%&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&,%%+&"%0)D%&-*9&
!(9-#%&#$%&0!)9-*/%&#'&6)/%*+)*0&K'-"9+4&&
&
T4& N%&?'!.9&?%./'D%&E'!"&I)%?+&'*&#$%+%&("'('+-.+>&
"%/'0*)+)*0&#$-#&,'"&+'D%&(%'(.%&'*.E&-&,%?&',&#$%+%&("'('+-.+&
D)0$#&F%&',&)*#%"%+#4&S%+('*9%*#+&-"%&?%./'D%&#'&"%+('*9&'*&-+&
D-*E&'"&-+&,%?&J!%+#)'*+&-+&#$%E&?-*#&#'4&R#&)+&$'?%I%"&I)#-.&#$-#&
#$%&S%+('*9%*#&R*,'"D-#)'*& '"D&)+&,!..E&/'D(.%#%9&?)#$&-*E&
"%+('*+%>&)#&?'!.9&-.+'&F%&!+%,!.&#'&@*'?&'*&?$-#&F-+)+&E'!&-"%&
"%+('*9)*04&&
&

Page 25



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

34&  )*-..56&)*&'"7%"&#'&-++)+#&8)#$&#$%&-*-.5+)+&',&#$)+&
/'*+!.#-#)'*6&/-*&5'!&)*7)/-#%&8$%#$%"&5'!&-"%&"%+('*7)*0&'*&
9%$-.,&',&-&(-"#)/!.-"&9!+)*%++&#5(%&',&9!+)*%++&'"&'"0-*)+-#)'*4&&
&
 !" #$%"&'("$%)*'+,-+."/)"/+0"
:-;& )*7)<)7!-.&
:9;& (")=-").5&'*>#"-7%&9!+)*%++&
:/;&& (")=-").5&',,>#"-7%&9!+)*%++&
:7;& =%=9%"+?&/.!9&
:%;& .'/-.&-!#$'")#5&&
:,;& -*'#$%"&9!+)*%++&'"&'"0-*)+-#)'*6&(.%-+%&+(%/),5&
&

Page 26



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

 !"#$%&'(')'*&+#+,"-,'$+',$&%./$!%.'$!%'#+0%&,'+1'234%.,3./'
5+"&6,'".6'$!%'#+-34%'
&

34&  !"#$%"&/")5)*-.)+)*0&#$%&+!((.6&',&-./'$'.&#'&!*7%"&38+&
9&%:#%*7&%:)+#)*0&/")5)*-.&.-;&#'&/'<%"&#$%&+!((.6&',&
-./'$'.&#'&!*7%"938+&)*&-&(!=.)/&(.-/%4&&

&
>4& ?%+#")/#)'*+&;$%"%&7)+'"7%"&)+&.)@%.6&#'&'//!"&1&
('.)/%&(';%"+&'

&
A4& ?%+#")/#)'*+&;$%"%&7)+'"7%"&)+&.)@%.6&#'&'//!"&1&
B)/%*+)*0&C'-"7&(';%"+&&

&
D4& E*-=.%&B)/%*+)*0&C'-"7+&#'&-((.6&*%;&.'/-.&.)/%*+)*0&
/'*7)#)'*+&#'&-..&%:)+#)*0&.)/%*+%7&("%5)+%+&;)#$'!#&#$%&
*%%7&#'&!(7-#%&)*7)<)7!-.&.)/%*/%+4&&

&
F4& ?%)*#"'7!/#)'*&',&#$%&G )#&-*7&H"'(%"I&#%+#&9&B)/%*+)*0&
C'-"7+&-"%&/!""%*#.6&.)5)#%7&#'&/'*+)7%")*0&"%.%<-*#&
/'*<)/#)'*+&*'#),)%7&=6&#$%&J$)%,&J'*+#-=.%&;$%*&
7%#%"5)*)*0&;$%#$%"&+'5%'*%&+$'!.7&=%&0"-*#%7&-&
(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%4&&

&
K4& H.-/%&-&+#-#!#'"6&7!#6&'*&B)/%*+)*0&C'-"7+&#'&("'5'#%&
#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'=L%/#)<%+4&&&

&
24& H.-/%&-&+#-#!#'"6&7!#6&'*&B)/%*+)*0&C'-"7+&#'&"%('"#&
-**!-..6&'*&$';&#$%&='-"7&,!.,)..%7&)#+&7!#6&#'&("'5'#%&
%-/$&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'=L%/#)<%+&

&
84& H.-/%&-&+#-#!#'"6&7!#6&'*&B)/%*+)*0&C'-"7+&#'&0-#$%"&
-*7&-++%++&)*,'"5-#)'*&'*&%-/$&',&#$%&,)<%&.)/%*+)*0&
'=L%/#)<%+&)*&#$%&>MMF&N/#&)*&#$%&("%(-"-#)'*&',&#$%)"&
+#-#%5%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/64&&

&
O4& E:#%*7&#$%&(%")'7&#$-#&-&+#-#%5%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/6&)+&
)*&,'"/%&#'&,)<%&6%-"+&-*7&)*#"'7!/%&-&+#-#!#'"6&'!+#%"&
.)5)#)*0&-((%-.+&-0-)*+#&-*&-7'(#%7&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/6&
+#-#%5%*#&'!#+)7%&)#+&)*#"'7!/#'"6&(%")'74&&&

&
3M4& J'*+)7%"-#)'*&',&E*0.)+$&B-*0!-0%&-=).)#6&&

&

Page 27



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

 !"#"$%&'(')'*+!,-.!'/!0102%&0$023',-.'$+##&4'"5'%&/"-"&',"'
+26.!'(7$')'.8,.26'.80$,023'/!0102%&'&%9',"'/":.!',-.'$+##&4'"5'
%&/"-"&',"'+26.!)(7$'02'%'#+;&0/'#&%/.<'
'
23& 4$%&567&8-*),%+#'&)*/.!9%9&-&/'88)#8%*#&#'&#-:%&,'";-"9&
-/#)'*&-+&,'..';+3&&
&

<=%&;)..&-.+'&/.-8(&9';*&'*&#$'+%&-9!.#+&;$'&+!((.>&
?''@%&#'&:)9+3&A&.%0-.&.''($'.%&8%-*+&#$-#&-9!.#+&/-*&?!>&
-./'$'.&,'"&+'8%'*%&!*9%"&#$%&-0%&',&B2&),&#$%&-./'$'.&)+&
/'*+!8%9&)*&(!?.)/3&4$)+&%*/'!"-0%+&'!#9''"&9")*:)*0&
9%*+&',&>'!*0&(%'(.%C&;$%"%&#$'+%&)*&#$%&0"'!(&;$'&-"%&
'D%"&B2&?!>&-./'$'.&,'"&>'!*0%"&8%8?%"+3&=%&;)..&/.'+%&
#$)+&.''($'.%&-*9&0)D%&#$%&('.)/%&#$%&(';%"&#$%>&*%%9&#'&
9)+"!(#&#$%+%&9")*:)*0&9%*+3E&

&
F3& ='":)*0&)*&/'*G!*/#)'*&;)#$&%-".>&)*#%"D%*#)'*&/-8(-)0*+&#'&
-99"%++&!*9%"-0%&9")*:)*0&-*9&"%9!/%&-./'$'.&,!%..%9&-*#)H+'/)-.&
?%$-D)'!"&-*9&D)'.%*/%C&#$%&('.)/%&-"%&-?.%&#'&/'*,)+/-#%&-./'$'.&
,"'8&/$).9"%*&-*9&>'!*0&(%'(.%&)*#%*#&'*&9")*:)*0&)*&(!?.)/&(.-/%+&
-*9&,"'8&-9!.#+&+!((.>)*0&-./'$'.&#'&/$).9&-*9&>'!*0&(%'(.%&,'"&
/'*+!8(#)'*&)*&(!?.)/&(.-/%+3&&4$%>&9%+/")?%&#$)+&-(("'-/$&-+&
<(!##)*0&'!#&#$%&,)"%&?>&"%8'D)*0&#$%&,!%.E3&I!")*0&#$%+%&/-8(-)0*+&
5#"-#$/.>9%&7'.)/%&,'!*9&#$%&8-G'")#>&',&J'!#9''"&9")*:)*0&9%*+K&
/'*+)+#%9&',&+8-..&/.!+#%"+&',&(%'(.%&"-*0)*0&)*&-0%+&,"'8&BL&#'&MB3&
N*&8-*>&/-+%+&#$'+%&'D%"&B2&;%"%&#$%&+!((.)%"+&',&-./'$'.&#'&#$'+%&
!*9%"&B23&&&
&
BO3& 4$%"%&-"%&%P)+#)*0&',,%*/%+&!*9%"&#$%&Q)/%*+)*0&R5/'#.-*9S&
A/#&MOOTC&+%/#)'*&BOT&"%.-#)*0&#'&?!>)*0&-./'$'.&'*&?%$-.,&',&-&/$).9&
'"&>'!*0&(%"+'*&'"&,'"&/'*+!8(#)'*&'*&.)/%*+%9&("%8)+%+3&Q'/-.&
?>%.-;+C&+%#&?>&.'/-.&-!#$'")#)%+C&/-*&-.+'&8-:%&)#&-*&',,%*/%&#'&
9")*:&)*&(!?.)/C&$';%D%"&#$%+%&9'&*'#&-((.>&-/"'++&-..&',&5/'#.-*9&
-*9&#$%>&'(%"-#%&9),,%"%*#.>&)*&9),,%"%*#&-"%-+3&
&
BB3& =$%*&5#"-#$/.>9%&7'.)/%&/'*,)+/-#%9&#$%&-./'$'.&#$%>&,'!*9&
#$%>&;%"%&(';%".%++&#'&+#'(&#$'+%&'D%"&B2&+)8(.>&?!>)*0&-*9&
+$-")*0&8'"%&-./'$'.&;$)/$&.%9&#'&-&/'*#)*!)*0&/>/.%&',&
/'*,)+/-#)'*&-*9&(!"/$-+)*03&&4$%&('.)/%&;%"%&!*-?.%&#'&#-:%&-*>&
,!"#$%"&-/#)'*&?%/-!+%&)#&)+&*'#C&)*&)#+%.,C&-0-)*+#&#$%&/")8)*-.&.-;&#'&
0)D%&-./'$'.&#'&+'8%'*%&!*9%"&B2&,'"&/'*+!8(#)'*&)*&-&(!?.)/&
(.-/%3&&&
&

Page 28



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
2&

345& 6%&7%.)%8%&#$-#&#$%&/")9)*-.&.-:&+$'!.;&9-<%&)#&)..%0-.&#'&
+!((.=&-./'$'.&#'&-&(%"+'*&!*;%"&3>&,'"&/'*+!9(#)'*&)*&-&(!7.)/&
(.-/%5&?$)+&9-=&7%&-/$)%8%;&%)#$%"&#$"'!0$&#$%&/"%-#)'*&',&-&*%:&
+(%/),)/&',,%*/%&'"&-;-(#)*0&#$%&%@)+#)*0&+%/#)'*&3AB&',,%*/%&
/'*#-)*%;&:)#$)*&#$%&4AAB&C/#5&6%&/'*+);%"&#$-#&#$%&.-:&+$'!.;&*'#&
9-<%&-*=&%@%9(#)'*+5&?$)+&:'!.;&-++)+#&)*&-;;"%++)*0&!*;%"D-0%&
;")*<)*05&
&
3E5& F!/$&-&/$-*0%&:'!.;G&,'"&%@-9(.%G&/")9)*-.)+%&(-"%*#+&:$'&
+%"8%;&-./'$'.&#'&#$%)"&/$).;"%*&-#G&,'"&%@-9(.%G&,-9).=&()/*)/+&)*&
(!7.)/&(.-/%+5&H':%8%"&:%&:'!.;&%@(%/#&#$-#&('.)/%&-*;&
("'+%/!#'"+&:'!.;&!+%&#$%)"&;)+/"%#)'*&#'&-8');&'8%"DI%-.'!+&
%*,'"/%9%*#5&
 
!"#$#%&' ( 
 
(5& )"*+*,&'*%- %.$$'/*,0 &'1#2#' 3# & $-"%#, .,4-" (5 6#" 
1#,%.+$3*#, *, & $.7'*1 $'&1-8 
 
 
9.-%3*#,%  
 
:8 ;# /#. &0"-- 32&3 *3 %2#.'4 7- *''-0&' 6#" &4.'3% 3# %.$$'/ 
&'1#2#' 3# &, .,4-" (5 6#" 1#,%.+$3*#, *, & $.7'*1 $'&1-<  
 
=8 >"- 32-"- %$-1*6*1 1*"1.+%3&,1-% *, ?2*12 32*% %2#.'4 
,#3 7- *''-0&'< 
&

Page 29



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')'' *+$,!-.,-"/$'01+!+'2-$"!2+!'-$'&-3+&4',"'"..5!'
6' "&-.+'#"0+!$''
&
245& 6$%&7')*#&8/#)'*&9"'!(&:789;&'*& ''#<-..&$-+&-0"%%=&#$-#&
-./'$'.&,!%.+&>!/$&',&#$%&?)'.%*/%&-*=&=)+'"=%"&-++'/)-#%=&@)#$&
,''#<-..&-*=&,%.#&#$-#&>'"%&*%%=+&#'&<%&='*%&#'&"%+#")/#&-//%++&#'&
-./'$'.&<%,'"%A&=!")*0&-*=&-,#%"&,''#<-..&>-#/$%+5&6$%&789&
("'('+%=&#$%&)*#"'=!/#)'*&',&.%0)+.-#)'*&+)>).-"&#'&#$%&B)/%*+)*0&8/#&
C33D&+%/#)'*&2E3A&:%,,%/#)?%&)*&F*0.-*=&-*=&G-.%+;&@$)/$&@'!.=&
-..'@&-&+%*)'"&('.)/%&',,)/%"&#'&-((.H&#'&-&/'!"#&"%I!%+#)*0&#$%&
)>('+)#)'*&',&"%+#")/#)'*+&'*&.)/%*+%=&("%>)+%+&@)#$)*&-*&-"%-&
@$%"%&=)+'"=%"&)+&.)J%.H&#'&'//!"A&,'"&%K->(.%&@)#$)*&#$%&?)/)*)#H&',&-&
,''#<-..&+#-=)!>&<%,'"%A&-,#%"&-*=&=!")*0&-&$)0$&")+J&>-#/$5&&
&
2L5& M%/#)'*&2E3&',&#$%&B)/%*+)*0&8/#&C33DA&("'?)=%+&('.)/%&
',,)/%"+&)*&F*0.-*=&-*=&G-.%+&@)#$&#$%&('@%"&#'&-((.H&#'&/'!"#&,'"&
-*&'"=%"&"%I!)")*0&-..&.)/%*+%=&("%>)+%+&@$)/$&-"%&+)#!-#%=&-#&'"&
*%-"&#$%&(.-/%&',&=)+'"=%"A&'"&-*#)/)(-#%=&=)+'"=%"A&#'&<%&/.'+%=&,'"&
-&(%")'=&',&!(&#'&C4&$'!"+5&6$%&0!)=-*/%&+!(('"#)*0&#$)+&.%0)+.-#)'*&
$)0$.)0$#+&#$-#&%?%*#+&@$)/$&>)0$#&N!+#),H&-/#)'*&!*=%"&+%/#)'*&2E3&
/'!.=&)*/.!=%&,''#<-..&,)K#!"%+&@)#$&-&$)+#'"H&',&(!<.)/&'"=%"&
("'<.%>+5&G$%*&+%%J)*0&-*&'"=%"&!*=%"&+%/#)'*&2E3A&#$%&<!"=%*&
',&("'',&,-..+&'*&#$%&('.)/%&#'&+-#)+,H&#$%&/'!"#&#$-#&#$%)"&)*#%..)0%*/%&
'"&%?)=%*/%&)+&+!,,)/)%*#&#'&=%>'*+#"-#%&#$-#&+!/$&-/#)'*&)+&
*%/%++-"H5&&
&
2E5& 6$%&-)>&',&#$%&("'('+-.&)+&#'&"%=!/%&-?-).-<).)#H&',&-./'$'.&
-"'!*=&%?%*#+&+!/$&-+&,''#<-..&>-#/$%+&-*=&#$%"%,'"%&#'&$-?%&-*&
)>(-/#&'*&"%=!/)*0&-./'$'.O"%.-#%=&=)+'"=%"5&P#&>-H&-.+'&$%.(&@)#$&
=)+(%"+-.&',&+!(('"#%"+&,'..'@)*0&-&,''#<-..&>-#/$&1&+'>%#$)*0&
@$)/$&#$%&('.)/%&$-?%&$)0$.)0$#%=&-+&-*&)++!%5&6$%&("'('+-.&/'!.=&
-.+'&<%&-((.)%=&#'&>-"/$%+&'"&'#$%"&%?%*#+&.)J%.H&#'&<%&-++'/)-#%=&
@)#$&+)0*),)/-*#&=)+'"=%"5&&P#&)+&"%/'0*)+%=A&$'@%?%"A&#$-#&#$)+&
("'('+-.&@'!.=&"-)+%&+)0*),)/-*#&/'*/%"*+&->'*0+#&%+#-<.)+$>%*#+&
.'/-#%=&/.'+%&#'&+'>%&,''#<-..&0"'!*=+5&
&
2Q5& R!""%*#.H&)*&M/'#.-*=A&('.)/%&$-?%&#$%&('@%"+A&!*=%"&
+%/#)'*&SQ&',&#$%&B)/%*+)*0&:M/'#.-*=;&8/#&C33LA&#'&-((.H&#'&-&
B)/%*+)*0&T'-"=&#'&/.'+%&)*=)?)=!-.&.)/%*+%=&("%>)+%+&)*&#$%&
)*#%"%+#+&',&(!<.)/&+-,%#H5&6$)+&("'('+-.&@'!.=&%K#%*=&<%H'*=&
)*=)?)=!-.&("%>)+%+&#'&/'?%"&-..&#$%&("%>)+%+&)*&-&+(%/),)%=&
0%'0"-($)/-.&-"%-5&
&

Page 30



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
22&

 !"#"$%&'('
'
)*+,'-.,'#"&*/,'#"0,!$'-"'*1#"$,'!,$-!*/-*"2$'"2'&*/,2$,3'
#!,1*$,$4'5"-.'-.,'"2'%23'"66'-!%3,4'0*-.*2'%2'%!,%'0.,!,'
3*$"!3,!'*$'&*7,&8'-"'"//9!''
&
&
:9,$-*"2$''
'
;<' =",$'$,/-*"2'>?'6"!1'%'$9*-%5&,'5%$*$'"2'0.*/.'-"'
#!"+*3,',@-,23,3'#"&*/,'#"0,!A''
'
B<' C."9&3'-.,'#!"/,39!,'923,!'$>?'5,',@-,23,3'-"'%&&"0'
-.,'#"&*/,'-"'%##&8'-"'-.,'D"%!3'6"!'-.,'/&"$9!,'"6'#!,1*$,$'
0*-.*2'%'E,"E!%#.*/%&'%!,%4'"!'$."9&3'-.,'#"&*/,'*2$-,%3'.%+,'
-"'%##&8'-"'-.,'C.,!*66'6"!'%##!"+%&'"6'!,$-!*/-*"2$'*2'%'0*3,!'
E,"E!%#.*/%&'%!,%A''
'
F<' C."9&3',@/,#-*"2$'5,'%&&"0,3'0*-.*2'-.,'E,"E!%#.*/%&'
%!,%4'6"!',@%1#&,'6"!'#!,G%!!%2E,3'0,33*2E'!,/,#-*"2$4'
3*!,/-"!$H'5"@,$I/"!#"!%-,'."$#*-%&*-84',-/<A'

Page 31



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')' *+$,!-.,-"/$'01+!+'2-$"!2+!'-$'&-3+&4',"'"..5!'
6'7-.+/$-/8'9"%!2'#"0+!$''
&
245& 6$%&7')*#&8/#)'*&9"'!(&:789;&'*& ''#<-..&-.+'&("'('+%=&
#$-#&>'-"=+&+$'!.=&<%&-<.%&#'&)?('+%&-==)#)'*-.&/'*=)#)'*+&#'&-((.@&
A-")-#)'*+&#'&'(%*)*0&$'!"+&,'"&+'?%&'"&-..&.)/%*+%=&("%?)+%+&#'&
"%+#")/#&#$%&+-.%&',&-./'$'.&-"'!*=&,''#<-..&?-#/$%+&
&
2B5& 6$%"%&C'!.=&$-A%&#'&<%&+)0*),)/-*#&")+D&<%,'"%&#$)+&("'('+-.&
C-+&!#).)+%=5&6$%&-)?&',&#$)+&"%/'??%*=-#)'*&)+&#'&$%.(&#'&"%=!/%&
-A-).-<).)#@&',&-./'$'.&-"'!*=&,''#<-..&?-#/$%+5&&
&
3E5& F%/#)'*&2E&',&#$%&8./'$'.&%#/5&:F/'#.-*=;&8/#&3E2E&)*+%"#%=&
-&*%C&+%/#)'*&3G8&)*#'&#$%&3EEH&8/#&C$)/$&%*-<.%=&I)/%*+)*0&
>'-"=+&#'&A-"@&#$%&/'*=)#)'*+&',&)*=)A)=!-.&("%?)+%+&.)/%*/%+&)*&
"%+(%/#&',&-..&#$%&("%?)+%+&)*&)#+&-"%-&'"&A-"@&-&0"'!(&',&.)/%*/%+&)*&
"%+(%/#&',&?-##%"+&("%+/")<%=&<@&#$%&F/'##)+$&J)*)+#%"+5&8&>'-"=&
C)..&'*.@&<%&-<.%&#'&%K%"/)+%&#$%&('C%"&),&)#&/'*+)=%"+&)#&*%/%++-"@&
'"&%K(%=)%*#&,'"&#$%&(!"('+%+&',&-*@&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'<L%/#)A%+&-*=&
)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&?-##%"+&("%+/")<%=&)*&"%0!.-#)'*5&F/'##)+$&J)*)+#%"+&
/'!.=&#$%"%,'"%&.-@&"%0!.-#)'*+&#'&-..'C&>'-"=+&#'&"%+#")/#&'(%*)*0&
$'!"+&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&+(%/),)%=&?-##%"+5&F%/#)'*&3G8&"%M!)"%+&>'-"=+&
#'&(!<.)+$&-&*'#)/%&',&-*@&("'('+%=&A-")-#)'*N&+#-#)*0&#$-#&-*@&
(%"+'*+&?-@&?-D%&"%("%+%*#-#)'*+&#'&#$%&("'('+%=&A-")-#)'*&-*=&
#$%+%&C'!.=&#")00%"&-&$%-")*05&
&
325& 6$%&#)?%&"%M!)"%=&<@&#$%+%&("'/%=!"%+&?-D%&)#&!*.)D%.@&#$-#&
+%/#)'*&3G8&/'!.=&<%&!+%=&,'"&-*&)??)*%*#&?-#/$5&O'C%A%"&-&
/'*=)#)'*&/'!.=&<%&-((.)%=&"%.-#)*0&#'&-..&?-#/$%+N&$'?%&?-#/$%+N&
=%"<@&?-#/$%+N&'"&'#$%"&%A%*#&.)D%.@&#'&#")00%"&=)+'"=%"N&("'A)=%=&-&
/.%-"&=%,)*)#)'*&/'!.=&<%&("'A)=%=5&&
&
335& P#&C'!.=&<%&%K/%%=)*0.@&=),,)/!.#&,'"&-&>'-"=&#'&=%A)+%&-&
/'*=)#)'*&#$-#&+%"A%=&#$%&)*#%*=%=&(!"('+%N&C)#$'!#&<%)*0&!*=!.@&
'*%"'!+5&Q*/%&#$%&/'*=)#)'*&)+&)?('+%=N&)#&/'!.=&*'#&%-+).@&<%&
/$-*0%=&'"&"%.-K%=N&-*=&-&<"%-/$&C'!.=&<%&-*&',,%*/%5&
&

Page 32



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
)"%!*$'$+",&*'-.'%-&.'/"'01#"$.'%**0/0"2%&'3"2*0/0"2$'/"'
%##&4'5%!0%/0"2$'/"'"#.2026'+",!$'7"!'$"1.'"!'%&&'&03.2$.*'
#!.10$.$'/"'!.$/!03/'/+.'$%&.'"7'%&3"+"&'%!",2*'7""/-%&&'
1%/3+.$'"!'"/+.!'.5.2/$'&08.&4'/"'-.'%$$"30%/.*'90/+'*0$"!*.!'
&
&
:;' <+",&*')"%!*$'-.'%-&.'/"'01#"$.'%**0/0"2%&'3"2*0/0"2$'
/"'%##&4'5%!0%/0"2$'/"'"#.2026'+",!$'7"!'$"1.'"!'%&&'&03.2$.*'
#!.10$.$'/"'!.$/!03/'/+.'$%&.'"7'%&3"+"&'%!",2*'7""/-%&&'
1%/3+.$'"!'"/+.!'.5.2/$'&08.&4'/"'-.'%$$"30%/.*'90/+'*0$"!*.!='
'
>;' ?"'4",'+%5.'3"23.!2$'%-",/'/+0$'#!"#"$%&@'%2*'07'$"@'
9+%/'%!.'/+.4='
'
&

Page 33



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')'' *%!+%,+"-'".'&"/%&'&+/0-$+-1'/"-2+,+"-$'''
&
456& 7+&8%#-).%8&-9':%&-#&;"'('+-.&5<&+%/#)'*&2=&',&#$%&7./'$'.&
%#/6&>?/'#.-*8@&7/#&4=2=&)*+%"#%8&-&*%A&+%/#)'*&4B7&)*#'&#$%&4==C&
7/#&A$)/$&%*-9.%8&D)/%*+)*0&E'-"8+&#'&:-"F&#$%&/'*8)#)'*+&',&
("%G)+%+&.)/%*/%+&)*&"%+(%/#&',&-..&#$%&("%G)+%+&)*&)#+&-"%-&'"&:-"F&
-&0"'!(&',&.)/%*/%+<&)*&"%+(%/#&',&G-##%"+&("%+/")9%8&9F&#$%&
?/'##)+$&H)*)+#%"+6&&
&
436& ?%/#)'*&4B7&-+&)*#"'8!/%8&("%:%*#+&E'-"8+&,"'G&-##-/$)*0&
/'*8)#)'*+&!*.%++&#$%F&-"%&("%+/")9%8&9F&?/'##)+$&H)*)+#%"+6&&
&
4C6& I$).+#&)#&G-F&9%&('++)9.%&,'"&H)*)+#%"+&#'&("%+/")9%&-&A)8%&
"-*0%&',&/'*8)#)'*+&#$)+&('#%*#)-..F&("%:%*#+&E'-"8+&,"'G&8%-.)*0&
A)#$&)++!%+&-#&-&.'/-.&.%:%.6&J#&)+&#$%"%,'"%&("'('+%8&#'&"%G':%&#$%&
"%+#")/#)'*&#'&G-##%"+&("%+/")9%8&9F&?/'##)+$&H)*)+#%"+6&
&
4K6& I%&A'!.8&%L(%/#&#$-#&-*F&)*#"'8!/#)'*&',&9.-*M%#&/'*8)#)'*+&
A'!.8&+#)..&$-:%&#'&9%&+!9N%/#&',&/'*+!.#-#)'*<&-*8&#$%&!+!-.&
/'*+#"-)*#+<&,'"&%L-G(.%&#$'+%&-#&+%/#)'*&4B>B@&-*8&+$'!.8&
!.#)G-#%.F&9%&)*/.!8%8&A)#$)*&-&E'-"8O+&?#-#%G%*#&',&;'.)/F6&&
&
4B6& 7.#$'!0$&)#&A'!.8&9%&'(%*&#'&#$%&E'-"8&#'&/-""F&'!#&A$-#&)+&
)*&%,,%/#&-&P9!.M&!(8-#%O&',&("%G)+%+&.)/%*/%+<&-*F&/$-*0%+&#'&#$%&
.%0)+.-#)'*&A'!.8&*%%8&#'&%*+!"%&#$-#&.)/%*/%&$'.8%"+&"%#-)*%8&#$%&
-9).)#F&#'&"%Q!)"%&-&$%-")*0&#'&/'*+)8%"&#$%&:-")-#)'*<&-*8&('++)9.F&-&
")0$#&',&-((%-.&#'&#$%&?$%"),,6&R$%&E'-"8&A'!.8&-.+'&*%%8&#'&%*+!"%&
#$-#&%L)+#)*0&("%G)+%+&.)/%*/%+&A%"%&($F+)/-..F&!(8-#%8<&#'&%*+!"%&
#$-#&!(S#'S8-#%&/'()%+&A%"%&$%.8&'*&.)/%*+%8&("%G)+%+6&&
&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
3-%4&0'5+/0-$+-1'6"%!2$',"'%##&7'-08'&"/%&'&+/0-$+-1'
/"-2+,+"-$',"'%&&'09+$,+-1'&+/0-$02'#!0:+$0$'8+,;"<,',;0'-002'
,"'<#2%,0'+-2+=+2<%&'&+/0-/0$>''
&
?<0$,+"-$''
'
@>' A;"<&2'6"%!2$'40'%4&0',"'%##&7'-08'&+/0-$+-1'
/"-2+,+"-$',"'%&&'09+$,+-1'&+/0-$02'#!0:+$0$'8+,;"<,',;0'-002'
,"'/"-$+20!'0%/;'+-2+=+2<%&'&+/0-/0B''
'
CD>' E;%,'#!"/02<!0'$;"<&2'%##&7'40."!0'$</;'/"-2+,+"-$'
%!0'%##&+02'%-2'8;%,'!+1;,$'".'%##0%&'8"<&2'40'%##!"#!+%,0B'

Page 34



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#"$%&'(')'' *+,'%-.'#!"#/!'
'
456& 7-*8&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)9%+&"%.8&'*&-&:,)#&-*;&("'(%"<&#%+#&-+&#'&
=$%#$%"&+'9%'*%&)+&+!)#->.%&#'&$'.;&-&.)/%*/%6&?*;%%;&#$%&("%@)'!+&
-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)9%&)*/.!;%;&-&:,)#&-*;&("'(%"<&#%+#6&A$%"%&)+&*'&
:,)#&-*;&("'(%"<&#%+#&!*;%"&#$%&4BB3&C/#D&@-")'!+&'#$%"&#%+#+&-"%&
-((.)%;D&,'"&%E-9(.%&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&-&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%&#$%&F$)%,&
F'*+#->.%&9-8&'>G%/#&#$-#&#$%&-((.)/-*#&)+&)*@'.@%;&)*&:+%")'!+&
'"0-*)+%;&/")9%<D&=$).%&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&>'#$&#$%&("%9)+%+&-*;&
(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&#$%&F$)%,&F'*+#->.%&+$'!.;&-;@)+%&=$%#$%"&#$%&
-((.)/-*#&$-+&>%%*&/'*@)/#%;&',&-*8&"%.%@-*#&',,%*/%&'"&,'"%)0*&
',,%*/%6&
&
4H6& A$%&/!""%*#&+8+#%9&',&"%.%@-*#&',,%*/%+&)+&/'9(.)/-#%;&-*;&
;),,)/!.#&,'"&9%9>%"+&',&#$%&#"-;%&#'&!*;%"+#-*;&=)#$'!#&+'9%&,'"9&
',&.%0-.&-++)+#-*/%6&A$%&)*/"%-+%;&!+%&',&I-.#%"*-#)@%+&#'&
("'+%/!#)'*J&-*;&I*'*&/'!"#&;)+('+-.+J&+(%/),)/-..8&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&
.)/%*+)*0&',,%*/%+D&)+&$-@)*0&-&;)"%/#&)9(-/#&'*&#$%&->).)#8&',&#$%&
('.)/%&#'&("%+%*#&"%.%@-*#&)*,'"9-#)'*&#'&K'-";+6&&&
&
LB6& ?#&)+&-"0!%;&#$-#&"%#!"*)*0&#'&-&:,)#&-*;&("'(%"<&#%+#&='!.;&
0)@%&#$%&('.)/%&0"%-#%"&+/'(%&#'&("%+%*#&)*,'"9-#)'*&#'&K'-";+D&-*;&
0)@%&K'-";+&#$%&->).)#8&#'&/'*+);%"&-&0"%-#%"&>"%-;#$&',&"%.%@-*#&
)*,'"9-#)'*&=$%*&;%#%"9)*)*0&-&.)/%*/%&-((.)/-#)'*6&
&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
0&&"1'2"%!.$',"'3"-$+./!'14/,4/!'%-'%##&+3%-,'+$'%'56+,'%-.'
#!"#/!7'#/!$"-',"'4"&.'%'&+3/-3/8'
&
&
9:/$,+"-$''
'
;;8' <4":&.',4/'&/=+$&%,+"-'>/'%?/-./.'$"',4%,'2"%!.$'%!/'
%$@/.',"'3"-$+./!'14/,4/!'%-'%##&+3%-,'+$'%'56+,'%-.'#!"#/!7'
#/!$"-A''
'
;B8' <4":&.',4/!/'>/'%'./6+-+,+"-'"6'56+,'%-.'#!"#/!7'%-.'+6'$"C'
14%,'$4":&.'+,'3"-$+$,'"6A'
'
&

Page 35



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')' !"*"+,"-'".'+/0'&,10-$,-2'"3401+,50$''
'
425& 6$)+&)+&-&"%/'77%*8-#)'*&7-8%&9:&;./'$'.& '/!+&</'#.-*8&
=; <>&-*8&</'##)+$&?%-.#$&;/#)'*&'*&;./'$'.&@"'9.%7+&=<?;;@>&)*&
#$%)"&"%('"#&AB%#$)*C)*0&;./'$'.&D)/%*+)*0E&(!9.)+$%8&<%(#%79%"&
FG22&#'&(.-/%&-&+#-#!#'":&'9.)0-#)'*&'*&.)/%*+)*0&9'-"8+&#'&("'7'#%&
#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'9H%/#)I%+5&
&
4F5& 6$%&FGGJ&;/#&("'I)8%+&#$-#&/%*#"-.&#'&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&',&
-./'$'.&)*&</'#.-*8&-"%&,)I%&A.)/%*+)*0&'9H%/#)I%+E5&&

=->&("%I%*#)*0&/")7%&-*8&8)+'"8%"K&&
=9>&+%/!")*0&(!9.)/&+-,%#:K&&
=/>&("%I%*#)*0&(!9.)/&*!)+-*/%K&&
=8>&("'#%/#)*0&-*8&)7("'I)*0&(!9.)/&$%-.#$K&-*8&&
=%>&("'#%/#)*0&/$).8"%*&,"'7&$-"75&&&&

&
445& ;#&("%+%*#&#$%&'9H%/#)I%+&("'I)8%&#$%&9-+)+&,'"&I-")'!+&
L'-"8&8%/)+)'*+&-*8&+$'!.8&9%&("'7'#%8&)*&#$%)"&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/:&
+#-#%7%*#+5&M#&)+&-"0!%8&#$-#&,!"#$%"&+#"%*0#$%*)*0&#$)+&#'&"%N!)"%&
L'-"8+&#'&("'7'#%&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'9H%/#)I%+&O'!.8&%*+!"%&#$-#&#$%&
'9H%/#)I%+&-"%&("'7'#%8&%-/$&#)7%&#$-#&#$%&L'-"8&%P%"/)+%+&)#+&
,!*/#)'*+&!*8%"&#$%&;/#5&
&
4Q5& 6$)+&O'!.8&9%&-C)*&#'&#$%&('+)#)'*&)*&#$%&D)/%*+)*0&;/#&FGG4&
,'"&R*0.-*8&-*8&S-.%+5&
&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
 &%10'%'$+%+6+"!7'"3&,2%+,"-'"-'8,10-$,-2'9"%!:$'+"'#!"*"+0'
+/0'&,10-$,-2'"3401+,50$;'
&
&
<60$+,"-$''
'
=>;' ?/"6&:'9"%!:$'30'#&%10:'6-:0!'%'$+%+6+"!7'"3&,2%+,"-'+"'
#!"*"+0'+/0'&,10-$,-2'"3401+,50$@''
'
=A;' B/%+',*#%1+'C"6&:'+/,$'/%50'"-'+/0'C"!D'".'9"%!:$''
'
&

Page 36



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')'*+%+,+"!-'.,+-'"/'0"%!.$'+"'!1#"!+''
'
456& 7+&-*&%8#%*+)'*&',&#$%&-9':%&("'('+-.&#'&"%;!)"%&<'-"=+&#'&
("'>'#%&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'9?%/#):%+@&7./'$'.& '/!+&A/'#.-*=&$-:%&
-.+'&("'('+%=&#$-#&<'-"=+&9%&(!#&!*=%"&-&+#-#!#'"B&'9.)0-#)'*&#'&
"%('"#&%-/$&B%-"&'*&$'C&#$%&<'-"=&$-+&,!.,)..%=&)#+&=!#B&#'&("'>'#%&
%-/$&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'9?%/#):%+6&&
&
4D6& E)/%*+)*0&<'-"=+&-."%-=B&("':)=%&-**!-.&+#-#)+#)/+&#'&
A/'##)+$&F':%"*>%*#6&G$)+&/'..%/#)'*&',&)*,'">-#)'*&/'!.=&9%&
%8(-*=%=&#'&)*/.!=%&<'-"=&"%('"#+@&'"&#$%B&/'!.=&9%&+!9>)##%=&
+%(-"-#%.B6&
&
436& H,&)#&)+&=%/)=%=&#'&("'/%%=@&#$%*&)#&C'!.=&9%&*%/%++-"B&#'&
=%/)=%&C$-#&,'">-#&#$%&<'-"=&"%('"#+&+$'!.=&#-I%&-*=&C$-#&
)*,'">-#)'*&#$%B&+$'!.=&)*/.!=%6&&
&
4J6& E'/-.&E)/%*+)*0& '"!>+&-"%&-."%-=B&-9.%&#'&-+I&,'"&
)*,'">-#)'*&-*=&+#-#)+#)/-.&=-#-&'*&#$%&<'-"=K+&,!*/#)'*+&-*=&#$%B&
+$'!.=&9%&9%+#&(.-/%=&#'&;!%+#)'*&#$%&'(%"-#)'*&',&<'-"=+6&7#&.%-+#&
'*/%&)*&%-/$&/-.%*=-"&B%-"&#$%&E)/%*+)*0&<'-"=&>!+#&$-:%&-&?')*#&
>%%#)*0&C)#$&#$%&E'/-.&E)/%*+)*0& '"!>6&&
&
4L6& 7#&("%+%*#&#$%"%&)+&*'#&-&+#-#!#'"B&'9.)0-#)'*&'*&<'-"=+&#'&
("':)=%&+#-#)+#)/+&#'&#$%&A/'##)+$&F':%"*>%*#6&H#&C'!.=&9%&('++)9.%&
#'&>-I%&#$)+&-&+#-#!#'"B&"%;!)"%>%*#6&&
&
&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
2"%!.$'01'#,+',/.1!'%'$+%+,+"!-'"0&34%+3"/'+"'!1#"!+'1%56'-1%!'
"/'6"7'+61'2"%!.'6%$'8,&83&&1.'3+$'.,+-'+"'#!"9"+1'1%56'"8'+61'
&351/$3/4'"0:15+3;1$'
&
<,1$+3"/$''
'
=>?' *6",&.'2"%!.$'01'#&%51.',/.1!'%'$+%+,+"!-'"0&34%+3"/'+"'
!1#"!+'1%56'-1%!'"/'6"7'+61'2"%!.'6%$'8,&83&&1.'3+$'.,+-'+"'
#!"9"+1'1%56'"8'+61'&351/$3/4'"0:15+3;1$@''
'
=A?' *6",&.'+61'!1#"!+'01'$,093++1.'+"'*5"++3$6'B3/3$+1!$C'+61'
D"5%&'D351/$3/4'E"!,9C'%/.F"!'$"91'"+61!'0".-@''

Page 37



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'(')' *+%+,+"!-'.,+-'"/'0"%!.$'+"'1%+23!'%/.'
%$$3$$'4/5"!6%+4"/''
&
456& 7$)+&)+&-*'#$%"&"%/'88%*9-#)'*&8-9%&:;&<./'$'.& '/!+&
=/'#.-*9&>< =?&-*9&=/'##)+$&@%-.#$&</#)'*&'*&-./'$'.&A"':.%8+&
>=@<<A?6&B#&)+&("'('+%9&#$-#&-&+#-#!#'";&9!#;&:%&(.-/%9&'*&
C)/%*+)*0&D'-"9+&#'&0-#$%"&-*9&-++%++&)*,'"8-#)'*&'*&%-/$&',&#$%&
,)E%&.)/%*+)*0&':F%/#)E%+&)*&#$%&G55H&</#&)*&#$%&("%(-"-#)'*&',&#$%)"&
+#-#%8%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;6&&
&
426& B#&)+&-"0!%9&#$-#&#$)+&I'!.9&(.-/%&:%;'*9&9'!:#&#$-#&-&
C)/%*+)*0&D'-"9&+$'!.9&0-#$%"&+!,,)/)%*#&)*,'"8-#)'*&#'&,'"8!.-#%&
)#+&('.)/;6&B8('+)*0&-&+#-#!#'";&9!#;&'*&:'-"9+&#'&0-#$%"&-*9&
-++%++&)*,'"8-#)'*&'*&%-/$&',&#$%&,)E%&.)/%*+)*0&':F%/#)E%+&I'!.9&
$%.(&%*+!"%&#$-#&D'-"9+J&('.)/)%+&I%"%&:-+%9&'*&#$%&:%+#&-E-).-:.%&
%E)9%*/%&-*9K&)*&#$%'";K&I%"%&.%++&.)L%.;&#'&:%&+!//%++,!..;&
/$-..%*0%96&&
&
 !"#"$%&'('
'
 &%73'%'$+%+,+"!-'.,+-'"/'8473/$4/1'9"%!.$'+"'1%+23!'%/.'
%$$3$$'4/5"!6%+4"/'"/'3%72'"5'+23'54:3'&473/$4/1'"0;37+4:3$'4/'
+23'<==>'?7+'4/'+23'#!3#%!%+4"/'"5'+234!'$+%+363/+'"5'&473/$4/1'
#"&47-'
&
'
@,3$+4"/$''
'
ABC' *2",&.'9"%!.$'03'#&%73.',/.3!'%'$+%+,+"!-'.,+-'+"'
1%+23!'%/.'%$$3$$'4/5"!6%+4"/'"/'3%72'"5'+23'&473/$4/1'
"0;37+4:3$'4/'+23'#!3#%!%+4"/'"5'+234!'$+%+363/+'"5'&473/$4/1'
#"&47-D''
'
A(C' E2%+'03/354+$'F",&.'$,72'%'$+%+,+"!-'.,+-'0!4/1D''
'
&

Page 38



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 
!"#$#%&' ( ) *+,-./ $-"0#/ #1 %,&,-2-., #1 '03-.%0.4 $#'035&&
&
456& 7$)+&)+&-*'#$%"&"%/'88%*9-#)'*&8-9%&:;&<./'$'.& '/!+&
=/'#.-*9&>< =?&-*9&=/'##)+$&@%-.#$&</#)'*&'*&<./'$'.&A"':.%8+&
>=@<<A?6&B#&)+&("'('+%9&#'&%C#%*9&#$%&(%")'9&#$-#&-&+#-#%8%*#&',&
.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;&)+&)*&,'"/%&#'&,)D%&;%-"+&-*9&)*#"'9!/%&-&+#-#!#'";&
'!+#%"&/.-!+%&.)8)#)*0&-((%-.+&-0-)*+#&-*&-9'(#%9&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;&
+#-#%8%*#&'!#+)9%&)#+&)*#"'9!/#'";&(%")'96&&
&
4E6& <#&("%+%*#&%D%";&F'-"9&8!+#G&:%,'"%&#$%&:%0)**)*0&',&%-/$&
E&;%-"&(%")'9G&(!:.)+$&-&+#-#%8%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;&'*&#$%)"&
,!*/#)'*+&!*9%"&#$%&</#6&B*&("%(-")*0&#$%&+#-#%8%*#G&#$%&H)/%*+)*0&
F'-"9&8!+#&%*+!"%&#$-#&#$%&('.)/;&+#-#%9&)*&#$%&+#-#%8%*#&+%%I+&#'&
("'8'#%&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&':J%/#)D%+6&<#&("%+%*#&#$%"%&)+&*'&+-*/#)'*&
,'"&*'#&(!:.)+$)*0&-&+#-#%8%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;G&:!#&)#&9'%+&
+!(('"#&#$%&K'"I&-*9&9%/)+)'*+&',&#$%&F'-"96&
&
446& L*9%"&#$%&/!""%*#&-""-*0%8%*#+G&-&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;&
+#-#%8%*#&$-+&#'&:%&+!:J%/#&#'&-&,!..&/'*+!.#-#)'*6&7$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&
K'!.9&*'#&("%D%*#&-&.%0-.&/$-..%*0%&9!")*0&#$%&/'!"+%&',&)#+&.),%&)*&
"%+(%/#&',&-*&)*9)D)9!-.&-((.)/-#)'*&'"&+!:+%M!%*#&-((%-.6&B#&/'!.9&
:%&-"0!%9&#$-#&-&("'/%++&K$)/$&)+&/'*#)*!'!+.;&!*9%"&#$"%-#&',&
.%0-.&/$-..%*0%&9'%+&*'#&+%"D%&#$%&(!:.)/&)*#%"%+#6&7$%&)*#"'9!/#)'*&
',&-&+#-#!#'";&'!+#%"&/.-!+%&8-;&.)8)#&#$%&*!8:%"&',&-((%-.+&
-0-)*+#&-*&-9'(#%9&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/;&+#-#%8%*#6&&
&
4N6& 7$)+&("'('+-.&/'!.9&-.+'&.)*I&#$%&"%D)%K&(%")'9&#'&#$-#&',&
.'/-.&-!#$'")#;&%.%/#)'*+G&,'"&%C-8(.%&+!/$&#$-#&#$%&*%K&F'-"9&$-9&
#'&("%(-"%&-&*%K&('.)/;&+#-#%8%*#&K)#$)*&-&;%-"&',&:%)*0&
-((')*#%9G&-*9&'*/%&-0"%%9&)#&K'!.9&$-D%&-&9!"-#)'*&',&,)D%&;%-"+6&
7$%"%&K'!.9&"%8-)*&-*&&-:).)#;&#'&8-I%&/$-*0%+&9!")*0&#$%&.),%&',&-&
('.)/;&+#-#%8%*#&:;&K-;&',&-&+!((.%8%*#-";&+#-#%8%*#6&&
&
4O6& <&+#-#!#'";&'!+#%"&/.-!+%&("%+%*#.;&-((.)%+&!*9%"&+%/#)'*&
5EP&',&#$%&7'K*&-*9&Q'!*#";&A.-**)*0&>=/'#.-*9?&</#&233P&-*9&
("'D)9%+&#$-#&(-"#)%+&$-D%&+)C&K%%I+&#'&/$-..%*0%&-*&-9'(#%9&.'/-.&
(.-*6&B,&.)/%*+)*0&)+&#'&:%&-&('.)/;&.%9&+;+#%8&#$%*&-&+#-#!#'";&'!+#%"&
/.-!+%&+)8).-"&#'&#$%&(.-**)*0&"%0)8%&8-;&K%..&:%&*%/%++-";6&
@'K%D%"G&),&-9'(#%9G&#$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&-*9&-9D%"#)+%8%*#&
"%M!)"%8%*#+&,'"8)*0&(-"#&',&#$%&('.)/;&+#-#%8%*#&("'/%9!"%&8-;&
*%%9&#'&:%&+#"%*0#$%*%96&&&
&

Page 39



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'('
'
)*+,-.'+/,'#,!0".'+/%+'%'$+%+,1,-+'"2'&03,-$0-4'#"&035'0$'0-'
2"!3,'+"'206,'5,%!$'%-.'0-+!".73,'%'$+%+7+"!5'"7$+,!'3&%7$,'
&010+0-4'%##,%&$'%4%0-$+'%-'%."#+,.'&03,-$0-4'#"&035'
$+%+,1,-+'"7+$0.,'0+$'0-+!".73+"!5'#,!0".8''
&
&
97,$+0"-$''
'
:(8' ;/"7&.'+/,'#,!0".'+/%+'%'$+%+,1,-+'"2'&03,-$0-4'#"&035'0$'
0-'2"!3,'<,',*+,-.,.'+"'206,'5,%!$=''
'
>?8' ;/"7&.'+/,!,'<,'%'$+%+7+"!5'"7$+,!'3&%7$,'&010+0-4'
%##,%&$'%4%0-$+'%-'%."#+,.'&03,-$0-4'#"&035'$+%+,1,-+'
"7+$0.,'0+$'0-+!".73+"!5'#,!0".=''
'
&
&

Page 40



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"# $%&'()*+,-(%&#%.#/&01('2#3,&04,0*#,5(1(-6##
&
456& 7#&("%+%*#&#$%"%&)+&*'&.-*0!-0%&"%8!)"%9%*#&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&
-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*06&7.#$'!0$&-&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&$'.:%"&9!+#&+)#&-*:&
(-++&-&;%"+'*-.&<)/%*/%&='.:%"&>!-.),)/-#)'*?&)#&/-*?&-#&("%+%*#?&@%&
("'A):%:&-*:&%B-9)*%:&)*&.-*0!-0%+&'#$%"&#$-*&C*0.)+$6&&

&
4D6& 7&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&-!#$'")+%+&-&(%"+'*&#'&+!(%"A)+%&'"&
-!#$'")+%&#$%&+-.%&',&-./'$'.6&E'+#&+#-,,&#"-)*)*0&)+&("'A):%:&@F&-&
(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&$'.:%"6&='G%A%"&)#&)+&*'#&-&"%8!)"%9%*#&)*&#$%&
.%0)+.-#)'*&,'"&#$%"%&#'&@%&-&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&$'.:%"&'*&#$%&
("%9)+%+&-#&-..&#)9%+6&
&
4H6& I'*/%"*+&$-A%&@%%*&"-)+%:&#$-#&G$%"%&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&
$'.:%"+&-"%&*'#&"%-:).F&-@.%&#'&!*:%"+#-*:&C*0.)+$?&#$%*&#$%F&G)..&
,)*:&)#&:),,)/!.#&#'&!*:%"+#-*:?&/'9(.F&G)#$&-*:&-((.F&#$%&
"%8!)"%9%*#+&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*06&&
&
JK6& L#&)+&('++)@.%&#$-#&+!/$&("%9)+%+&G'!.:&%A%*#!-..F&@%&
+!@M%/#&#'&%*,'"/%9%*#&-/#)'*?&,'"&%B-9(.%&#$"'!0$&,-).)*0&-&#%+#&
(!"/$-+%?&@!#&#$)+&)+&-&(''"&'!#/'9%&,'"&#$%&#"-:%"?&#$%&(!@.)/?&-*:&
-&(''"&"%,.%/#)'*&'*&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)9%&)#+%.,6&
&
J36& N%&G'!.:&.)O%&#'&0-!0%&$'G&9!/$&',&-&/'*/%"*&#$)+&
-/#!-..F&)+?&-*:&/'*+):%"&'(#)'*+&#'&-::"%++&)#6&P$%&Q/'##)+$&
R'A%"*9%*#&-*:&.'/-.&-!#$'")#)%+&"%9-)*&/'99)##%:&#'&%*+!")*0&
#$-#&#$%"%&-"%&*'#&!*"%-+'*-@.%&@-"")%"+&#'&@!+)*%++%+&#"-:)*0?&-*:&
#$-#&G$%"%&-*F&-::)#)'*-.&"%8!)"%9%*#+&-"%&)9('+%:&#$%F&-"%&+%#&-#&
-&.%A%.&*%/%++-"F&#'&("'#%/#&#$%&(!@.)/?&G)#$'!#&+%%O)*0&#'&)9('+%&
-*&!*:!%&@!":%*6&L#&$-+?&,'"&%B-9(.%?&@%%*&+!00%+#%:&#$-#&)#&)+&
"%8!)"%:&#$-#&#$%&;%"+'*-.&<)/%*/%&='.:%"&>!-.),)/-#)'*&9!+#&@%&
#-O%*&)*&C*0.)+$?&'"&)*/.!:%&+'9%&#%+#&,'"&C*0.)+$&("',)/)%*/F6&7&
9'"%&'*%"'!+&-.#%"*-#)A%&G'!.:&@%&,'"&#$%"%&#'&@%&-&9-*:-#'"F&
/'*:)#)'*&#$-#&#$%"%&)+&+'9%'*%&'*&#$%&("%9)+%+&G)#$&-&"%-+'*-@.%&
/'99-*:&',&C*0.)+$&-#&-..&#)9%+6&&
&&
7+%8%',1# !#
#
9*,'4+*'#-%#*&'4+*#-2,-#1(:*&:*#2%1)*+'#2,;*#,#+*,'%&,51*#
:%<<,&)#%.#/&01('2"#
&
&
&

Page 41



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
22&

 !"#$%&'#((
(
)*+( ,#($-"."(/!.."'$01(2'(%##!"(3%$-(0%/"'/"(-&04".#(3-&(4&(
'&$(-25"(2(."2#&'260"(/&772'4(&8(9':0%#-+((
(
))+( ,8($-"."(%#(2(;.&60"7<(3-2$(3&!04(6"(1&!.(;."8".."4(
7"2'#($&(244."##($-%#=((
(
&

Page 42



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#$%&'(')'*&+#+,"-,'$+'./#&+0%'$!%'%11%2$.0%3%,,'+1'$!%'
-.2%3,.34'&%4./%''
'

445& 6")0$#/"%7&8&9::"%++&#$%&!*/%"#-)*#)%+&
$)0$.)0$#%:&;<&#$%&2=44&:%/)+)'*&)*&6")0$#/"%7&>#:&?&@)#<&
',&A.-+0'7&>)/%*+)*0&6'-":5&&&&&&
&&
425& B%C;%"+D&@.!;+&8&@'*/%"*+&$-?%&;%%*&"-)+%:&
#$-#&+'C%&C%C;%"+D&/.!;+E&7$)/$&%*F'<&-&.%++&'*%"'!+&
"%0)C%E&-"%&-;!+)*0&%)#$%"&#$%&.%##%"&'"&#$%&+()")#&',&#$%&
"!.%+&;<&'(%"-#)*0&)*&:)"%/#&/'C(%#)#)'*&7)#$&.'/-.&.)/%*+%:&
("%C)+%+5&&
&

435& @'*/%"*+&$-?%&;%%*&%G("%++%:&-;'!#&
("'/%:!"%+&-#&.)/%*+)*0&;'-":&C%%#)*0+5&
&
4H5& I%?%.'(&-&*-#)'*-.&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/<&+#-#%C%*#&#$-#&
.'/-.&.)/%*+)*0&;'-":+&-"%&"%J!)"%:&#'&$-?%&"%0-":&#'&7$%*&
:"-7)*0&!(&#$%)"&'7*&('.)/)%+5&&
&
4K5& 9C%*:&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&';F%/#)?%&)*&#$%&2==K&9/#&
,"'C&L("'#%/#&/$).:"%*&,"'C&$-"CM&#'&+#-#%&L/$).:"%*&-*:&
<'!*0&(%"+'*+M5&&
&
4N5& O*#%"%+#%:&(-"#)%+&8&P$%&>-7&Q'/)%#<&"-)+%:&
/'*/%"*+&#$-#&.%0)+.-#)'*&)*#%*:%:&#'&"%J!)"%&*'#),)/-#)'*&',&
#$'+%&/'**%/#%:&#'&-&("%C)+%+&.)/%*/%E&7-+&#''&;"'-:.<&
:"-,#%:&-*:&7'!.:&)*-:?%"#%*#.<&/")C)*-.)+%&C-*<&
("%C)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.:%"+5&
&
4R5& 9C%*:&+%/#)'*&R&',&#$%&2==K&9/#E&#$%&:!#<&#'&
-++%++&'?%"("'?)+)'*E&#'&+#-#%&#$-#&#$%&.'/-.)#<&,'"&
-++%++C%*#&',&'?%"("'?)+)'*&/-*&;%&#$%&%*#)"%&;'-":&-"%-5&&
&
4S5& 9C%*:&+%/#)'*&R&',&#$%&2==K&9/#&#'&C-T%&)#&/.%-"&
#$-#&'?%"("'?)+)'*&/-*&)*/.!:%&-*&)*/"%-+%&)*&/-(-/)#<&
7$%"%&#$%"%&)+&*'&)*/"%-+%&)*&#$%&*!C;%"&',&("%C)+%+E&-*:&
)*/.!:%&'(%*)*0&$'!"+&)*&#$%&-++%++C%*#&',&'?%"("'?)+)'*5&&&&&&&&&
&
4U5& 9::"%++&/'*/%"*+&'?%"&)*#%"*%#&+-.%+&;<&
%G#%*:)*0&("'C'#)'*+&;-*&#'&/'?%"&'":%"+&:)+(-#/$%:&
,"'C&V*0.-*:&;!#&7$)/$&7%"%&W#-T%*D&)*&Q/'#.-*:5&&
&

Page 43



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

245& 6.-"),7&#$%&+(%/),)/&/)"/!8+#-*/%+&!*9%"&:$)/$&
-./'$'.&/-*&;%&+'.9&)*&0-"-0%&,'"%/'!"#+5&&
&
2<5& =)8)*0&',&>'-"9&#"-)*)*0&&
&

Page 44



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'((')'*!+,-./!01''
'
324& 5$%&6%/)+)'*&',&#$%&7'!"#&',&8%++)'*&)*&#$%&/-+%&',&
9")0$#/"%:&;)<)#%6&=&>.-+0':&;)/%*+)*0&9'-"6&$-+&('#%*#)-..?&
)<('"#-*#&)<(.)/-#)'*+&,'"&#$%&'(%"-#)'*&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&+?+#%<4&&
5$%&/-+%&/%*#"%6&'*&#$%&-@).)#?&',&#$%&9'-"6&#'&"%,!+%&-*&
-((.)/-#)'*&,'"&-&("%<)+%+&.)/%*/%&,"'<&-&.-(&6-*/)*0&/.!@4&&5$%&
0"'!*6+&',&"%,!+-.&/)#%6&@?&#$%&9'-"6&:%"%&)*/'<(-#)@).)#?&:)#$&#:'&
.)/%*+)*0&'@A%/#)=%+&B(!@.)/&$%-.#$&-*6&("%=%*#)*0&/")<%&-*6&
6)+'"6%"C4&5$%&"%,!+-.&:-+&@-+%6&!('*&)*/'<(-#)@).)#?&:)#$&#$%&
9'-"6D+&('.)/?&'*&-6!.#&%*#%"#-)*<%*#E&(-"#)/!.-".?&:)#$&"%0-"6&#'&
#$%&$%-.#$&-*6&+-,%#?&',&#$%&6-*/%"+4&
&
3F4& G*&HI#"-&J)=)+)'*&',&#$%&K**%"&L'!+%&-..':%6&#$%&-((%-.&
,"'<&9")0$#/"%:4&K#&$%.6&#$-#&#$%&%++%*#)-.&,!*/#)'*&',&#$%&2MM3&G/#&
)+&#$-#&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&',&#$%&+-.%&',&-./'$'.4&8)*/%&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&
:)#$&:$)/$&#$%&G/#&)+&/'*/%"*%6&)+&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&',&#$%&+-.%&',&
-./'$'.E&)*/'*+)+#%*/?&:)#$&-&.)/%*+)*0&'@A%/#)=%&<%-*+&
)*/'*+)+#%*/?&,.':)*0&,"'<&#$%&(%"<)##)*0&',&#$%&+-.%&',&-./'$'.&'*&
#$%&("%<)+%+4&N$).+#&#$%&'@A%/#)=%+&/'*#-)*%6&)*&#$%&G/#&:%"%&
6%+)"-@.%&)*&-&0%*%"-.&+%*+%E&#$-#&6)6&*'#&%<(':%"&-&.)/%*+)*0&
@'-"6&#'&)*+)+#&'*&<-##%"+&:$)/$E&:$).%&(%"$-(+&!*O!%+#)'*-@.?&
6%+)"-@.%&)*&#$-#&+%*+%E&-"%&*%=%"#$%.%++&*'#&.)*P%6&#'&#$%&+-.%&',&
-./'$'.4&
&
3Q4& K*&'#$%"&:'"6+E&#$%&9'-"6&:-+&*'#&%*#)#.%6&#'&"%,!+%&#'&0"-*#&
-&.)/%*/%&'*&#$%&@-+)+&',&@"%-/$%+&',&)#+&7'6%&',&R"-/#)/%&:$%"%&
#$%&("'=)+)'*+&@"%-/$%6&6)6&*'#&"%.-#%&#'&#$%&+-.%&',&-./'$'.4&&
&
334& 5$%&)<(.)/-#)'*+&',&#$)+&6%/)+)'*&-"%&'(%*&#'&6)+(!#%E&-*6&
,!"#$%"&/'!"#&A!60%<%*#+&:'!.6&@%&"%O!)"%6&#'&("'=)6%&0"%-#%"&
/.-")#?&',&)*#%"("%#-#)'*&',&#$%&%I)+#)*0&.%0)+.-#)'*4&8'<%&-"0!%&#$-#&
9")0$#/"%:&6'%+&*'#&$-=%&("','!*6&)<(.)/-#)'*+&-+&.'*0&-+&9'-"6+&
$-=%&/.%-"&-*6&%=)6%*/%6&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/?&+#-#%<%*#+E&:$%"%-+&:%&
!*6%"+#-*6&#$-#&+'<%&9'-"6+&-"%&*':&/-!#)'!+&-@'!#&#-P)*0&
/'0*)+-*/%&',&,-/#'"+&+!/$&-+&*')+%&/'<(.-)*#+E&,)0$#+E&-*6&'#$%"&
6)+#!"@-*/%+&@%/-!+%&#$%?&-"%&*'#&6)"%/#.?&/'*/%"*%6&:)#$&#$%&+-.%&
',&-./'$'.4&&8'<%&9'-"6&6%/)+)'*+&*'#&#'&#-P%&-/#)'*&+%%<&#'&@%&
@-+%6&!('*&-&,%-"&',&/$-..%*0%&)*&#$%&/'!"#+4&&&
&
&
&
&

Page 45



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#"$%&'(('
'
)**!+$$',-+'./0+!,%1/,1+$'-12-&12-,+*'34',-+'5!12-,0!+6'
*+01$1"/'
&
7.+$,1"/$''
'
89:' ;".&*'+<#%/*1/2',-+'$0"#+'"=',-+')0,'=!">'?$%&+@',"'
?$%&+'%/*'$.##&4@'%**!+$$',-+'./0+!,%1/,1+$'0!+%,+*'34'
5!12-,0!+6A'
'
8B:' ;".&*'#&%01/2'%'2+/+!%&'*.,4'"/'5"%!*$',"'?#!">",+@'
!%,-+!',-%/'?-%C+'!+2%!*@',"',-+'&10+/$1/2'0"/*1,1"/$'%**!+$$'
,-+'./0+!,%1/,1+$'0!+%,+*'34'5!12-,0!+6A'
'
8D:' ;".&*'>%E1/2'0&+%!',-%,',-+')0,'%&&"6$'!+2.&%,1"/'"=',-+'
$%&+'"='%&0"-"&'or other activities'1/',-+'&10+/$+*'#!+>1$+$'
61,-1/'&10+/$+*'-".!$'%**!+$$',-+'./0+!,%1/,1+$'0!+%,+*'34'
5!12-,0!+6A'
'
8F:' ;".&*'4".'$.22+$,'%/",-+!'%##!"%0-',"'!+$"&C+',-+'
./0+!,%1/,1+$'%!1$1/2'=!">'5!12-,0!+6A'

Page 46



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+,-.,!$/'0&1.$'
&
456& 7'*/%"*+&$-8%&9%%*&"-)+%:&#$-#&+';%&;%;9%"+<&/.!9+=&
>$)/$&%*?'@&-&.%++&'*%"'!+&"%0);%=&-"%&-9!+)*0&%)#$%"&#$%&.%##%"&'"&
#$%&+()")#&',&#$%&"!.%+&9@&'(%"-#)*0&)*&:)"%/#&/';(%#)#)'*&>)#$&.'/-.&
.)/%*+%:&("%;)+%+6&
&
436& &A$%&"%-+'*+&#$-#&/.!9+&$-8%&+(%/)-.&-""-*0%;%*#+&!*:%"&
#$%&B)/%*+)*0&CD/'#.-*:E&F/#&2GG4&"%;-)*&8-.):6&&A$%@&%H)+#&
(")*/)(-..@&,'"&#$%&9%*%,)#&',&#$%)"&;%;9%"+&-*:&-"%&*'#&/';;%"/)-.&
%*#%"(")+%+&#$-#&-"%&'(%*&#'&;%;9%"+&',&#$%&(!9.)/6&&A$%@&-.+'&(.-@&
-&8-.!-9.%&(-"#&)*&/';;!*)#@&.),%&)*&("'8):)*0&-&"-*0%&',&+('"#+&-*:&
+'/)-.&-/#)8)#)%+6&&
&
4I6& 7.!9+&>-*#&#'&"%#-)*&#$%)"&+(%/)-.&+#-#!+=&>$).+#&#$%&
;-)*+#"%-;&#"-:%&>-*#+&#'&%*+!"%&#$-#&)*:)8):!-.&/.!9+&-"%&*'#&
-9!+)*0&#$-#&+#-#!+6&A$%&;-)*&/';(.-)*#&)+&#$-#&+';%&/.!9+&-"%&
-/#)*0&/';;%"/)-..@=&9@&-..'>)*0&%*#"@&#'&*'*J;%;9%"+=&-*:&$-8%&
-*&!*,-)"&-:8-*#-0%&'8%"&#$%&;-)*+#"%-;&.)/%*+%:&#"-:%=&#$%&.-##%"&
9%)*0&;'"%&+#")/#.@&"%0!.-#%:&-*:&*'#&%*?'@)*0&#$%&+-;%&(")8).%0%+&
-*:&%H/%(#)'*+6&K'-":+&$-8%&%H("%++%:&/'*/%"*&#$-#&#$%&F/#&-+&)#&
/!""%*#.@&+#-*:+&("%8%*#+&#$%;&,"';&:%-.)*0&%,,%/#)8%.@&>)#$&#$%&
;)*'")#@&',&;%;9%"+<&/.!9+&#$-#&-((%-"&#'&9%&-9!+)*0&#$%&+@+#%;6&&
&
4L6& M)*'"&/$-*0%+&#'&.%0)+.-#)'*&;)0$#&-..'>&K'-":+&#'&
:)+/$-"0%&#$%)"&:!#@&;'"%&%,,%/#)8%.@6&&
&
5G6& 7'*+#)#!#)'*+&',&/.!9+&$-8%&#'&/'*#-)*&-&+%#&',&"!.%+=&9!#&
B)/%*+)*0&K'-":+&$-8%&*'&-/#!-.&('>%"&#'&:%;-*:&-&/'(@&',&#$%&
/'*+#)#!#)'*6&7.!9+&/-*&/$-*0%&-&/'*+#)#!#)'*&>)#$'!#&*'#),@)*0&-&
K'-":6&A$%&/'*+#)#!#)'*&:'%+&*'#&,'";&(-"#&',&#$%&.)/%*/%&'"&)#+&
/'*:)#)'*+=&+'&9"%-/$)*0&#$%&/'*+#)#!#)'*&:'%+&*'#&9"%-/$&#$%&
.)/%*/%2'&
&
5N6& A$%"%&)+&/!""%*#.@&*'&+-*/#)'*&,'"&/.!9+&'(%"-#)*0&)*&>$-#&
>'!.:&-((%-"&#'&9%&-&/';;%"/)-.&*-#!"%&-*:&#$%"%&-"%&*'&0"'!*:+&
!('*&>$)/$&#'&/-..&,'"&-&"%8)%>&',&#$%&("%;)+%+&.)/%*/%6&&
&
526& O#&)+&("'('+%:&#'&)*/'"('"-#%&#$%&/'*+#)#!#)'*&)*#'&#$%&;-)*&
'(%"-#)*0&(.-*&'"&#'&;-P%&-:$%")*0&#'&#$%&/'*+#)#!#)'*&-&;-*:-#'"@&
/'*:)#)'*&)*&#%";+&',&#$%&;-*:-#'"@&/.!9+&("'8)+)'*+6&F*@&9"%-/$&
',&#$%&"%.%8-*#&("'8)+)'*+&>)#$)*&#$%&/'*+#)#!#)'*&"%.-#)*0=&#'&#$%&

Page 47



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

+-.%&',&-./'$'.4&5'!.6&#$%*&7%&-&7"%-/$&',&.)/%*/%&-*6&/'!.6&7%&
+!78%/#&',&"%9)%5:&&
&
;<:& =$).+#&#$)+&5'!.6&)*&%,,%/#&>-?%&/.!7+&>'"%&-//'!*#-7.%&)#&
5'!.6&-.+'&0%*%"-#%&>'"%&5'"?&,'"&@'-"6+:&&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
*++!,$$'-.,'/"0/,!0$'-.%-'.%1,'2,,0'!%3$,+'%2"4-'5,52,!$6'
/&42$'
&
&
74,$-3"0$''
'
)89'''''':"';"4'%<!,,'-.%-'-.,!,'$."4&+'2,'%++3-3"0%&'
!,$-!3/-3"0$'"0'-.,'"#,!%-3"0'"='5,52,!$6'/&42$>'
'
)?9' :"';"4'%<!,,'-.%-'2!,%/.'"='#!"13$3"0$'@3-.30'%'/&42'
/"0$-3-4-3"0'!,&%-30<'-"'-.,'$%&,'"='%&/"."&'$."4&+'2,/"5,'%'
2!,%/.'"='&3/,0/,'%&&"@30<'-.,'A3/,0$30<'B"%!+'-"'!,13,@'-.,'
&3/,0/,'>''
'
)C9' D.%-'@"4&+'2,'-.,'!,$"4!/,'35#&3/%-3"0$'="!'&"/%&'
%4-."!3-3,$'%0+'/&42$'3='-.,'/"0$-3-4-3"0'.%+'-"'2,'
30/"!#"!%-,+'30-"'-.,'&3/,0/,>''
'
EF9' :"';"4'.%1,'%0;'"-.,!'#!"#"$%&$'-"'-3<.-,0'4#'-.,'
!,<4&%-3"0'"='5,52,!$6'/&42$G'="!',H%5#&,'-.!"4<.'%++3-3"0%&'
5%0+%-"!;'/"0+3-3"0$>'

Page 48



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&& 23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+,%!-./$''
&
456& 789:;&-*<&.%0-.&-0%*#+&$-=%&%>("%++%<&/'*/%"*&-?'!#&
("'/%<!"%+&-*<&#$%&)*/'*+)+#%*/@&',&-(("'-/$&-#&A)/%*+)*0&B'-"<&
C%%#)*0+&-*<&)*&(-"#)/!.-"&#$%&/'*<!/#&',&$%-")*0+6&D)#$&#$%&C'=%&
#'&-&+)*0.%&('.)/%&,'"/%&-*<&.%0-.&-0%*#+&'(%"-#)*0&-/"'++&C!.#)(.%&
B'-"<&-"%-+&-&C'"%&+#-*<-"<)+%<&-(("'-/$&/'!.<&"%<!/%&
!**%/%++-"@&?!"<%*+6&
&
4E6& 7&A)/%*+)*0&B'-"<&)+&/'*+)<%"%<&#'&?%&-*&-<C)*)+#"-#)=%&
<%/)+)'*FC-G%"H&)#&)+&*'#&-&I!<)/)-.&#")?!*-.&?!#&)#&<'%+&"%J!)"%&#'&-/#&
,-)".@&K)#$&#$%&-((.)/-*#&-*<&'#$%"&(-"#)%+6&7.#$'!0$&-&B'-"<&
/!""%*#.@&$-+&#$%&,"%%<'C&#'&(%",'"C&)#+&,!*/#)'*&-+&)#&(.%-+%+&L)*&
+'&,-"&-+&)#&)+&*'#&?'!*<&?@&+#-#!#%M&("'/%%<)*0+&C!+#&?%&/'*<!/#%<&
)*&-&J!-+)&I!<)/)-.&C-**%"&-*<&K)#$&("'(%"&"%0-"<&,'"&#$%&"!.%+&',&
*-#!"-.&I!+#)/%6&N$)+&<'%+&*'#&("%=%*#&#$%&B'-"<&/-""@)*0&'!#&)#+&
,!*/#)'*+&?@&-((.@)*0&)#&'K*&%>(%"#)+%&#'&#$%&-((.)/-#)'*6&
&
446& A)/%*+)*0&B'-"<+&-"%&C-<%&!(&',&.'/-.&-!#$'")#@&/'!*/)..'"+&
OC)*)C!C&',&EH&C->)C!C&',&PQR&-*<&$-=%&/'*+)<%"-?.%&-!#'*'C@&
)*&#$%&-(("'-/$&#$%@&-<'(#6&7//'"<)*0.@H&#$%"%&-"%&K)<%&=-")-#)'*+&
)*&#$%&<%0"%%&',&,'"C-.)#@H&$'K&K")##%*&-*<&'"-.&%=)<%*/%&)+&#-G%*&
-*<&/'*+)<%"%<H&-*<&$'K&<%/)+)'*+&-"%&C-<%6&D$).+#&-&A)/%*+)*0&
B'-"<&C%%#)*0&C!+#&?%&$%.<&)*&(!?.)/H&)*&#$%&)*#%"%+#&',&*-#!"-.&
I!+#)/%H&)#&)+&G*'K*&#$-#&+'C%&("'/%%<)*0+&-"%&$%.<&)*&(")=-#%&
&
4S6& T*&#$%&C-)*H&B'-"<+&%>-C)*%&-*<&-(("'=%&.)/%*/%&
-((.)/-#)'*+H&#$%@&/-*&-.+'&/-""@&'!#&"%=)%K+&K$%"%&#$%"%&-"%&
/'*/%"*+6&N$%&B'-"<&C!+#&?-.-*/%&#$%&(!?.)/&)*#%"%+#&-0-)*+#&#$%&
.%0)#)C-#%&<%+)"%+&',&?!+)*%++%+&#'&'(%*H&/'*#)*!%&#'&#"-<%&-*<&
%>(-*<6&
&
4U6& N$%&.'/-.&-!#$'")#@&C!+#&-((')*#&-&/.%"G&#'&#$%&A)/%*+)*0&
B'-"<&K$'&C!+#&?%&%)#$%"&-*&-<='/-#%&'"&+'.)/)#'"6&N$%&"'.%&',&#$%&
/.%"G&)+&#'&("'=)<%&.%0-.&0!)<-*/%&-*<&+!(('"#6&
&
436& V%)#$%"&#$%&2QQE&7/#&*'"&0!)<-*/%&/!""%*#.@&0)=%&<)"%/#)'*&
)*&"%+(%/#&',&$'K&$%-")*0+&+$'!.<&?%&/'*<!/#%<6&W'K%=%"&#$%&
;/'##)+$&C)*)+#%"+&C-@&?@&"%0!.-#)'*&C-G%&("'=)+)'*&-+&#'&#$%&
("'/%<!"%&#'&?%&,'..'K%<&-#&'"&)*&/'**%/#)'*&K)#$&-*@&-./'$'.&
.)/%*+)*0&$%-")*0&#'&?%&$%.<&?@&-&.)/%*+)*0&?'-"<6&N$%+%&("'=)+)'*+&
C-@&)*/.!<%X&

& V'#),)/-#)'*&',&$%-")*0+&

Page 49



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&& 23&

& 4!.%+&',&%5)6%*/%7&8$)/$&-"%&#'&9%&-((.)%6& ,'"&#$%&(!"('+%+&
',&#$%&$%-")*0&

& 4%("%+%*#-#)'*&',&-*:&(-"#:&-#&#$%&$%-")*0&
& ;)<%+/-.%+&9:&8$)/$&+#%(+&)*&#$%&("'/%6!"%&<!+#&9%&#-=%*&
& >)-9).)#:&,'"&%?(%*+%+&
& ;$%& #)<%+&9:&8$)/$& -((.)/-#)'*+& #'&-&@'-"6& !*6%"& #$)+&A/#7&
-*6&'#$%"&9!+)*%++& #'&9%&/'*+)6%"%6&9:&-&@'-"67&-"%& #'&9%&
6%#%"<)*%6&'"&/'*+)6%"%6&

& ;$%&(!9.)/)+)*0&',&<%%#)*0+&',&-&@'-"6&
& B!9.)/& -//%++& #'& -*:& -0%*6-& -*6& "%/'"6& '"7& -*6& '#$%"&
)*,'"<-#)'*&/'*/%"*)*07&-&<%%#)*0&',&-&@'-"6&

&
C3D& E'<%&.%0-.&-0%*#+&-"%&-"0!)*0&,'"&9'-"6+&#'&-6'(#&
("'/%6!"%+&-*6&"!.%+&',&%5)6%*/%&-=)*&#'&#$'+%&!+%6&)*&/'!"#+&
"-#$%"&#$-*&#$%&/!""%*#&<'"%&)*,'"<-.&-(("'-/$D&;$%:&-"0!%&#$-#&
#$%&)*#"'6!/#)'*&',&F%5)6%*#)-.&$%-")*0+G&8'!.6&-..'8&#$%<&#'&
H("'(%".:&#%+#I&#$%&<-#%")-.&("%+%*#%6&9:&-*&'9J%/#'"&'"&/'<(.-)*%"D&&
&
CKD& L*&"%.-#)'*&#'&'9J%/#'"+&#$%"%&/-*&-.+'&9%&)++!%+&',&,-)"*%++&
8$%"%&-*&'9J%/#'"&)+&"%M!)"%6&#'&+#-#%&#$%)"&0"'!*6+&)*&-65-*/%7&9!#&
#$%&.)/%*/%&$'.6%"&/-*&("%+%*#&*%8&<-#%")-.&-#&-*:&#)<%D&N9J%/#'"+&
<-:&*'#&9%&0)5%*&#$%&'(('"#!*)#:&#'&"%9!#&#$%&*%8&<-#%")-.&-*6&
$-5%&*'&")0$#&',&-((%-.D&
&
COD& P.%"=+&#'&@'-"6+&$-5%&5')/%6&+'<%&/'*/%"*&-9'!#&QPR4&
/'*+)6%"-#)'*+7&#$%&"%M!)"%<%*#&#'&$'.6&$%-")*0+&,'"&6%/)+)'*+&
8$)/$&/'!.6&9%&9%##%"&-66"%++%6&9:&',,)/)-.+&#$"'!0$&6%.%0-#%6&
-!#$'")#:&-*6&-66)#)'*-.&('8%"+&#$-#&#$%:&9%.)%5%&8'!.6&)<("'5%&
#$%&'(%"-#)'*&',&#$%&A/#&
&
C2D&  )*-..:&>)/%*+)*0&@'-"6+&-"%&*'#7&*'"&8%"%&<%-*#&#'&9%&
'(%"-#%6&-+&/'!"#+D&;$%&"-#)'*-.%&9%$)*6&#$)+&)+&#$-#&#$%&>)/%*+)*0&
@'-"67&8$)/$&$-+&-&M!-+)SJ!6)/)-.&,!*/#)'*7&+$'!.6&9%&+%%*&-+&-&
+%(-"-#%&%*#)#:&,"'<&#$%&/")<)*-.&("'/%%6)*0+7&-*6&-+&)*&-&P)5).&
P'!"#&$-+&6),,%"%*#&+#-*6-"6+&',&("'',&1&F9-.-*/%&',&("'9-9).)#:G&-+&
'(('+%6&#'&F9%:'*6&-..&"%-+'*-9.%&6'!9#GD&&&
&
CTD& L#&)+&%*#)"%.:&-&<-##%"&,'"&#$%&>)/%*+)*0&@'-"6&#'&6%/)6%&8$-#&
%5)6%*/%&'"&)*,'"<-#)'*&)#&-//%(#+&'"&"%J%/#+D&;$%:&$-5%&-&6!#:&#'&
/'*+)6%"&-..&)*,'"<-#)'*&(!#&9%,'"%&)#D&&;$-#&)*,'"<-#)'*&-*6&'"&
%5)6%*/%&/-*&)*/.!6%&6%#-).+&',&9%$-5)'!"&-*6&/'*6!/#&8$%#$%"&)#&)+&
-++'/)-#%6&8)#$&/")<)*-.)#:&'"&*'#D&&R'8%5%"7&#$%&>)/%*+)*0&@'-"6&

Page 50



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

4!+#&/'*+)5%"&#$%&-54)++)6).)#78&"%.%9-*/%&-*5&:%)0$#&#'&6%&0)9%*&
#'&%-/$&)#%4&',&%9)5%*/%;&
&
<=;& >'/-.&/'!*/)..'"+&0%*%"-..7&$-9%&*'&.%0-.&#"-)*)*0&)*&#$%&
"!.%+&',&%9)5%*/%&-*5&4-7&*'#&6%&6%+#&(.-/%5&#'&5%-.&:)#$&4'"%&
/'!"#&.)?%&@%9)5%*#)-.&$%-")*0+A;&B$%&C/#&5'%+&*'#&("'9)5%&,'"&
:)#*%++%+&#'&6%&(!#&'*&'-#$&'"&/"'++&%D-4)*%58&:$)/$&4-7&:%..&
/-..&)*#'&E!%+#)'*&#$%&/"%5)6).)#7&',&#$%&%9)5%*/%&("%+%*#%5;&
F6G%/#'"+8&)*/.!5)*0&#$%&('.)/%&-"%&*'#&*'"4-..7&"%("%+%*#%5&67&
.%0-.&-0%*#+;&H)#$&-&+$),#&#'&@%9)5%*#)-.&$%-")*0+A&#$)+&4-7&$-9%&#'&
/$-*0%8&:$)/$&:'!.5&/'4%&-#&/'*+)5%"-6.%&%D(%*+%;&I%-")*0+&
:'!.5&6%&.)?%.7&#'&#-?%&/'*+)5%"-6.7&.'*0%"&#$-*&-#&("%+%*#&-*5&#$)+&
:'!.5&.%-5&#'&)*/"%-+%+&)*&.)/%*+)*0&,%%+&+'&#$-#&6'-"5+&/'!.5&
"%/'9%"&#$%)"&/'+#+;& '"&#$%+%&"%-+'*+&:%&-"%&*'#&/!""%*#.7&
/'*9)*/%5&',&#$%&/-+%&,'"&@%9)5%*#)-.&$%-")*0+A;&
&
<J;& I':%9%"&-54)*)+#"-#)9%&)*/'*9%*)%*/%8&)*&)#+%.,8&/-**'#&6%&
-//%(#%5&-+&-&9-.)5&%D/!+%&,'"&,-).!"%&#'&/'4(.7&:)#$&#$%&
"%E!)"%4%*#+&',&*-#!"-.&G!+#)/%&
&
<<;& B$%&C/#&%*#"!+#+&#$%&-54)*)+#"-#)'*&',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&+7+#%4&
#'&>)/%*+)*0&K'-"5+&-*5&)+&5%+)0*%5&#'&("'#%/#&#$%&.'/-.&/'44!*)#7&
-*5&0%*%"-.&(!6.)/&:$%"%&("'6.%4+&-++'/)-#%5&:)#$&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&
'6G%/#)9%+&'//!";&>)/%*+)*0&K'-"5+&-"%&'"&+$'!.5&6%&6%+#&(.-/%5&#'&
5%#%"4)*%&:$-#&-/#)'*+&-"%&-(("'(")-#%&,'"&#$%&("'4'#)'*&',&#$%&
.)/%*+)*0&'6G%/#)9%+&)*&#$%)"&-"%-+;&
&
<L;& M#&:-+&-.:-7+&%*9)+-0%5&#$-#&#$%&>)/%*+)*0&K'-"5&:'!.5&
!+%&#$%&$%-")*0&("'/%++&%,,%/#)9%.7&#'&5%#%"&/")4%&-*5&5)+'"5%"&-*5&
-55"%++&)++!%+&-"'!*5&("%4)+%+&-*5&)*5)9)5!-.+&,-).)*0&#'&/'4(.7&
:)#$&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'6G%/#)9%+&
&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
*++!,$$' -".-,!.$' %/"01' #!"-,+0!,$' %1' 23-,.$3.4' 5"%!+'
6,%!3.4$7'
&
&
&
&
&
&

Page 51



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#$%&'#((
(
)*+( ,-&!./($-"(,0&$$%#-(1&2"3'4"'$(53&2%/"(6//%$%&'6.(
7!%/6'0"(&3(3"7!.6$%&'(8&3(9%0"'#%'7(:&63/#(&'($-"(0&'/!0$(
&8(-"63%'7#(6'/(;-<=(
(
)>+( ?6'(<&!(53&2%/"("@645."#(&8(563$%0!.63.<(7&&/(&3(A6/(
5360$%0"(6$(A&63/(-"63%'7#=(
((
))+( ,-&!./(:&63/(4""$%'7#(A"(-"./(%'(5!A.%0B(%'($-"%3(
"'$%3"$<=(
(
)C+( D-6$(&$-"3(%##!"#(#-&!./(A"(0&'#%/"3"/(8&3(%'0.!#%&'(%'(
6'<(7!%/6'0"(&'(A&63/(53&0"/!3"#(6'/(;-<(=(
&
&
&
&

Page 52



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
22&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+%,-".%&'#"&-/0'$,%,121.,''
'
345& 6./'$'.& '/!+&7/'#.-*8&96 7:&-*8&7/'##)+$&;%-.#$&6/#)'*&
'*&6./'$'.&<"'=.%>+&97;66<:'"%/'>>%*8%8&#$%&8%?%.'(>%*#&',&
-&*-#)'*-.&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/@&+#-#%>%*#&#$-#&.'/-.&A)/%*+)*0&B'-"8+&
+$'!.8&=%&"%C!)"%8&#'&$-?%&"%0-"8&#'&D$%*&8"-D)*0&!(&#$%)"&'D*&
('.)/)%+5&&
'
EF5& 6&*-#)'*-.&('.)/@&+#-#%>%*#&/'!.8&=%*%,)#&.'/-.&A)/%*+)*0&
B'-"8+&-*8&$%.(&#$%>&#'&)*#%0"-#%&.'/-.&-*8&*-#)'*-.&+#"-#%0)%+&,'"&
>-*-0)*0&-./'$'.&"%.-#%8&("'=.%>+5&
'
EG5&  '"&-&*-#)'*-.&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/@&+#-#%>%*#&#'&$-?%&-*&)>(-/#&
)#&D'!.8&"%C!)"%&+'>%&+#-#!#'"@&=-+)+5&;'D%?%"&0)?%*&#$%&?%"@&D)8%&
?-")-#)'*+&=%#D%%*&#$%&8),,%"%*#&7/'##)+$&/'>>!*)#)%+&#$%&
+#-#%>%*#&D'!.8&$-?%&#'&=%&,-)".@&$)0$&.%?%.&-*8&-+&-&"%+!.#&>)0$#&
*'#&$-?%&>!/$&"%-.&)>(-/#5&
&
EH5& A)/%*+)*0&B'-"8+&-*8&/.%"I+&$-?%&%J("%++%8&/'*/%"*&#$-#&
#$%&)*#"'8!/#)'*&',&-&*-#)'*-.&('.)/@&D'!.8&%"'8%&#$%)"&('.)/@&
>-I)*0&-*8&8)+/"%#)'*5&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
3141&"#' %' .%,-".%&' &-/1.$-.5' #"&-/0' $,%,121.,' ,6%,' &"/%&'
7-/1.$-.5' 8"%!9$' %!1' !1:;-!19' ,"' 6%41' !15%!9' ,"' <61.'
9!%<-.5';#',61-!'"<.'#"&-/-1$=''
&
&
>;1$,-".$''
'
?@=' A6";&9',61'A/",,-$6'B"41!.21.,'-.,!"9;/1'%'.%,-".%&'
&-/1.$-.5'#"&-/0'$,%,121.,'%.9'<60'C''
'
?D=' E6%,'$"!,'"F'-$$;1$'$6";&9'$;/6'%'$,%,121.,'/"41!'C''
'
&
'

Page 53



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#"$%&' ()' *' +,-./' 01-' &23-.$2.4' "56-3027-' 0"' #!"0-30'
312&/!-.'%./'8"9.4'#-!$".$':!",'1%!,'
&
425& 6%/#)'*&738&',&#$%&9::;&</#&=%,)*%+&-&/$).=&-+&>-&(%"+'*&
!*=%"&#$%&-0%&',&7?@&-*=&-&A'!*0&(%"+'*&-+&>-&(%"+'*&-0%=&7?&'"&
78@5&B$!+&#$%&C("'#%/#)*0&/$).="%*D&'EF%/#)G%&='%+&*'#&-((.A&#'&7?&
-*=&78&A%-"&'.=+5&B$%&=)+#)*/#)'*&E%#H%%*&/$).="%*&-*=&A'!*0&
(%"+'*+&/"%-#%+&=),,)/!.#)%+&,'"&I)/%*+)*0&J'-"=+&H$%*&=%-.)*0&H)#$&
)++!%+&-"'!*=&A'!*0&(%"+'*+5& '"&%K-L(.%&)#&L%-*+&#$-#&-*A&
-/#)'*&#$%&J'-"=&#-M%&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&#%+#&(!"/$-+%&,-).!"%+&$-G%&#'&
E%&/'*+)=%"%=&)*&"%0-"=+&#$%&/")L%&("%G%*#)'*&'EF%/#)'*&-+&
'(('+%=&#'&#$%&/$).="%*&'EF%/#)G%5&NO!-..A&H$%*&/'*+)=%")*0&-"%-+&
+%#&-+)=%&,'"&/$).="%*&-*=&A'!*0&(%"+'*+&H)#$)*&("%L)+%+P&)#&)+&
=),,)/!.#&#'&"%.-#%&#'&#$)+&#'&#$%&'EF%/#)G%+&%+(%/)-..A&)*&"%+(%/#&',&
A'!*0&(%"+'*+&
&
435& B$%&E"'-=%*)*0&'!#&',&#$%&'EF%/#)G%&H'!.=&0)G%&I)/%*+)*0&
J'-"=+&0"%-#%"&+/'(%&H$%*&/'*+)=%")*0&#$%&H)=%"&)L(.)/-#)'*+&',&
A'!*0&(%"+'*+&-//%++&#'&-./'$'.5&
&
4;5& B$%&/!""%*#&+%/#)'*&77:&*'#)/%&)+&)*-//!"-#%&-+&)#&='%+&*'#&
,!..A&"%,.%/#&#$%&"!.%+P&)#&)+&("'('+%=&#'&!(=-#%&)#5&
&
4?5& <*'#$%"&("'('+-.&)+&#'&+#"%*0#$%*&#$%&/!""%*#&L-*=-#'"A&
/'*=)#)'*&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&Q$-..%*0%&9;&H$)/$&/!""%*#.A&'*.A&"%O!)"%+&
#$-#&#$%"%&)+&-*&-0%&G%"),)/-#)'*&('.)/A&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&#$%&+-.%&',&
-./'$'.&'*&#$%&("%L)+%+5&R#&)+&("'('+%=&#$-#&#$)+&E%&%K(-*=%=&#'&
-.+'&"%O!)"%&#$-#&#$%&-0%&G%"),)/-#)'*&('.)/A&E%&-=$%"%=&#'5&&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
+,-./' 01-' &23-.$2.4'"56-3027-' 2.' 01-';<<)'+30' :!",' =#!"0-30'
312&/!-.' :!",' 1%!,>' 0"' $0%0-' =312&/!-.' %./' 8"9.4' #-!$".$'
:!",'1%!,>?''
&
@9-$02".$''
'
AB?' C1"9&/'01-'&23-.$2.4'"56-3027-'5-'%,-./-/'0"'$%8'
=#!"0-30'312&/!-.'%./'8"9.4'#-"#&->D''
'
AE?' F"-$'01-'39!!-.0',%./%0"!8'3"./202".'2.'!-&%02".'0"'
G1%&&-.4-';)'3!-%0-'/2::239&02-$D'
&

Page 54



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+,-.!.$-./'#%!-0.$&&
'
456& 7$%&8")9)*-.&:!+#)/%&-*;&<)/%*+)*0&=>/'#.-*;?&@/#&ABCBD&-#&
+%/#)'*&C4ED&("'('+%;&#$-#&-&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.;%"&F%&!*;%"&-&
;!#G&#'&*'#),G&#$%)"&.)/%*+)*0&F'-";&),&-&(%"+'*&F%/'9%+&'"&/%-+%+&
#'&F%&-&/'**%/#%;&(%"+'*&'"&)*#%"%+#%;&(-"#G6&7$)+&H-+&#'&"%+('*;&
#'&/'*/%"*+&#$-#&#$%&$'.;%"+&',&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%+&H%"%&,-).)*0&#'&
-;I)+%&J'-";+&',&/'**%/#)'*+&H)#$D&,'"&%K-9(.%D&'"0-*)+%;&/")9%6&
8")9)*-.&+-*/#)'*+&H'!.;&-((.G&,'"&-&,-).!"%&#'&*'#),G6&
&
446& L'H%I%"&#$%&<-H&>'/)%#G&"-)+%;&/'*/%"*+&#$-#&#$)+&
("'I)+)'*&)+&#''&I-0!%&-*;&#''&F"'-;&#'&F%&("-/#)/-.6&M,&#$%&
("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%&)+&$%.;&FG&-&#%*-*#&',&.-"0%&/$-)*&+!/$&-+&N!*/$&
7-I%"*+&-*;&#$%"%&)+&-&/$-*0%&'*&#$%&J'-";&',&N!*/$&;'%+&#$-#&
$-I%&#'&F%&*'#),)%;O&&M,D&-+&$-((%*+&)*&#$%&/!""%*#&%/'*'9)/&
/)"/!9+#-*/%+D&#$%&'H*%"+$)(&(-++%+&,"'9&-&;%,-!.#)*0&/'9(-*G&
#'&#$%&F-*P&H$'&#$%*&+%..&)#&'*&#'&-&(")I-#%&%Q!)#G&,)"9&H$'&(-"/%.&)#&
!(&)*&-&("'(%"#G&('"#,'.)'&#$-#&)+&+'.;&#'&-&(%*+)'*&,!*;D&)+&-&#%*-*#&
0')*0&#'&P%%(&!(&-*;&*'#),G&-#&%I%"G&+#-0%O&&&
'
4R6& M*&'";%"&#'&"%+('*;&#'&#$%+%&/'*/%"*+&#$%&>/'##)+$&
S'I%"*9%*#&$-I%&$%.;&',,&F")*0)*0&#$)+&("'I)+)'*&)*#'&.-HD&#$-#&)+&)#&
)+&+#)..&#'&F%&/'99%*/%;6&T%&-"%&/'*+);%")*0&'(#)'*+&#'&9-P%&#$%&
("'I)+)'*&9'"%&%,,%/#)I%&F%,'"%&)#&)+&F"'!0$#&)*#'&%,,%/#6&
&
RB6& U*%&("'('+-.&)+&#'&-9%*;&#$%&;!#G&#'&"%-;&#$-#D&VH$%*&-&
("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.;%"&)+&-H-"%&='"&+$'!.;&"%-+'*-F.G&F%&
%K(%/#%;&#'&F%&-H-"%?&',&-&/$-*0%W66X&&&
&
RC6& @.#%"*-#)I%.G&H%&/'!.;&-;'(#&#$%&-(("'-/$&',&#$%&8)I)/&
S'I%"*9%*#&=>/'#.-*;?&@/#&CR4A&>/$%;!.%&CD&(-"-0"-($&&3&=2?=F?&
H$%"%FG&Y7$%&-/#)I)#G&#'&H$)/$&)#&"%.-#%+&H'!.;&F%&9-*-0%;&FG&'"&
/-"")%;&'*&,'"&#$%&F%*%,)#&',&-&(%"+'*D&'#$%"&#$-*&#$%&-((.)/-*#D&H$'&
H'!.;&F%&"%,!+%;&#$%&0"-*#&'"&"%*%H-.&',&+!/$&-&.)/%*/%&),&$%&9-;%&
#$%&-((.)/-#)'*&$)9+%.,Z6&
&
RA6& 8'*/%"*+&$-I%&-.+'&F%%*&"-)+%;&FG&@8NU>&-F'!#&-&
/'*,.)/#&H)#$&-*'#$%"&("'I)+)'*&H)#$)*&#$%&8")9)*-.&:!+#)/%&-*;&
<)/%*+)*0&=>/'#.-*;?&@/#&ABCB6&7$%+%&-"%&*'#&G%#&-*&)++!%D&-+&#$%&
("'I)+)'*&,'"&)*#%"%+#%;&(-"#)%+&$-+&*'#&G%#&F%%*&F"'!0$#&)*#'&.-H6&
L'H%I%"&),&)#&H%"%&/'99%*/%;&-+&/!""%*#.G&;"-,#%;&#$%*&)#&H'!.;&
$-I%&#$%&!*)*#%*;%;&/'*+%Q!%*/%&#$-#&-&("%9)+%+&9-*-0%"&H'!.;&
*'&.'*0%"&$-I%&I)/-")'!+&.)-F).)#G6&[)/-")'!+&.)-F).)#G&)+&H$%"%&-&

Page 55



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

(%"+'*&)+&4%%5%4&#'&6%&.)-6.%&,'"&#$%&',,%*/%+&/'55)##%4&67&
%5(.'7%%+8&
&
928& :)#$)*&+%/#)'*&;<=>&?$)/$&)*+%"#+&+%/#)'*&=@A&)*#'&#$%&B@@C&
A/#>&-*&)*#%"%+#%4&(%"+'*&)+&4%,)*%4&-+&-&(%"+'*&?$'&)+&*'#&#$%&
("%5)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.4%"&-*4&)+&*'#&#$%&("%5)+%+&5-*-0%"8&D$)+&
$-+&*'#&7%#&6%%*&/'55%*/%48&
&
9=8& E'?%F%"&?)#$)*&+;9C>&F)/-")'!+&.)-6).)#7&G"%+('*+)6).)#7&,'"&
#$%&',,%*/%+&',&%5(.'7%%+H&)+&-((.)%4&#'&#$%&("%5)+%+&.)/%*/%&
$'.4%"&'"&-*&)*#%"%+#%4&(-"#78&I!#&-+&%J(.-)*%4&-6'F%&+=@A&
+(%/),)/-..7&%J/.!4%+&#$%&("%5)+%+&5-*-0%"&,"'5&#$%&4%,)*)#)'*&',&
-*&)*#%"%+#%4&(%"+'*>&#$%&%,,%/#&)+&#$-#&#$%&("%5)+%+&5-*-0%"&
?'!.4&*'#&$-F%&F)/-")'!+&.)-6).)#7&,'"&#$%&',,%*/%+&',&%5(.'7%%+8&&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
*++!,$$'-".-,!.$'/0%/'&,12$&%/2".'2./,.+,+'/"'!,342!,'
."/252-%/2".'"5'/0"$,'-"..,-/,+'/"'%'#!,62$,$'&2-,.-,7'8%$'/""'
9!"%+&:'+!%5/,+'%.+'8"4&+'2.%+;,!/,./&:'-!262.%&2$,'6%.:'
#!,62$,$'&2-,.-,'0"&+,!$<'
&
=4,$/2".$''
'
>?<' @"':"4'%1!,,'/0%/'/0,'+4/:'%$'#!,$,./&:'+!%5/,+'2$'
4.8"!A%9&,'%.+'80:'B''
'
CD<' E%F' @"':"4'#!,5,!'/0,'#!"#"$%&'/0%/'/0,'+4/:'$0"4&+'9,'
%6,.+,+'/"'!,%+'/0%/''
' K?$%*&-&("%5)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.4%"&)+&-?-"%&G'"&+$'!.4&
"%-+'*-6.7&6%&%J(%/#%4&#'&6%&-?-"%H&',&-&/$-*0%L88M&&&
'
' E9F' G!'+"':"4'#!,5,!'/0,'#!"#"$%&'/"'%+"#/'/0,'8"!+2.1'
5!"6'/0,'H2;2-'I";,!.6,./'EJ-"/&%.+F'*-/'(?KL''
' 'N?$%"%67&ND$%&-/#)F)#7&#'&?$)/$&)#&"%.-#%+&?'!.4&6%&5-*-0%4&
67&'"&&/-"")%4&'*&,'"&#$%&6%*%,)#&',&-&(%"+'*>&'#$%"&#$-*&#$%&
-((.)/-*#>&?$'&?'!.4&6%&"%,!+%4&#$%&0"-*#&&'"&"%*%?-.&',&+!/$&-&
.)/%*/%&),&$%&5-4%&#$%&&-((.)/-#)'*&$)5+%.,O8&
'
& E-F' *&/,!.%/2;,&:'+"':"4'0%;,'%.:'"/0,!'$411,$/2".$B'
'
C(<' M.'-"66".'82/0'/0,'#!,62$,$'&2-,.-,'0"&+,!'%.+'
2./,!,$/,+'#%!/2,$7'$0"4&+'%'#!,62$,$'6%.%1,!'0%;,';2-%!2"4$'
&2%92&2/:'5"!'/0,'"55,.-,$'"5',6#&":,,$'B''
&

Page 56



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+,%,-',.%,',.-'&"/%&0,1'2"!'%$$-$$3-4,'"2'
"5-!#!"50$0"4'/%4'6-',.-'-4,0!-'6"%!7'%!-%'
&
456& 7$)+&)+&-*'#$%"&"%/'88%*9-#)'*&8-9%&:;&<./'$'.& '/!+&
=/'#.-*9&>< =?&-*9&=/'##)+$&@%-.#$&</#)'*&'*&<./'$'.&A"':.%8+&
>=@<<A?6&&
&
4B6& 7$%&CDD5&</#&(.-/%+&-&9!#;&'*&E)/%*+)*0&F'-"9+&#'&8-G%&
-*&-++%++8%*#&',&'H%"("'H)+)'*&)*&-*;&.'/-.)#;&I)#$)*&#$%&F'-"9+J&
-"%-6&K#&)+&+!00%+#%9&#$-#&#$%&!+%&',&#$%&#%"8&LI)#$)*M&)+&#-G%*&-+&
)*9)/-#)*0&#$-#&#$%&-"%-&,'"&#$%&-++%++8%*#&',&'H%"("'H)+)'*&/-**'#&
#$%"%,'"%&:%&#$%&%*#)"%&F'-"9&-"%-6&K#&)+&-"0!%9&#$-#&#$)+&("%+%*#+&-&
':+#-/.%&I$%*&/'*+)9%")*0&#$%&I)9%"&+/'(%&',&#$%&("'#%/#)*0&-*9&
)8("'H)*0&(!:.)/&$%-.#$&':N%/#)H%&-*9&("%H%*#+&F'-"9+&,"'8&
/'*+)9%")*0&#$%&-H-).-:).)#;&',&-./'$'.&-/"'++&#$%)"&I$'.%&
0%'0"-($)/-.&-"%-6&
&
436& F'-"9+&$-H%&+#"!00.%9&#'&)9%*#),;&.'/-.)#;&,'"&'H%"("'H)+)'*&
-"%-+&-*9&O!%+#)'*%9&#$%&-:).)#;&#'&9%/.-"%&-*&%*#)"%&F'-"9&-"%-&
'H%"("'H)9%9&,'"6&K*&"%+(%/#&',&#$%&A!:.)/&@%-.#$&':N%/#)H%P&)*&#$%&
-:+%*/%&',&-&I$'.%&('(!.-#)'*&-(("'-/$&'H%"&-&I)9%"&
0%'0"-($)/-.&-"%-&&)#&)+&9),,)/!.#&#'&8-G%&-&/-+%&-*9&-.8'+#&
)8('++):.%&#'&"%.-#%&(!:.)/&$%-.#$&9-#-&#'&)*9)H)9!-.&("%8)+%+6&K*&
#%"8+&',&#$%&(!:.)/&$%-.#$&':N%/#)H%&)#&)+&H%";&9),,)/!.#P&),&*'#&
)8('++):.%&)*&8'+#&/-+%+&#'&8-G%&-&/-!+-.&.)*G&:%#I%%*&I$%"%&
-./'$'.&)+&+'.9&-*9&I$%"%&)#&)+&/'*+!8%96&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
83-47'$-/,0"4')'"2',.-'9::;'8/,<',.-'7=,1',"'%$$-$$'
"5-!#!"50$0"4<',"'$,%,-',.%,',.-'&"/%&0,1'2"!'%$$-$$3-4,'"2'
"5-!#!"50$0"4'/%4'6-',.-'-4,0!-'6"%!7'%!-%>''
&
&
?=-$,0"4$''
'
@9>' +."=&7'$-/,0"4')'"2',.-'9::;'8/,<',.-'7=,1',"'%$$-$$'
"5-!#!"50$0"4<'6-'%3-47-7',"'$,%,-',.%,',.-'&"/%&0,1'2"!'
%$$-$$3-4,'"2'"5-!#!"50$0"4'/%4'6-',.-'-4,0!-'6"%!7'%!-%A'
'
@B>' C"=&7',.0$'3%D-'0,'-%$0-!'2"!'E"%!7$',"'%$$-$$'
"5-!#!"50$0"4A''

Page 57



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+&%!,-.'/0%/'"12!#!"1,$,"3'4%3',34&562'%3'
,34!2%$2',3'4%#%4,/.''
'
435& 6$)+&)+&-*'#$%"&"%/'77%*8-#)'*&7-8%&9:&;./'$'.& '/!+&
</'#.-*8&=; <>&-*8&</'##)+$&?%-.#$&;/#)'*&'*&;./'$'.&@"'9.%7+&
=<?;;@>5&
&
445& A#&)+&-"0!%8&#$-#&B$%*&/'*+)8%")*0&'C%"("'C)+)'*&#$)+&+$'!.8&
9%&7-8%&)*&#$%&B)8%+#&('++)9.%&+%*+%5&6$%&;/#&+$'!.8&#$%"%,'"%&
-.+'&%D(.)/)#.:&-,,'"8&-*&'(('"#!*)#:&#'&/'*+)8%"&'C%"("'C)+)'*&)*&
#%"7+&',&)*/"%-+%8&$'!"+&-*8&/-(-/)#:&B)#$)*&.)/%*+%8&("%7)+%+5&
&
EFF5& ;..'B)*0&G'-"8+&#'&/'*+)8%"&'C%"("'C)+)'*&)*&#%"7+&',&
/-(-/)#:&-*8&*'#&H!+#&#$%&*!79%"&',&("%7)+%+&B'!.8I&,'"&%D-7(.%I&
-..'B&G'-"8+&#'&/'*+)8%"&)*&#$%&"'!*8&#$%&#'#-.&',,J+-.%+&+$%.C)*0&
/-(-/)#:&)*&#$%)"&-"%-I&'"&#$%&#'#-.&-00"%0-#%&'(%*)*0&$'!"+&)*&#$%&
'*J#"-8%5&6$)+&#'#-.&/-(-/)#:&B'!.8&$-C%&#'&9%&/'*+)8%"%8&*'#&H!+#&
)*&#%"7+&',&*%B&("%7)+%+&-((.)/-#)'*+I&9!#&#-K)*0&-//'!*#&',&-*:&
C-")-#)'*+&'"&("%7)+%+&#$-#&$-C%&/%-+%8&#'&#"-8%5&
&
EFE5& 6'&8-#%I&9'-"8+&$-C%&-8'(#%8&8),,%"%*#&-(("'-/$%+&#'&
/-(-/)#:&%+(%/)-..:&)*&"%+(%/#&',&',,J+-.%+&("%7)+%+5&6$%:&$-C%&
7%-+!"%8&/-(-/)#:&)*&#%"7+&',&.)*%-"I&+L!-"%I&/!9)/I&7%#"%+&-*8&-+&
-&(%"/%*#-0%&',&#"-8)*0&+(-/%5&&
&
EFM5& 6$%&("'9.%7&)+&,!"#$%"&%D-/%"9-#%8&9:&#$%&)*#%"-/#)'*&
9%#B%%*&N*&-*8&N,,&+-.%+&("%7)+%+5&O'#&-..&G'-"8+&"%/'"8&',,J+-.%&
/-(-/)#:&)*&"%+(%/#&',&'*J+-.%+&("%7)+%+5&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
+&%!,-.'/0%/'"12!#!"1,$,"3'4%3',34&562'%3',34!2%$2',3'4%#%4,/.'
702!2'/02!2',$'3"',34!2%$2',3'/02'35892!'"-'#!28,$2$:'%36'
,34&562'"#23,3;'0"5!$',3'/02'%$$2$$823/'"-'"12!#!"1,$,"35&&
&
&
<52$/,"3$''
'
==>' ?0"5&6'$24/,"3'@'"-'/02'ABBC'D4/:'/02'65/.'/"'%$$2$$'
"12!#!"1,$,"3'92'%823626:'/"'8%E2',/'4&2%!'/0%/'"12!#!"1,$,"3'
4%3',34&562'%3',34!2%$2',3'4%#%4,/.'702!2'/02!2',$'3"',34!2%$2'
,3'/02'35892!'"-'#!28,$2$F'

Page 58



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+%,-&.'/01.!0.1'$%&.$''
&
4526& 7%/#)'*&423&"%0!.-#%+&#$%&"%8'#%&+-.%+&',&-./'$'.&9)*#%"*%#&
+-.%+:6&;$%&+%/#)'*&-((.)%+&<$%"%=&)*&/'**%/#)'*&<)#$&-*>&+-.%&',&
-./'$'.=&#$%&("%8)+%+&,"'8&<$)/$&#$%&-./'$'.&)+&?)+(-#/$%?&,'"&
?%.)@%">&)*&(!"+!-*/%&',&#$%&+-.%&)+&*'#&#$%&+-8%&-+&#$'+%&<$%"%&
#$%&'"?%"&,'"&#$%&-./'$'.&)+&#-A%*6&B$%"%&#$%&("%8)+%+&,"'8&<$)/$&
#$%&-./'$'.&)+&?)+(-#/$%?&-"%&)*&7/'#.-*?=&#$%&+-.%&',&#$%&-./'$'.&)+=&
,'"&#$%&(!"('+%+&',&#$)+&C/#=&#'&D%&#"%-#%?&-+&#-A)*0&(.-/%&'*&#$'+%&
("%8)+%+6&
&
45E6& ;$%&7/'##)+$&F)*)+#%"+&8->&D>&"%0!.-#)'*+&8-A%&+!/$&
("'@)+)'*&-+&#$%>&/'*+)?%"&-(("'(")-#%&,'"&#$%&(!"('+%&',&
"%0!.-#)*0&#$%&#-A)*0&',&-./'$'.&'"?%"+&)*&7/'#.-*?&,'"&?)+(-#/$&,"'8&
("%8)+%+&'!#&<)#$&7/'#.-*?=&D!#&)+&#$%*&?%.)@%"%?&)*&7/'#.-*?6&
&
45G6&  '..'<)*0&#$%&)*#"'?!/#)'*&',&C./'$'.&%#/6&97/'#.-*?:&C/#&
H545&/'*/%"*&<-+&"-)+%?&"%0-"?)*0&+!(%"8-"A%#+&'"&'#$%"&
D!+)*%++%+&#-A)*0&'"?%"+&)*&7/'#.-*?&,'"&#$%&(!"/$-+%&',&-./'$'.&
D!#&#$%*&?)+(-#/$)*0&#$%&'"?%"&,"'8&("%8)+%+&'!#&<)#$&7/'#.-*?6&I#&
<-+&+!00%+#%?&#$-#&#$)+&("-/#)/%&<'!.?&-@')?&#$%&8)*)8!8&(")/)*0&
.%0)+.-#)'*&-*?&<'!.?&-..'<&+!(%"8-"A%#+&#'&/'*#)*!%&<)#$&2&,'"&H&
#>(%&?")*A&("'8'#)'*+&%#/6&
&
45J6& B$%"%&+-.%+&-"%&8-?%&)*&7/'#.-*?&D!#&?)+(-#/$%?&,"'8&'!#&
<)#$&#$%>&/'!.?&D%&/'*#"'..%?&D>&<->&',&"%0!.-#)'*6&K'<%@%"&#$%"%&
/'!.?&D%&/'*+)?%"-D.%&?),,)/!.#)%+&,'"&('.)/%&-*?&.'/-.&-!#$'")#)%+&)*&
+%%A)*0&#'&%*,'"/%&+!/$&"%0!.-#)'*+6&&&
&
 !"#"$%&'()'
'
233!.$$'/01.!0.1'$%&.$'45'.61.03/07'18.'9,"11/$8':.%$;!.$'
$;,8'%$'18.':;&1/4;5'#!":"1/"0$'4%0'1"',"<.!'"!3.!$'
3/$#%1,8.3'=!":'>07&%03'4;1'?8/,8'?.!.'@1%-.0A'/0'9,"1&%03B'
&
C;.$1/"0$''
'
DEB' 98";&3'18.'9,"11/$8'&/,.0$/07'!.7/:.'%##&5'1"'"!3.!$'
3/$#%1,8.3'=!":'";1'?/18'9,"1&%03F''
'
DGB' H='18/$'?.!.'/01!"3;,.3I'?";&3'18.'#"&/,.'%03'&",%&'
%;18"!/1/.$'4.'%4&.'1"',%!!5'";1':.%0/07=;&',":#&/%0,.'%03'
.0="!,.:.01'%,1/"0F''

Page 59



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#"$%&'()'*'+%!%,-'."!-/"0!1$''
&
4356& 7.-"),8&#$%&+(%/),)/&/)"/!9+#-*/%+&!*:%"&;$)/$&-./'$'.&/-*&
<%&+'.:&)*&0-"-0%&,'"%/'!"#+6&&
&
43=6& >$%&.%0)+.-#)'*&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&0-"-0%+&)+&!*:%"&%?/.!:%:&
("%9)+%+&-#&+%/#)'*&4@AB&-*:&)+&/'9(.)/-#%:6&C.#$'!0$&-&("%9)+%+&
.)/%*/%&+$'!.:&*'#&<%&0"-*#%:&#'&-&0-"-0%B&)#&/-*&<%&0"-*#%:&;$%"%&
.'/-.&"%+):%*#+&:%(%*:&'*&)#&,'"&-&D-")%#8&',&"%-+'*+6&>$)+&("'#%/#+&
"!"-.&0-"-0%+B&'"&!"<-*&0-"-0%+&#$-#&("'D):%&-*&)9('"#-*#&.'/-.&
+%"D)/%6&>$)+&$-+&("'D%*&:),,)/!.#&#'&)*#%"("%#&-*:&-((.8&)*&("-/#)/%B&
-*:&9-*8&0-"-0%+&*';&$'.:&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%+6&E)#$&9'+#&(%'(.%&
-."%-:8&:")D)*0&#'&:'&#$%)"&+$'(()*0B&)#&/'!.:&<%&-"0!%:&#$-#&#$%&
*%%:&#'&+#'(&0-"-0%+&,"'9&+%..)*0&-./'$'.&$-+&<%%*&.%++%*%:6&
&
43F6& C*'#$%"&,'"9&',&%?/.!:%:&("%9)+%+&)+&-&9'#'";-8&+%"D)/%&
+#-#)'*6&G#&)+&("'('+%:&#'&"%D)%;&-*:&!(:-#%&#$%&/!""%*#&:%,)*)#)'*&',&
-&9'#'";-8&+%"D)/%&+#-#)'*6&&
&
4436& H'#$&#$%+%&("'('+-.+&;'!.:&"%.-#%&#'&-((.)/-#)'*+&,'"&*%;&
.)/%*/%+B&"-#$%"&#$-*&#'&%?)+#)*0&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%+6&
&
 !"#"$%&''
'
2&%!3.4'15-'$#-/3.3/'/3!/06$1%7/-$'078-!'953/5'%&/"5"&'/%7':-'
$"&8'37',%!%,-'."!-/"0!1$;''
&
&
<0-$13"7$''
'
=>;' ?5"0&8'%&&',%!%,-$':-'!-.0$-8'%'#!-63$-$'&3/-7/-@''
'
=A;' B5%1C'3.'%74'-D-6#13"7$'$5"0&8'%##&4@''
'
=E;' 2%7'4"0'$0,,-$1'%7'%&1-!7%13F-'%##!"%/5'953/5'9"0&8'
%88!-$$'/"7/-!7$@'
&

Page 60



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"#"$%&'()'*'+,-,./'"0'1"%!2'3!%,.,./''
'
3334& 5,#%"&#$%&6736&.'/-.&0'8%"*9%*#&%.%/#)'*+&/'*/%"*+&:%"%&
"-)+%;&<=&+'9%&>)/%*+)*0&?'-";+&-*;&-((.)/-*#+&-<'!#&#$%&#)9)*0&
',&$%-")*0+4&
&
3364& @#&)+&-&.%0-.&"%A!)"%9%*#&#$-#&?'-";&9%9<%"+&+$'!.;&<%&
#"-)*%;&<%,'"%&#$%=&/-*&#-B%&(-"#&)*&-&>)/%*+)*0&?'-";4&C)#$&.'/-.&
0'8%"*9%*#&%.%/#)'*+&+/$%;!.%;&)*&D-=E&#$%&>)/%*+)*0&?'-";&/-*&
<%&+!<F%/#&#'&/'*+);%"-<.%&/$-*0%+4&G/$%;!.)*0&#"-)*)*0&,'"&*%:&
9%9<%"+&'8%"&#$%&+!99%"&(%")';&/-*&("'8%&/$-..%*0)*0E&-*;&.%-;&
#'&;%.-=+&)*&.)/%*/%&-((.)/-#)'*+&<%)*0&$%-";4&H$)+&)+&-&(-"#)/!.-"&
)++!%&,'"&#$'+%&-((.=)*0&,'"&-&*%:&("%9)+%+&.)/%*/%4&
&
33I4& D-*=&>)/%*+)*0&?'-";&;%/)+)'*+&/-*&<%&;%-.#&:)#$&8)-&
;%.%0-#%;&-!#$'")#=E&<!#&*'#&*%:&("%9)+%+&-((.)/-#)'*+&'"&9-F'"&
8-")-#)'*+4&
&
3324& H$%&G/'##)+$&J'8%"*9%*#&"%/'0*)+%+&#$-#&.)/%*+)*0&/-*&
)9('+%&-&<!";%*&'*&<!+)*%++%+E&-*;&)+&B%%*&#'&9)*)9)+%&#$)+4&&
'
33K4& 5&8-")%#=&',&("'('+-.+&$-8%&<%%*&9-;%E&,'"&%L-9(.%E&&

M-N& 5..':&?'-";&9%9<%"+&#$"%%&9'*#$+&0"-/%&#'&/'9(.=&
:)#$&#$%&"%A!)"%9%*#&,'"&#"-)*)*0&

M<N& 5!#$'")+%&O.%"B+&-*;&P%(!#%&O.%"B+&#'&0"-*#&*'*Q
/'*#%*#)'!+&*%:&.)/%*/%+&-*;&9-F'"&8-")-#)'*+&
;!")*0&#$%&#$"%%&9'*#$&(%")';E&!*;%"&;%.%0-#%;&
-!#$'")#=E&:)#$&-*&'(#)'*&#'&$-8%&#$'+%&;%/)+)'*+&
"-#),)%;&<=&#$%&?'-";&-#&#$%&%*;&',&#$%&#$"%%&9'*#$&
(%")';4&

&
 !"#"$%&')4'
'
5&67,8,&,39'":6!'3!%,.,./'!6;<,!6-6.3$'0"!'%'.6='1"%!2>'
&
?<6$3,".$''
'
@4>' A!6'9"<'%=%!6'"0'/6.<,.6',$$<6$'"0'B%!2$B,#'3"'
%##&,C%.3$'C%<$62'89'26&%9$',.'1"%!2$'B6%!,./'C%$6$'
0"&&"=,./'3B6'&"C%&'/":6!.-6.3'6&6C3,".D'
'
@)>' E0'$"F'=B%3'="<&2'86'9"<!'#!606!!62'%##!"%CB'3"'%22!6$$'
3B,$',$$<6D'

Page 61



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#$%&'(')' *+,-./0*+''
'
4456& 7$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&/'8%"+&-&9):%&8-")%#;&',&/'*/%"*+&-*:&
+!00%+#)'*+&#$-#&$-8%&<%%*&"-)+%:&<;&+#-=%$'.:%"+&'*&#$%&-./'$'.&
.)/%*+)*0&"%0)>%6&7$%"%&-"%&8-")'!+&'#$%"&>)*'"&)++!%+&#$-#&#$%&
?/'##)+$&@'8%"*>%*#&)+&.''=)*0&-#&-::"%++)*06& '"&%A->(.%&)#&)+&
("'('+%:&#'&<%##%"&-.)0*&#$%&:%,)*)#)'*&',&-./'$'.&9)#$)*&#$%&
B)/%*+)*0&C?/'#.-*:D&E/#&3FFG&9)#$&#$-#&9)#$)*&#$%&E./'$'.)/&B)H!'"&
I!#)%+&E/#&4JKJL&-+&->%*:%:L&<;&)*/.!:)*0&E*0'+#!"-&M)##%"+&-*:&
M.-/=&M%%"+6&&
'
44K6& N%&9'!.:&<%&-.+'&)*#%"%+#%:&)*&;'!"&8)%9+&'*&9$%#$%"&
#$%"%&-"%&'#$%"&)++!%+&#$-#&+$'!.:&<%&/'*+):%"%:&,'"&"%,'">&O&&
&
123' 4*'5*.'!"6%'7.&$!%&'/.88%/$0*+/'7*&'&%7*&9'*7'"-,*!*-'
-0,%+/0+8:'
'
&
'

Page 62



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"##$%&'
'

(!)"*"!'+,-.-/0/'1%-)-.23'+4)"5!$.63'()5'7897':'4$%&5./'$'.&
67)*)8!8&9")/)*0:&6;/'#.-*<:&5/#&=>?=&@-+&(-++%<&)*&A!*%&=>?=&
-*<&@)..&(-B%&#$%&@-C&,'"&#$%&)*#"'<!/#)'*&',&-&("%,%""%<&8)*)8!8&
(")/%&',&D>(&(%"&!*)#E&4$)+&)+&-&+)0*),)/-*#&+#%(&,'"@-"<&)*&#$%&
;/'##)+$&F'B%"*8%*#G+&%,,'"#+&#'&#-/H.%&;/'#.-*<G+&!*$%-.#$C&
"%.-#)'*+$)(&@)#$&-./'$'.E&

$##(IJJ@@@E.%0)+.-#)'*E0'BE!HJ-+(J=>?=J2J/'*#%*#+&

4$%&<"-,#&'"<%"&+%##)*0&-&8)*)8!8&(")/%&',&D>(&$-+&*'@&K%%*&
*'#),)%<&#'&#$%&L!"'(%-*&M'88)++)'*E&&4$%&%-".)%+#&<-#%&,'"&
)8(.%8%*#-#)'*&',&#$%&8)*)8!8&(")/%&)+&=>?3E&
$##(IJJ@@@E.%0)+.-#)'*E0'BE!HJ-+(J=>?=J2J/'*#%*#+&
'
(!)"*"!';5)<'+4)"5!$.63'()5'7898':'#$%&5./'$'.&%#/E&6;/'#.-*<:&
5/#&=>?>&)*#"'<!/%<&-&"-*0%&',&"%+#")/#)'*+&'*&("'8'#)'*+N&-*<&
"%O!)"%<&.)/%*+%<&("%8)+%+&#'&$-B%&-*&-0%&B%"),)/-#)'*&('.)/CE&&
$##(IJJ@@@E.%0)+.-#)'*E0'BE!HJ-+(J=>?>J?PJ/'*#%*#+&
'
=%-/-.$!'>0#5-);'$.6'?-);.#-.2'+4)"5!$.63'()5'7898':'#$%&
M")8)*-.&A!+#)/%&-*<&Q)/%*+)*0&6;/'#.-*<:&5/#&=>?>&/'B%"%<&-&
B-")%#C&',&)++!%+N&9-"#&R&"%.-#%+&#'&5./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0N&)#&@)<%*%<&#$%&
('@%"+&',&('.)/%&-*<&Q;S+E'
$##(IJJ@@@E.%0)+.-#)'*E0'BE!HJ-+(J=>?>J?3J/'*#%*#+&
'
@A'4;%B-);#'C-%;)5-B;':'#"-*+('+%<&)*#'&TU&.%0)+.-#)'*&KC&#$%&
9"'B)+)'*&',&;%"B)/%+&V%0!.-#)'*+&=>>RN&#$%&<)"%/#)B%&+%#+&'!#&$'@&
#$%&)*#%"*-.&8-"H%#&)*&"%.%B-*#&+%"B)/%+&+$'!.<&'(%"-#%E&4$%&-)8&)+&
#'&$%.(&'(%*&!(&#$%&)*#%"*-.&8-"H%#&)*&+%"B)/%+&-/"'++&#$%&LTN&
)*/"%-+)*0&%8(.'C8%*#&'(('"#!*)#)%+&-*<&#"-<%E&&
$##(IJJ@@@E.%0)+.-#)'*E0'BE!HJ!H+)J=>>RJ=RRRJ/'*#%*#+J8-<%&
$##(IJJ@@@EK)+E0'BE!HJ+%"B)/%+<)"%/#)B%&
'
D-5'$.6'1%"E;%'5;#5':'8-*C&.)/%*+)*0&"%0)8%+&)*/.!<%&-&W,)#&-*<&
("'(%"G&#%+#&@$%"%&#$%&X'-"<&<%#%"8)*%+&@$%#$%"&#$%&+!)#-K).)#C&',&
#$%&-((.)/-*#N&,'"&%Y-8(.%&#$'+%&@)#$)*&#$%&M)B)/&F'B%"*8%*#&
6;/'#.-*<:&5/#&?RP=E&4$%&=>>D&5/#&<'%+&*'#&)*/.!<%&-&W,)#'-*<&
("'(%"G&#%+#N&)*&#$%&/-+%&',&-&("%8)+%+&.)/%*/%N&#$%&X'-"<&+$'!.<&
/'*+)<%"&@$%#$%"&#$%&-((.)/-#)'*&)+&)*/'*+)+#%*#&@)#$&'*%&'"&8'"%&
',&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'KZ%/#)B%+N&-*<&#$%&('.)/%&8!+#&("'B)<%&#$%&X'-"<&

Page 63



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&& 22&

3)#$&-&*'#)/%&+#-#)*0&3$%#$%"&#$%&-((.)/-*#&'"&-*4&/'**%/#%5&
(%"+'*&$-+&-*4&"%.%6-*#&',,%*/%+7&8%.%6-*#&',,%*/%+&-"%&5%#-).%5&
)*&9$%&:)/%*+)*0&;8%.%6-*#&<,,%*/%+=&;>/'#.-*5=&8%0!.-#)'*+&?@@A7&

 !"#$%#&$$'()**#+#9$%&B')*#&C/#)'*&D"'!(&;BCD=&3-+&%+#-E.)+$%5&
,'..'3)*0&#$%& ''#E-..&>!FF)#&)*&G-"/$&?@HH&#'&5%6%.'(&("'('+-.+&
#'&5%.)6%"&#$%&I&>!FF)#&/'FF)#F%*#+7&

9$%&BCD&J&3$)/$&$-5&"%("%+%*#-#)'*&,"'F&#$%&>/'##)+$& ''#E-..&
C++'/)-#)'*K&#$%&>/'##)+$&L"%F)%"&:%-0!%K&#$%&>/'##)+$& ''#E-..&
:%-0!%K&M%.#)/& ''#E-..&M.!EK&8-*0%"+& ''#E-..&M.!EK&>#"-#$/.45%&
L'.)/%&-*5&#$%&>/'##)+$&D'6%"*F%*#&J&/-"%,!..4&/'*+)5%"%5&#$%&
/'FF)#F%*#+&-*5&$-+&5%6%.'(%5&("'('+-.+&#'&+!(('"#&#$%)"&
5%.)6%"47&9$%+%&("'('+-.+&-"%&+%#&'!#&)*&#$%&+!FF)#&"%('"#7&

$##(NOO3337+/'#.-*570'67!PO9'()/+OB!+#)/%O.-3O+%/#-")-*)+FJ-/#)'*J
HO,''#E-..J6)'.%*/%O,''#E-..J+!FF)#OBCD&

,-./%0-%1#23.$'*)%45#!.'#6778#9##$%&?@@Q&C/#&,'..'3%5&'*&,"'F&
#$%&3'"P&',&R)/$'.+'*&-*5&S-*)%.+&M'FF)##%%+&-*5&"%(.-/%5&#$%&
:)/%*+)*0&;>/'#.-*5=&C/#&HTAU7&V#&E"'!0$#&)*&#$%&:)/%*+)*0&
<EW%/#)6%+K&-*5&#$%&+4+#%F&',&("%F)+%+&-*5&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%+7##
$##(NOO3337.%0)+.-#)'*70'67!PO-+(O?@@QOHUO/'*#%*#+&
&
#
,-./%0-%1#!.'#677:#9##$%&?@@X&C/#&-((.)%+&#'&Y*0.-*5&-*5&Z-.%+&
-*5&%+#-E.)+$%5&-&+)*0.%K&)*#%0"-#%5&+/$%F%&,'"&.)/%*+)*0&("%F)+%+&
3$)/$&-"%&!+%5&,'"&#$%&+-.%&'"&+!((.4&',&-./'$'.7&
#
,-./%0-%1#;$)<4#9#)*&#%/$*)/-.&#%"F+K&-&['-"5&)+&-&/"%-#)'*&
+%(-"-#%&,"'F&#$%&.'/-.&-!#$'")#47&V*&("-/#)/-.&#%"F+K&)#&/'*+)+#+&',&
.'/-.&-!#$'")#4&/'!*/)..'"+K&3)#$&-&.'/-.&-!#$'")#4&/.%"PK&-&+'.)/)#'"&'"&
-56'/-#%K&("'6)5)*0&+!(('"#&-*5&.%0-.&-56)/%7&9$%&['-"5&
5%#%"F)*%+&-((.)/-#)'*+K&/'*+)5%"+&6-")-#)'*+&-*5&$'.5+&"%6)%3+7#
#
,-./%0-%1#=$%4-'-$%0#1&#$%&?@@Q&C/#&-..'3+&/'*5)#)'*+&#'&E%&
-##-/$%5&#'&-&.)/%*/%&;%\/%(#&,'"&-&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%=K&#$%"%&-"%&,'!"&
#4(%+&',&/'*5)#)'*&&

& G-*5-#'"4&/'*5)#)'*+&1&+%#&*-#)'*-..4&&
& :-#%&<(%*)*0&("%F)+%+&/'*5)#)'*+&1&-((.4&#'&/%"#-)*&
("%F)+%+&#$-#&-"%&'(%*&-,#%"&H-F&

& S)+/"%#)'*-"4&'"&(''.&/'*5)#)'*+&1&+!00%+#%5&/'*5)#)'*+&#$-#&
['-"5+&/'!.5&-((.4&&

Page 64



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&& 23&

& 4'/-.&/'*5)#)'*+&1&+%#&67&4)/%*+)*0&8'-"5+9&,'"&%:-;(.%&
</$).5"%*+&/'*5)#)'*+=>&

8"%-/$&',&-&/'*5)#)'*&/'!.5&"%+!.#&)*&-&.)/%*/%&6%)*0&"%?'@%5>&
 
!"#$%&"%' ()*+, - %-/$&.'/-.&-!#$'")#7&;!+#&%+#-6.)+$&-&
4)/%*+)*0& '"!;9&'"& '"!;+>&A$%&8'-"5&)+&#'&;%%#&B)#$&#$%& '"!;&
-#&.%-+#&'*/%&%-/$&7%-">&A$%& '"!;&+$'!.5&@%%(&!*5%"&"%?)%B&#$%&
'(%"-#)'*&',&#$%&CDD3&E/#9&#$%&%:%"/)+%&',&#$%&8'-"5&',&#$%)"&
,!*/#)'*+9&-*5&0)?%&-5?)/%&'"&"%/';;%*5-#)'*+&-+&#$%7&,%%.&
-(("'(")-#%>  
 
!"#$%&"%' ./0$#1"2$& - #$%&CDD3&E/#&+%#&'!#&,)?%&.)/%*+)*0&
'6F%/#)?%+9&B$)/$&!*5%"()*&#$%&4)/%*+)*0&8'-"5+&)*&#$%&5)+/$-"0%&
',&#$%)"&,!*/#)'*+>&A$%&,)?%&.)/%*+)*0&'6F%/#)?%+&-"%&&

& G"%?%*#)*0&/");%&-*5&5)+'"5%"&
& H%/!")*0&(!6.)/&+-,%#7&
& G"%?%*#)*0&(!6.)/&*!)+-*/%&
& G"'#%/#)*0&-*5&);("'?)*0&(!6.)/&$%-.#$&
& G"'#%/#)*0&/$).5"%*&,"';&$-";&

 
!3.& - 4)/%*+)*0&H#-*5-"5+&I,,)/%"+&-"%&-((')*#%5&67&#$%&.'/-.&
-!#$'")#7&,'"&#$%&"%0!.-#)'*&',&#$%&.)/%*+%5&#"-5%>&A$%7&("'?)5%&
)*,'";-#)'*&-*5&0!)5-*/%9&+!(%"?)+%&/';(.)-*/%&-*5&("'?)5%&
;%5)-#)'*&+%"?)/%+> 
 
.4451*67$ - ("%;)+%+&#$-#&-"%&-!#$'")+%5&#'&+%..&-./'$'.&,'"&
/'*+!;(#)'*&',,&#$%&("%;)+%+9&+!/$&-+&+$'(+&-*5&',,J.)/%*/%+ 
 
.%51*67$ - ("%;)+%+&#$-#&-"%&-!#$'")+%5&#'&+%..&-./'$'.&,'"&
/'*+!;(#)'*&'*&#$%&("%;)+%+9&+!/$&-+&"%+#-!"-*#+9&6-"+&-*5&(!6+>  
 
8$*&)%69 !"#$%#$ :)97$* -&!*5%"&#$%&CDD3&E/#9&%-/$&+-.%&',&
-./'$'.&!*5%"&-&("%;)+%+&.)/%*/%9&;!+#&6%&;-5%&!*5%"&#$%&
-!#$'")#7&',&-&(%"+'*-.&.)/%*/%&$'.5%">& 
 
8*$,"&$& !"#$%#$ - -&("%;)+%+&.)/%*/%&/'*?%7+&#$%&-6).)#7&#'&+%..&
-./'$'.&,"';&#$%&("%;)+%+&#'&B$)/$&#$%&.)/%*/%&"%.-#%+>&A$%&
("%;)+%+&.)/%*/%&;!+#&+(%/),7&-&("%;)+%+&;-*-0%"> 
 
.2$*;*)2"&")% - %?%"7&+#-#%;%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/7&(!6.)+$%5&67&
-&4)/%*+)*0&8'-"5&;!+#&)*/.!5%&-*&+#-#%;%*#&-+&#'&#$%&%:#%*#&#'&

Page 65



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

4$)/$&#$%&5'-"6&/'*+)6%"+&#$%"%&#'&7%&'8%"("'8)+)'*9&
:8%"("'8)+)'*&)+&-&0"'!*6&,'"&"%,!+)*0&-&("%;)+%+&.)/%*/%9 
 
!"#$"%& ' -*<&(%"+'*&;-<&"%=!%+#&#$%&"%8)%4&',&-&("%;)+%+&
.)/%*/%>&#$%&0"'!*6+&,'"&"%8)%4&-"%&#$-#&#$%"%&$-+&7%%*&-&7"%-/$&',&
-&/'*6)#)'*&'"&-*<&'#$%"&0"'!*6&"%.-#)*0&#'&'*%&'"&;'"%&',&#$%&
.)/%*+)*0&'7?%/#)8%+9&@,&#$%&5'-"6&-//%(#+&#$%&"%8)%4&-((.)/-#)'*>&
#$%*&#$%<&;!+#&$'.6&-&$%-")*09& '..'4)*0&#$%&$%-")*0&#$%<&/-*&
)++!%&-&4")##%*&4-"*)*0>&;-A%&-&8-")-#)'*&#'&#$%&.)/%*/%>&+!+(%*6&
#$%&.)/%*/%>&"%8'A%&#$%&.)/%*/%>&'"&#-A%&*'&-/#)'*9 
 
()*)"+",) -. /$0",&$,1 2-3$04 ' )#&)+&-&+#-#!#'"<&"%=!)"%;%*#&,'"&
5'-"6+&#'&("%(-"%&-&+#-#%;%*#&',&.)/%*+)*0&('.)/<>&4$)/$&+$'!.6&
("';'#%&#$%&.)/%*+)*0&'7?%/#)8%+9&B$)+&+$'!.6&)*/.!6%&-&+#-#%;%*#&
-+&#'&#$%&%C#%*#&#'&4$)/$&#$%&5'-"6&/'*+)6%"+&#$%"%&)+&
'8%"("'8)+)'*&',&.)/%*+%6&("%;)+%+>&'"&.)/%*+%6&("%;)+%+&',&-&
(-"#)/!.-"&#<(%9  
 

Page 66



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

  
!""#$ !% &#'()"*+", -) -.# /)"'01-!-+)" 
&
4.%-+%&+%*5&6'!"&"%+('*+%&7)#$&#$%&/'8(.%#%5&9%+('*5%*#&:*,'"8-#)'*& '"8&
;-#&<==>?&@A&#'B&&
.)/%*+)*0C/'*+!.#-#)'*D+/'#.-*5C0+)C0'EC!F&&
'"&&
4%#%"&9%)5&
G)/%*+)*0&H%-8&
IJ&K#&<*5"%7L+&M'!+%&
9%0%*#&9'-5&
>5)*N!"0$&
>MO&PQR&
&
:,&6'!&$-E%&-*6&S!%")%+&/'*#-/#&4%#%"&9%)5&'*&TOPO&I22&2UPP&
 
H$%&5%-5.)*%&,'"&"%+('*5)*0&)+ 234567 89 :63;<C&
&
J%&7'!.5&N%&0"-#%,!.&),&6'!&7'!.5&!+%&#$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&S!%+#)'**-)"%&("'E)5%5&
;-#&<==>?&@A&'"&/'!.5&/.%-".6&)*5)/-#%&)*&6'!"&"%+('*+%&7$)/$&S!%+#)'*+&6'!&
-"%&"%+('*5)*0&#'&-+&#$)+&7)..&-)5&'!"&-*-.6+)+&',&#$%&"%+('*+%+&"%/%)E%5C&&
&
H$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*V&-*5&-..&'#$%"&K/'##)+$&R'E%"*8%*#&/'*+!.#-#)'*&%W%"/)+%+V&
/-*&N%&E)%7%5&'*.)*%&'*&#$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&7%N&(-0%+&',&#$%&K/'##)+$&
R'E%"*8%*#&7%N+)#%&-#B&
$##(BXX777C+/'#.-*5C0'EC!FX/'*+!.#-#)'*+C&&
&&
H$%&K/'##)+$&R'E%"*8%*#&$-+&-*&%8-).&-.%"#&+6+#%8&,'"&/'*+!.#-#)'*+B&
$##(BXX"%0)+#%"C+/'#.-*5C0'EC!FC&&
&
H$)+&+6+#%8&-..'7+&+#-F%$'.5%"&)*5)E)5!-.+&-*5&'"0-*)+-#)'*+&#'&"%0)+#%"&-*5&
"%/%)E%&-&7%%F.6&%8-).&/'*#-)*)*0&5%#-).+&',&-..&*%7&/'*+!.#-#)'*+&;)*/.!5)*0&
7%N&.)*F+AC&:#&/'8(.%8%*#+V&N!#&)*&*'&7-6&"%(.-/%+&K/'##)+$&R'E%"*8%*#&
5)+#")N!#)'*&.)+#+V&-*5&)+&5%+)0*%5&#'&-..'7&+#-F%$'.5%"+&#'&F%%(&!(&#'&5-#%&7)#$&
-..&K/'##)+$&R'E%"*8%*#&/'*+!.#-#)'*&-/#)E)#6V&-*5&#$%"%,'"%&N%&-.%"#%5&-#&#$%&
%-".)%+#&'(('"#!*)#6&#'&#$'+%&',&8'+#&)*#%"%+#C&J%&7'!.5&%*/'!"-0%&6'!&#'&
"%0)+#%"C&&
 
.6=5>4=? 7@A3 3BCD@=CB  
J%&*%%5&#'&F*'7&$'7&6'!&7)+$&6'!"&"%+('*+%&#'&N%&$-*5.%5&-*5V&)*&
(-"#)/!.-"V&7$%#$%"&6'!&-"%&$-((6&,'"&6'!"&"%+('*+%&#'&N%&8-5%&(!N.)/C&
4.%-+%&/'8(.%#%&-*5&"%#!"*&#$%&9%+('*5%*#&:*,'"8-#)'*& '"8V&7$)/$&,'"8+&
(-"#&',&#$%&/'*+!.#-#)'*&S!%+#)'**-)"%V&-+&#$)+&7)..&%*+!"%&#$-#&7%&#"%-#&6'!"&
"%+('*+%&-(("'(")-#%.6C&:,&6'!&-+F&,'"&6'!"&"%+('*+%&*'#&#'&N%&(!N.)+$%5&7%&
7)..&"%0-"5&)#&-+&/'*,)5%*#)-.V&-*5&7%&7)..&#"%-#&)#&-//'"5)*0.6C&&
&
<..&"%+('*5%*#+&+$'!.5&N%&-7-"%&#$-#&#$%&K/'##)+$&R'E%"*8%*#&-"%&+!NY%/#&#'&
#$%&("'E)+)'*+&',&#$%& "%%5'8&',&:*,'"8-#)'*&;K/'#.-*5A&</#&ITTI&-*5&7'!.5&
#$%"%,'"%&$-E%&#'&/'*+)5%"&-*6&"%S!%+#&8-5%&#'&)#&!*5%"&#$%&</#&,'"&
)*,'"8-#)'*&"%.-#)*0&#'&"%+('*+%+&8-5%&#'&#$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&%W%"/)+%C&&

Page 67



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

&
 !"#$%#!&%$'($#)!$&*+,!%%$$
4$%"%&"%+('*5%*#+&$-6%&0)6%*&(%"7)++)'*&,'"&#$%)"&"%+('*+%&#'&8%&7-5%&
(!8.)/&-*5&-,#%"&9%&$-6%&/$%/:%5&#$-#&#$%;&/'*#-)*&*'&('#%*#)-..;&5%,-7-#'";&
7-#%")-.<&"%+('*+%+&9)..&8%&7-5%&-6-).-8.%&#'&#$%&(!8.)/&)*&#$%&=/'##)+$&
>'6%"*7%*#&?)8"-";&@+%%&#$%&-##-/$%5&A%+('*5%*#&B*,'"7-#)'*& '"7C<&#$%+%&
9)..&8%&7-5%&-6-).-8.%&#'&#$%&(!8.)/D&E'!&/-*&7-:%&-""-*0%7%*#+&#'&6)%9&
"%+('*+%+&8;&/'*#-/#)*0&#$%&=>&?)8"-";&'*&FGHG&I22&2JJID&A%+('*+%+&/-*&
8%&/'()%5&-*5&+%*#&#'&;'!<&8!#&-&/$-"0%&7-;&8%&7-5%&,'"&#$)+&+%"6)/%D&&
$
-).#$).&&!(%$(!"#/$$
 '..'9)*0&#$%&/.'+)*0&5-#%<&-..&"%+('*+%+&9)..&8%&-*-.;+%5&-*5&/'*+)5%"%5&
-.'*0&9)#$&-*;&'#$%"&-6-).-8.%&%6)5%*/%&#'&$%.(&!+&"%-/$&-&5%/)+)'*&'*&-*;&
/$-*0%+&#'&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0D&4%&-)7&#'&)++!%&-&"%('"#&'*&#$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&
("'/%++&)*&=!77%"&IFGHD&&
$
0+11!(#%$.(2$,+1&3.'(#%$$
B,&;'!&$-6%&-*;&/'77%*#+&-8'!#&$'9&#$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&%K%"/)+%&$-+&8%%*&
/'*5!/#%5<&(.%-+%&+%*5&#$%7&#'&L%#%"&A%)5&!+)*0&#$%&5%#-).+&-8'6%D&

Page 68



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&& 23&

 !!"#$%&$'("$)*+'',)($-+."/!0"!'$*+!)12' ',+!$3/+*"))$$
&
4'*+!.#-#)'*&)+&-*&%++%*#)-.&-*5&)6('"#-*#&-+(%/#&',&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&
:'";)*0&6%#$'5+<&8)9%*&#$%&:)5%="-*0)*0&-"%-+&',&:'";&',&#$%&7/'##)+$&
8'9%"*6%*#>&#$%"%&-"%&6-*?&9-")%5&#?(%+&',&/'*+!.#-#)'*<&@':%9%">&)*&
0%*%"-.>&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&/'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%+&-)6&#'&("'9)5%&
'(('"#!*)#)%+&,'"&-..&#$'+%&:$'&:)+$&#'&%A("%++&#$%)"&'()*)'*+&'*&-&("'('+%5&
-"%-&',&:'";&#'&5'&+'&)*&:-?+&:$)/$&:)..&)*,'"6&-*5&%*$-*/%&#$-#&:'";<&&
&
B$%&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&%*/'!"-0%+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&#$-#&)+&#$'"'!0$>&%,,%/#)9%&
-*5&-(("'(")-#%&#'&#$%&)++!%&!*5%"&/'*+)5%"-#)'*&-*5&#$%&*-#!"%&',&#$%&#-"0%#&
-!5)%*/%<&4'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%+&#-;%&-//'!*#&',&-&:)5%&"-*0%&',&,-/#'"+>&-*5&
*'&#:'&%A%"/)+%+&-"%&.);%.?&#'&C%&#$%&+-6%<&&
&
B?()/-..?&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&/'*+!.#-#)'*+&)*9'.9%&-&:")##%*&(-(%"&)*9)#)*0&
-*+:%"+&#'&+(%/),)/&D!%+#)'*+&'"&6'"%&0%*%"-.&9)%:+&-C'!#&#$%&6-#%")-.&
("%+%*#%5<&E")##%*&(-(%"+&-"%&5)+#")C!#%5&#'&'"0-*)+-#)'*+&-*5&)*5)9)5!-.+&:)#$&
-*&)*#%"%+#&)*&#$%&)++!%>&-*5&#$%?&-"%&-.+'&(.-/%5&'*&#$%&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&
:%C&+)#%&%*-C.)*0&-&:)5%"&-!5)%*/%&#'&-//%++&#$%&(-(%"&-*5&+!C6)#&#$%)"&
"%+('*+%+&
&
4'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%+&6-?&-.+'&)*9'.9%&+%%;)*0&9)%:+&)*&-&*!6C%"&',&
5),,%"%*#&:-?+>&+!/$&-+&#$"'!0$&(!C.)/&6%%#)*0+>&,'/!+&0"'!(+&'"&
D!%+#)'**-)"%&%A%"/)+%+<&4'()%+&',&-..&#$%&:")##%*&"%+('*+%+&"%/%)9%5&#'&-&
/'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%&F%A/%(#&#$'+%&:$%"%&#$%&)*5)9)5!-.&'"&'"0-*)+-#)'*&
"%D!%+#%5&/'*,)5%*#)-.)#?G&-"%&(.-/%5&)*&#$%&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&.)C"-"?&-#&
7-!0$#'*&@'!+%>&H5)*C!"0$&FI&7(!">&7-!0$#'*&@'!+%>&J"''6$'!+%&K")9%>&
H5)*C!"0$>&H@LL&MNK>&#%.%($'*%&OLML&P22&2QRQG<&&
&
S..&7/'##)+$&8'9%"*6%*#&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"+&-*5&"%.-#%5&(!C.)/-#)'*+&F%<0<&
-*-.?+)+&',&"%+('*+%&"%('"#+G&/-*&C%&-//%++%5&-#T&&
$##(TUU:::<+/'#.-*5<0'9<!;U/'*+!.#-#)'*+&
&
B$%&9)%:+&-*5&+!00%+#)'*+&5%#-).%5&)*&/'*+!.#-#)'*&"%+('*+%+&-"%&-*-.?+%5&
-*5&!+%5&-+&(-"#&',&#$%&5%/)+)'*&6-;)*0&("'/%++>&-.'*0&:)#$&-&"-*0%&',&'#$%"&
-9-).-C.%&)*,'"6-#)'*&-*5&%9)5%*/%<&K%(%*5)*0&'*&#$%&*-#!"%&',&#$%&
/'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%&#$%&"%+('*+%+&"%/%)9%5&6-?T&&
&

& )*5)/-#%&#$%&*%%5&,'"&('.)/?&5%9%.'(6%*#&'"&"%9)%:&&
& )*,'"6&#$%&5%9%.'(6%*#&',&-&(-"#)/!.-"&('.)/?&&
& $%.(&5%/)+)'*+&#'&C%&6-5%&C%#:%%*&-.#%"*-#)9%&('.)/?&("'('+-.+&&
& C%&!+%5&#'&,)*-.)+%&.%0)+.-#)'*&C%,'"%&)#&)+&)6(.%6%*#%5&&

&
 )*-.&5%/)+)'*+&'*&#$%&)++!%+&!*5%"&/'*+)5%"-#)'*&:)..&-.+'&#-;%&-//'!*#&',&-&
"-*0%&',&'#$%"&,-/#'"+&)*/.!5)*0&'#$%"&-9-).-C.%&)*,'"6-#)'*&-*5&"%+%-"/$&
%9)5%*/%<&&
&
E$).%&5%#-).+&',&(-"#)/!.-"&/)"/!6+#-*/%+&5%+/")C%5&)*&-&"%+('*+%&#'&-&
/'*+!.#-#)'*&%A%"/)+%&6-?&!+%,!..?&)*,'"6&#$%&('.)/?&("'/%++>&/'*+!.#-#)'*&

Page 69



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

%4%"/)+%+&/-**'#&-55"%++&)*5)6)5!-.&/'*/%"*+&-*5&/'77%*#+8&9$)/$&+$'!.5&
:%&5)"%/#%5&#'&#$%&"%.%6-*#&(!:.)/&:'5;<&
&

Page 70



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !!"#$%&$%'!()*+ +,'!$-)"(+,'!! ,."$
$
/012341$5627589$:51$;<=535<$<7=48978>$?$=5890<2;2758$6;641$$
&
456789:59;&<9 84=>;<89& 84=&
7.%-+%&9'#%&#$)+&,'"?&@092&@%&"%#!"*%A&B)#$&C'!"&"%+('*+%&#'&%*+!"%&#$-#&B%&$-*A.%&C'!"&
"%+('*+%&-(("'(")-#%.C&
&
1. Name/Organisation 
'1>;879;2758$!;@4$

& & & & & &
$

+72<4&&A1$ $$$A9$ $$$A19$ $$$A799$ $$$B1$ $$$$$$ Please tick as appropriate
$
(018;@4$

& & & & & &
/5148;@4$

& & & & & &

2. Postal Address 
& & & & & &
& & & & & &
& & & & & &
& & & & & &
C592=5D4$& & & & & $ C3584$& & & & & $ "@;7<$& & & & & $
&
3. Permissions$$E$,$;@$149658D78>$;9F

& & $ ,8D7G7D0;<$ H$ I1506H'1>;879;2758$ $ & &

& & & & & Please tick as appropriate & & & & &

& & & & & & &
&

&
& & & & & &

J;K$ :'&C'!&-0"%%&#'&C'!"&"%+('*+%&@%)*0&
?-A%&-D-).-@.%&#'&#$%&(!@.)/&E)*&6/'##)+$&
F'D%"*?%*#&.)@"-"C&-*AG'"&'*&#$%&6/'##)+$&
F'D%"*?%*#&B%@&+)#%HI&

Please tick as appropriate L49$$$ $!5

$
J=K$ ;$%&*-?%&-*A&-AA"%++&',&C'!"&'"0-*)+-#)'*&

will be&?-A%&-D-).-@.%&#'&#$%&(!@.)/&E)*&#$%&
6/'##)+$&F'D%"*?%*#&.)@"-"C&-*AG'"&'*&#$%&
6/'##)+$&F'D%"*?%*#&B%@&+)#%HJ&
$

JMK$ K$%"%&/'*,)A%*#)-.)#C&)+&*'#&"%L!%+#%AM&B%&
B)..&?-N%&C'!"&"%+('*+%+&-D-).-@.%&#'&#$%&
(!@.)/&'*&#$%&,'..'B)*0&@-+)+$

$ $ >"%&C'!&/'*#%*#&,'"&C'!"&response&#'&@%&
?-A%&-D-).-@.%I$

$ Please tick ONE of the following boxes$ $ $ Please tick as appropriate L49$$$ !5

$ O%+M&?-N%&?C&"%+('*+%M&*-?%&
-*A&-AA"%++&-..&-D-).-@.%$ $ $ $ $ $

$ $ or$ $ $ $ $
$ O%+M&?-N%&?C&"%+('*+%&-D-).-@.%M&

@!#&*'#&?C&*-?%&-*A&-AA"%++$ $ $ $ $ $

$ $ or$ $ $ $ $
$ O%+M&?-N%&?C&"%+('*+%&-*A&*-?%&

-D-).-@.%M&@!#&*'#&?C&-AA"%++$
$ $ $ $ $

$ & $ $ $ $

JDK$ K%&B)..&+$-"%&C'!"&"%+('*+%&)*#%"*-..C&B)#$&'#$%"&6/'##)+$&F'D%"*?%*#&('.)/C&#%-?+&B$'&?-C&@%&-AA"%++)*0&
#$%&)++!%+&C'!&A)+/!++J&;$%C&?-C&B)+$&#'&/'*#-/#&C'!&-0-)*&)*&#$%&,!#!"%M&@!#&B%&"%L!)"%&C'!"&(%"?)++)'*&#'&
A'&+'J&>"%&C'!&/'*#%*#&,'"&6/'##)+$&F'D%"*?%*#&#'&/'*#-/#&C'!&-0-)*&)*&"%.-#)'*&#'&#$)+&/'*+!.#-#)'*&%P%"/)+%I&

Please tick as appropriate L49$ $ !5$

Page 71



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

456789:;:<56&=8>7:<567&
&
 !"#$"%&'()*+"%",#-&!"$.")*+"/0"%1('%2(3'%#/$4"'$5%61%&#'7*03!#'%
*/7"'"$7%4*!!%8"%*/1('-#7*(/%(/%79"%*-&#07%7(%83$*/"$$%#/+%'":3!#7('$%#$%
#%'"$3!7%(1%&'(&($"+%09#/:"$;%*/0!3+*/:%*/1('-#7*(/%(/%79"%#++*7*(/#!%
0($7$%(1%#/2%09#/:"$%&'(&($"+;%79"%*-&#07%(/%0(-&"7*7*(/%#/+%*-&#07%
(/%-*0'(%#/+%$-#!!%83$*/"$$"$5%<(!37*(/$%7(%-*7*:#7"%#/2%/":#7*)"%
*-&#07$%#'"%#!$(%4"!0(-"5%
&
=5% >'"%2(3%'"$&(/+*/:%#$%#/?%
?-@& )*A)B)A!-.& & & & &
?C@& (")D-").E&'*F#"-A%&C!+)*%++& &
?/@&& (")D-").E&',,F#"-A%&C!+)*%++& &
?A@& D%DC%"+G&/.!C& & & &
?%@& .'/-.&-!#$'")#E&& & & &
?,@& -*'#$%"&C!+)*%++&'"&'"0-*)+-#)'*H&(.%-+%&+(%/),E& &
%
4'DD%*#+&
%
&
@5%% A(%2(3%#:'""%79#7%*7%$9(3!+%8"%*!!":#!%1('%#+3!7$%7(%$3&&!2%#!0(9(!%
7(%#/%3/+"'%=B%1('%0(/$3-&7*(/%*/%#%&38!*0%&!#0"C%
%
I%+&& &&6'&& &
&
4'DD%*#+&
&
D5%% >'"%79"'"%$&"0*1*0%0*'03-$7#/0"$%*/%49*09%79*$%$9(3!+%/(7%8"%
*!!":#!C%
%
I%+&& &&6'&& &
%
4'DD%*#+&
%
E5%% A("$%$"07*(/%FG%1('-%#%$3*7#8!"%8#$*$%(/%49*09%7(%&'()*+"%
",7"/+"+%&(!*0"%&(4"'C%
%
I%+&& &&6'&& &
%
4'DD%*#+&
%
H5%% <9(3!+%79"%&'(0"+3'"%3/+"'%$"07*(/%FG%8"%",7"/+"+%7(%#!!(4%79"%
&(!*0"%7(%#&&!2%7(%79"%I(#'+%1('%79"%0!($3'"%(1%&'"-*$"$%4*79*/%#%
:"(:'#&9*0#!%#'"#;%('%$9(3!+%79"%&(!*0"%*/$7"#+%9#)"%7(%#&&!2%7(%79"%
<9"'*11%1('%#&&'()#!%(1%'"$7'*07*(/$%*/%#%4*+"'%:"(:'#&9*0#!%#'"#C%
%
I%+&& &&6'&& &

Page 72



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 
4'55%*#+&

 
!"  #$%&'( )*+),-.%/0 1) 2''%3)( 3.-$./ -$) 4)%452,$.+2' 25)26 7%5 
)*28,') 7%5 ,5)92552/4)( 3)((./4 5)+),-.%/06 (.5)+-%50: 
1%*)0;+%5,%52-) $%0,.-2'.-<6 )-+"= 
 
6%+&& &&7'&& &
 
4'55%*#+&

 
>"   #$%&'( ?%25(0 1) 21') -% .8,%0) 2((.-.%/2' +%/(.-.%/0 -% 2,,'< 
@25.2-.%/0 -% %,)/./4 $%&506 7%5 0%8) %5 2'' '.+)/0)( ,5)8.0)06 -% 
5)0-5.+- -$) 02') %7 2'+%$%' 25%&/( 7%%-12'' 82-+$)0 %5 %-$)5 )@)/-0 '.A)'< 
-% 1) 200%+.2-)( 3.-$ (.0%5()5= 
 
6%+&& &&7'&& &
 
4'55%*#+&

&
B"  C% <%& $2@) +%/+)5/0 21%&- -$.0 ,5%,%02'6 2/( .7 0%6 3$2- 25) 
-$)<= 
 
6%+&& &&7'&& &
 
4'55%*#+&

 
D" #$%&'( ?%25(0 1) 21') -% 2,,'< /)3 '.+)/0./4 +%/(.-.%/0 -% 2'' 
)*.0-./4 '.+)/0)( ,5)8.0)0 3.-$%&- -$) /))( -% +%/0.()5 )2+$ ./(.@.(&2' 
'.+)/+)= 
 
6%+&& &&7'&& &
 
4'55%*#+&

&
EF" G$2- ,5%+)(&5)0 0$%&'( 2,,'< 1)7%5) 0&+$ +%/(.-.%/0 25) 2,,'.)( 
2/( 3$2- 5.4$-0 %7 2,,)2' 3%&'( 1) 2,,5%,5.2-)= 
 
4'55%*#+&

 
EE"  #$%&'( -$) ')4.0'2-.%/ 1) 28)/()( 0% -$2- ?%25(0 25) 20A)( -% 
+%/0.()5 3$)-$)5 2/ 2,,'.+2/- .0 2 H7.- 2/( ,5%,)5: ,)50%/= 
 
6%+&& &&7'&& &
 
4'55%*#+&

 

Page 73



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&'()#*%+,+#-+#.#)+/010*0&1#&/#2/0*#.1)#3,&3+,4#.1)#0/#5&6#7%.*#
5%&'()#0*#8&1505*#&/9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 :"## $%&'()#;&.,)5#-+#3(.8+)#'1)+,#.#5*.*'*&,<#&-(0=.*0&1#*&#3,&>&*+#
*%+#(08+1501=#&-?+8*0@+59#
##
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 A"## B%.*#0>3.8*#7&'()#*%05#%.@+#&1#*%+#7&,C#&/#;&.,)59#
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 D"## $%&'()#;&.,)5#-+#3(.8+)#'1)+,#.#5*.*'*&,<#&-(0=.*0&1#*&#,+3&,*#
+.8%#<+.,#&1#%&7#*%+#;&.,)#%.5#/'(/0((+)#0*5#)'*<#*&#3,&>&*+#+.8%#&/#*%+#
(08+1501=#&-?+8*0@+59#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 E"## $%&'()#*%+#,+3&,*#-+#5'->0**+)#*&#$8&**05%#F0105*+,56#*%+#G&8.(#
G08+1501=#H&,'>6#.1)I&,#5&>+#&*%+,#-&)<9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 J"## $%&'()#;&.,)5#-+#3(.8+)#'1)+,#.#5*.*'*&,<#)'*<#*&#=.*%+,#.1)#
.55+55#01/&,>.*0&1#&1#+.8%#&/#*%+#(08+1501=#&-?+8*0@+5#01#*%+#
3,+3.,.*0&1#&/#*%+0,#5*.*+>+1*#&/#(08+1501=#3&(08<9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#

Page 74



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
22&

 !"#$%&'#()*)+,'-#./012#-03%#&#-'&'0'/45#20'5#(4,*67#
#
3'44%*#+&

#
 8"## 9%/012#'%)#:)4,/2#'%&'#&#-'&');)*'#/+#1,3)*-,*6#:/1,35#,-#,*#+/43)#
()#)<')*2)2#'/#+,=)#5)&4-7#
#
5%+&& &&6'&& &
#
3'44%*#+&

#
>?"## 9%/012#'%)4)#()#&#-'&'0'/45#/0-')4#31&0-)#1,;,',*6#&::)&1-#&6&,*-'#
&*#&2/:')2#1,3)*-,*6#:/1,35#-'&');)*'#/0'-,2)#,'-#,*'4/203'/45#:)4,/27#
#
5%+&& &&6'&& &
#
3'44%*#+&

 

> "## @-#'%)4)#3044)*'15#&*#,--0)#.,'%#1,3)*3)#%/12)4-#.%/#2/#*/'#%&=)#&#
4)&-/*&(1)#3/;;&*2#/+#A*61,-%7#
#
5%+&& &&6'&& &
#
3'44%*#+&

#
>>"## @+#'%)4)#,-#&#:4/(1);B#.%&'#./012#()#5/04#:4)+)44)2#;)&*-#'/#
&224)--#'%,-7#
#
3'44%*#+&

&
>C"## $/012#)<:&*2,*6#'%)#-3/:)#/+#'%)#D3'#+4/;#E-&1)F#'/#E-&1)#&*2#
-0::15F#&224)--#'%)#0*3)4'&,*',)-#34)&')2#(5#G4,6%'34).7#
#
5%+&& &&6'&& &
#
3'44%*#+&

&
>H"## $/012#:1&3,*6#&#6)*)4&1#20'5#/*#G/&42-#'/#E:4/;/')F#4&'%)4#'%&*#
E%&=)#4)6&42F#'/#'%)#1,3)*-,*6#3/*2,',/*-#&224)--#'%)#0*3)4'&,*',)-#
34)&')2#(5#G4,6%'34).7#
#
5%+&& &&6'&& &
#
3'44%*#+&

#

Page 75



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&'(#)*+,-.#/'0*1#23*2#230#4/2#*''%56#10.&'*2,%-#%7#230#6*'0#%7#
*'/%3%'#or other activities#,-#230#',/0-60(#810),606#5,23,-#',/0-60(#3%&16#
*((1066#230#&-/012*,-2,06#/10*20(#9:#;1,.32/105<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 ="# $%&'(#:%&#6&..062#*-%2301#*881%*/3#2%#106%'>0#230#&-/012*,-2,06#
*1,6,-.#71%)#;1,.32/105<#
#
6'77%*#+&

&
 ?"## @%#:%&#*.100#23*2#23010#63%&'(#90#*((,2,%-*'#10621,/2,%-6#%-#230#
%801*2,%-#%7#)0)9016A#/'&96<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

&
 B"## @%#:%&#*.100#23*2#910*/3#%7#81%>,6,%-6#5,23,-#*#/'&9#/%-62,2&2,%-#
10'*2,-.#2%#230#6*'0#%7#*'/%3%'#63%&'(#90/%)0#*#910*/3#%7#',/0-/0#
*''%5,-.#230#C,/0-6,-.#;%*1(#2%#10>,05#230#',/0-/0<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 D"## $3*2#5%&'(#90#230#106%&1/0#,)8',/*2,%-6#7%1#'%/*'#*&23%1,2,06#*-(#
/'&96#,7#230#/%-62,2&2,%-#3*(#2%#90#,-/%18%1*20(#,-2%#230#',/0-/0<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
EF"## @%#:%&#3*>0#*-:#%2301#81%8%6*'6#2%#2,.320-#&8#230#10.&'*2,%-#%7#
)0)9016A#/'&96G#7%1#0H*)8'0#231%&.3#*((,2,%-*'#)*-(*2%1:#/%-(,2,%-6<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#

Page 76



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&'()#*%+#$,&**-.%#/&0+123+2*#41&0-)+#5))-*-&25(#6'-)52,+#&1#
1+6'(5*-&2#7&1#8-,+2.-26#9&51).#&2#*%+#,&2)',*#&7#%+51-26.#52)#:%;<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 ="## >52#;&'#41&0-)+#+?534(+.#&7#451*-,'(51(;#6&&)#&1#@5)#415,*-,+#5*#
9&51)#%+51-26.<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
  "## $%&'()#9&51)#3++*-26.#@+#%+()#-2#4'@(-,A#-2#*%+-1#+2*-1+*;<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 B"## C%5*#&*%+1#-..'+.#.%&'()#@+#,&2.-)+1+)#7&1#-2,('.-&2#-2#52;#
6'-)52,+#&2#9&51)#41&,+)'1+.#52)#:%;<#
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 D"## $%&'()#*%+#$,&**-.%#/&0+123+2*#-2*1&)',+#5#25*-&25(#(-,+2.-26#
4&(-,;#.*5*+3+2*#52)#:%;<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 E"## C%5*#.&1*#&7#-..'+.#.%&'()#.',%#5#.*5*+3+2*#,&0+1<##
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 F"## $%&'()#*%+#(-,+2.-26#&@G+,*-0+#@+#53+2)+)#*&#.5;#H41&*+,*#
,%-()1+2#52)#;&'26#4+&4(+I<#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#

Page 77



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&'#()&#*+,,&-(#./-0/(%,1#*%-02(2%-#2-#,&3/(2%-#(%#4)/33&-5&#67#
*,&/(&#02882*+3(2&'9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 :"## $%#1%+#/5,&&#()/(#()&#0+(1#/'#;,&'&-(31#0,/8(&0#2'#+-<%,=/>3&#/-0#
<)19#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
?@"## A/B# $%#1%+#;,&8&,#()&#;,%;%'/3#()/(#()&#0+(1#')%+30#>&#
/.&-0&0#(%#,&/0#()/(##
# 89$%*&-&("%7)+%+&.)/%*/%&$'.:%"&)+&-9-"%&;'"&+$'!.:&"%-+'*-<.=&<%&
& %>(%/#%:&#'&<%&-9-"%?&',&-&/$-*0%@AAB&&&
&
# A>B# C,#0%#1%+#;,&8&,#()&#;,%;%'/3#(%#/0%;(#()&#<%,02-5#8,%.#()&#
42D2*#E%D&,-.&-(#AF*%(3/-0B#G*(#H:!6##
# #C9$%"%<=&CD$%&-/#)E)#=&#'&9$)/$&)#&"%.-#%+&9'!.:&<%&7-*-0%:&<=&'"&
& /-"")%:&'*&,'"&#$%&<%*%,)#&',&-&(%"+'*F&'#$%"&#$-*&#$%&-((.)/-*#F&9$'&
& 9'!.:&<%&"%,!+%:&#$%&0"-*#&&'"&"%*%9-.&',&+!/$&-&.)/%*/%&),&$%&7-:%&#$%&
& -((.)/-#)'*&$)7+%.,GA&
&
& A*B# G3(&,-/(2D&31#0%#1%+#)/D&#/-1#%()&,#'+55&'(2%-'9#
#
6'77%*#+&
#
?H"## I-#*%..%-#<2()#()&#;,&.2'&'#32*&-*&#)%30&,#/-0#2-(&,&'(&0#
;/,(2&'J#')%+30#/#;,&.2'&'#./-/5&,#)/D&#D2*/,2%+'#32/>232(1#8%,#()&#
%88&-*&'#%8#&.;3%1&&'9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
?6"## F)%+30#'&*(2%-#K#%8#()&#6@@7#G*(J#()&#0+(1#(%#/''&''#
%D&,;,%D2'2%-J#>&#/.&-0&0#(%#'(/(&#()/(#()&#3%*/32(1#8%,#/''&''.&-(#%8#
%D&,;,%D2'2%-#*/-#>&#()&#&-(2,&#>%/,0#/,&/9#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#

Page 78



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&'(#)*+,#-./0#+)#0.,+01#2%1#3%.1(,#)%#.,,0,,#%40151%4+,+%67#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
  "## 8*%&'(#,09)+%6#:#%2#)*0#;<<=#>9)?#)*0#(&)@#)%#.,,0,,#%40151%4+,+%6#
A0#.-06(0(?#)%#-./0#+)#9'0.1#)*.)#%40151%4+,+%6#9.6#+69'&(0#.6#+6910.,0#
+6#9.5.9+)@#B*010#)*010#+,#6%#+6910.,0#+6#)*0#6&-A01#%2#510-+,0,7#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 ="## 8*%&'(#)*0#89%))+,*#'+906,+6C#10C+-0#.55'@#)%#%1(01,#(+,5.)9*0(#
21%-#%&)#B+)*#89%)'.6(7#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 D"## E2#)*+,#B010#+6)1%(&90(?#B%&'(#+)#A0#5%,,+A'0#2%1#)*0#5%'+90#.6(#
'%9.'#.&)*%1+)+0,#A0#.A'0#)%#9.11@#%&)#-0.6+6C2&'#9%-5'+.690#.6(#
062%190-06)#.9)+%67#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 :"## 8*%&'(#.''#C.1.C0,#A0#102&,0(#.#510-+,0,#'+906907#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 F"## $*.)?#+2#.6@#0G0-5)+%6,#,*%&'(#.55'@7#
#
6'77%*#+&
#
 H"## I.6#@%&#,&CC0,)#.6#.')016.)+40#.551%.9*#B*+9*#B%&'(#.((10,,#
9%69016,7#
#
6'77%*#+&
#

Page 79



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !"## $%&#'()#*+*%&#(,#-&.)/.&#/00)&0#(,#1*%201/3#4(#*335/6*.40#6*)0&2#
7'#2&5*'0#/.#8(*%20#1&*%/.-#6*0&0#,(55(+/.-#41&#9(6*5#:(;&%.<&.4#
&5&64/(.0=#
#
4%+&& &&5'&& &
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 >"## ?,#0(@#+1*4#+()52#7&#'()%#3%&,&%%&2#*33%(*61#4(#*22%&00#41/0#
/00)&#(,#*56(1(5#5/6&.0/.-=#
#
6'77%*#+&

#
 A"## B(#'()#1*;&#,)%41&%#0)--&04/(.0#,(%#%&,(%<=#
#
6'77%*#+&

#
&

Page 80



 !"#$%"&'(#)'*+&,'"&-./'$'.&.)/%*+)*0&1&/'*+!.#-#)'*&(-(%"&&

&
23&

 !!"#$%&$'()*$+,$-+!).'*"")$
$
/01234101$53$5671$83419:5;5734$;<0$=0:83>0$?<3>$;4@$74A7B7A9;:$3<$
3<C;471;5734$=756$;4$7450<015D$*60$?3::3=74C$=7::$E0$1045$;$832@$3?$560$
83419:5;5734$A7<085:@&$
$
 -F+)$G 11387;5734$3?$-670?$F3:780$+??780<1$)835:;4AH$
 :8363:$,3891$)835:;4A$$
 ::$)8355716$'38;:$ 9563<75701$
 ::$)8355716$I"F1$
-;2;E7:75@$)835:;4A$
-:0<J$3?$560$K915780$-3>>75500$3?$560$)8355716$F;<:7;>045$
-:0<J$3?$560$'38;:$L3B0<4>045$;4A$/0C040<;5734$-3>>75500$3?$560$
)8355716$F;<:7;>045$
-3419>0<$,3891$)835:;4A$
-+)' $G-34B045734$3?$)8355716$'38;:$ 9563<75701H$
%02;<5>045;:$-3>>75500$'7;7134$+??780<$&
"M9;:75@$;4A$N9>;4$/7C651$-3>>711734$
,0A0<;5734$3?$)>;::$O917401101$
';=$)38705@$3?$)835:;4A$
!N)$N0;:56$)835:;4A$$
)8355716$O00<$;4A$F9E$ 11387;5734$$
)8355716$-045<0$?3<$)387;:$/010;<86$
)8355716$-<7>0$;4A$%<9C$"4?3<80>045$ C048@$
)8355716$L3B0<4>045$ :8363:$(4A915<@$F;<540<1672$
)8355716$L3B0<4>045$'7E<;<@$
)8355716$L<380<1P$,0A0<;5734$
)8355716$N0;:56$ 85734$34$ :8363:$F<3E:0>1$$
)8355716$N9>;4$/7C651$-3>>711734$
)8355716$'780410A$*<;A0$ 11387;5734$
)8355716$/05;7:$-3413<579>$$
)8355716$Q63:01;:0$ 11387;5734$$
)+' /$G)38705@$3?$'38;:$ 9563<75@$';=@0<1$;4A$ A>74715<;53<1$
)835:;4AH$
)F(-0$G)8355716$F;<:7;>045$(4?3<>;5734$-045<0H$:7E<;<@&
*60$R$'0C;:$%023175$3<$S-32@<7C65P$:7E<;<701$$
*60$T$)8355716$F3:780$,3<801$
Q740$U$)27<751$*<;A0$ 11387;5734$$
$
$
$
&
&

Page 81



w w w . s c o t l a n d . g o v . u k

© Crown copyright 2012

You may re-use this information (excluding logos and images) free of charge in any 
format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this 
licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/  
or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to 
obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

ISBN: 978-1-78256-315-0 (web only)

The Scottish Government
St Andrew’s House
Edinburgh
EH1 3DG

Produced for the Scottish Government by APS Group Scotland
DPPAS13753 (12/12)

Published by the Scottish Government, December 2012

Page 82



MacGregor, A, Sharp, C, 
Mabelis, J and Corbett, J 
ScotCen Social Research

An evaluation of the implementation 
of, and compliance with, the 
objectives of the Licensing 
(Scotland) Act 2005 
Second Interim Report Summary

November 2012

Agenda Item 1.6

Page 83



The opinions expressed in this publication are 
those of the author/s and do not necessarily 
reflect those of NHS Health Scotland.

© NHS Health Scotland 2012

www.healthscotland.com

We are happy to consider requests for other  
languages or formats. Please contact 0131 536 5500  
or email nhs.healthscotland-alternativeformats@nhs.net

Page 84



The opinions expressed in this publication are those of the author/s and do not 
necessarily reflect those of NHS Health Scotland.

Page 85



Contents

Acknowledgements...............................................................................................1
Abbreviations and glossary...................................................................................2
1. Introduction ................................................................................................4
2. Key findings from focus groups with licensing board members..................5
2.1 Activities .....................................................................................................5
2.1.1 Licensing board policy statements..........................................................5
2.1.2 Assessing overprovision.........................................................................5
2.1.3 The public right to object.........................................................................7
2.2 Impacts.......................................................................................................8
2.2.1 Meeting the Licensing Act objectives......................................................8
2.2.2 Addressing irresponsible promotions......................................................9
2.2.3 Improving the serving environment.......................................................10
2.3 Facilitating factors and barriers to the role of the boards .........................11
3. Key findings from focus groups and interviews with local licensing forum 
members in five case study areas.......................................................................11
3.1 Within forum working................................................................................12
3.1.1 Membership and working relationships.................................................12
3.1.2 Remit, role and scope of the forum.......................................................13
3.2 Working with licensing boards..................................................................13
3.2.1 Working with licensing boards ..............................................................13
3.2.2 Reviewing board policy statements ......................................................14
3.2.3 Impact on licensing boards’ policies .....................................................14
3.3 Meeting the licensing objectives:  addressing availability.........................15
3.3.1 Achieving the licensing objectives ........................................................15
3.3.2 Overprovision assessments..................................................................16
3.3.3 Addressing irresponsible promotions....................................................16
3.3.4 Improving the serving environment.......................................................17
3.4 Facilitators and barriers to the role of the forums.....................................17
4. Next stages of the evaluation ...................................................................19

Page 86



1

Acknowledgements

The research team would like to thank all of those individuals who participated in 
the group discussions and in-depth interviews in the five case study areas. We 
greatly appreciate the time they gave to this project and their willingness to share 
their views.

For ScotCen Social Research, Irene Miller and Alan Ross conducted the 
focus group facilitation and in-depth interviews. Transcription was carried out by 
Roni Butcher and Karen Stewart. Lesley Birse gave research and administrative 
support.

Page 87



2

Abbreviations and glossary 

Alcohol Drug Partnerships (ADPs): Alcohol Drug Partnerships are multi-
agency groups with responsibility for developing co-ordinated approaches to drug 
and alcohol related work at local level.

Alcohol etc. (Scotland) Act 2010: This Act, which came into full effect in 
October 2011 introduced, in relation to off-sales, a ban on quantity discounts and 
restrictions on the location of alcoholic drinks promotions. The Act also requires 
licensed premises to have an age verification policy setting out the steps to be 
taken to establish the proof of age of anyone who looks like they are aged under 
25 (Challenge 25).  The legislation also requires licensing boards to consult with 
relevant health boards when preparing their licensing policy statements, and to 
inform health boards of applications for new premises licences.

Licensing Board: There is at least one licensing board in each local authority 
area. The main function of the board is to regulate premises that sell alcohol to 
the public.

Local Licensing Forum: Licensing Forums were established in the Licensing 
(Scotland) Act 2005, and each local authority area has at least one forum. The 
role of the forums is to keep under review the operation of the Act by the 
licensing board in their area.

LSO: Licensing Standards Officer. The LSO role was established in the Licensing 
(Scotland) Act 2005, and each local council has at least one LSO in post. The 
role of the LSO includes providing information and guidance with regard to the 
Licensing Act, supervising compliance and providing mediation to help resolve 
disputes.

Licence Holder: The Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 made it a requirement that 
anyone wishing to sell alcohol on his/her premises has to hold a premises 
licence. The Act also introduced a new personal licence.  Each premises licence 
must name the ‘premises manager’. The premises manager will have to hold a 
personal licence. A personal licence permits that person to supervise and 
authorise the sales of alcohol on the premises. 

Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005: This Act, which came into full effect on 1 
September 2009, overhauled existing licensing arrangements and introduced a 
range of significant new measures to protect communities from alcohol-related 
harm.  It established five licensing objectives, including, for the first time, 
‘protecting and improving public health.

Test purchasing: Suitable 16 year old volunteers are recruited by the police to 
attempt to purchase alcohol from licensed premises (with undercover police 

Page 88



3

supervision). Premises which fail the test purchase can be referred to the 
procurator fiscal and licensing board.

Page 89



4

1. Introduction

In 2010, as one of the studies being undertaken as part of the Monitoring and 
Evaluating Scotland’s Alcohol Strategy work programme1, NHS Health Scotland 
commissioned a three year evaluation of the implementation of, and compliance 
with, the objectives of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 20052 (referred to
subsequently as ‘the Licensing Act’).  The first stage involved telephone 
interviews with Licensing Standards Officers (LSOs) and licensing board 
representatives from across Scotland.  A briefing paper summarising the findings 
from the first stage was published in June 20113.

The following presents a summary of some of the key findings emerging from the 
second stage of the evaluation.  This comprised of case studies in five local 
authority areas in Scotland and involved interviews and focus groups with 
members of local licensing forums and focus groups with licensing board 
members, together with an analysis of board policy statements.   The focus 
groups and interviews were conducted over the period June to September 2011.

The case study areas were selected on the basis of the first stage telephone 
interviews and included local authorities where the Licensing Act was perceived 
by those interviewed to have had a positive or very positive or large impact on 
the area, and those where the impact of the Act was perceived to have been 
negligible or quite negative. The selection also included city, small town and rural 
areas.

The aims of this stage of the evaluation were to obtain a more in-depth 
understanding of how the Licensing Act was being interpreted and implemented 
at local level, the perceived barriers and facilitators to implementation and views 
on the impacts of the legislation. 

1 Further information on the Monitoring and Evaluating Alcohol Strategy programme of work can 
be found on the NHS Health Scotland website:  http://www.healthscotland.com/scotlands-
health/evaluation/planning/MESAS.aspx
2 Further information on the aims and objectives of the evaluation can be found on the NHS 
Health Scotland website:  http://www.healthscotland.com/documents/4044.aspx
3 MacGregor, A., Sharp, C., Mabelis, J., and Corbett, J. (2011), An evaluation of the 
implementation of, and compliance with, the objectives of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005:  
First Interim Report Summary, NHS Health Scotland: Edinburgh.   
(http://www.healthscotland.com/documents/5253.aspx)

Page 90



5

2. Key findings from focus groups with licensing board 
members

2.1 Activities

2.1.1 Licensing board policy statements
The Licensing Act requires boards to prepare and publish a statement of 
licensing policy every three years, keeping it under review during this period and 
making revisions where appropriate.  The policy statements should seek to 
promote the five licensing objectives set out in the Act4, and provide ‘guidance 
and clarity’ about the bases on which the boards make their decisions.

In developing their policies the Act requires the boards to consult with the local 
licensing forums, or representatives of specific groups or agencies if these are 
not represented on the local forum. 

At the time of the focus groups the case study boards had recently published 
their 2010 policy statements. Participants described how, in developing these, 
they had held a number of ‘informal’ board meetings as well as consultations and 
meetings before producing a draft statement for comment.  Those invited to 
comment on the drafts included the local licensing forums, licensed trade 
organisations and community councils.  

Board members commented that although their policy statements still felt like a 
‘work in progress’ they were encouraged by the fact that few legal challenges 
had been mounted, suggesting to participants that their policies were accepted 
and working well.

Reflecting this sense of policy statements as an on-going or dynamic piece of 
work, boards indicated areas where they either had, or anticipated making 
changes to their policies. This could be in response to ‘external pressure’ e.g. 
from the local licensing forum to place more emphasis on the public health 
objective, or as a result of on-going activity around overprovision assessments.  

2.1.2 Assessing overprovision
As part of their policy statements, boards have a duty to assess the extent to 
which there may be an overprovision of licensed premises in any locality within 
their area. In undertaking their overprovision assessments, boards can take into 
account not just the number and capacity5 of licensed premises in localities, but 
also licensed premises of a particular description.

4 The five licensing objectives are:  preventing crime and disorder; securing public safety; 
preventing public nuisance; protecting and improving public health; and protecting children from 
harm.
5 The proposed methodology for calculating capacity is set out in the Licensing Act guidance. For 
off-sales this is based on metres of frontage used to display alcohol; for on-sales it is based on 
building regulations and determined by local authority building standards officers. (Scottish 

Page 91



6

Case study board representatives described how, in developing their 
overprovisions assessments they had consulted with the police, local licensing 
forums and public.  Boards had also studied local data on alcohol-related crimes, 
alcohol-related health harms and numbers of outlets. Several boards had 
commissioned researchers to undertake the analysis.  In one of these boards the 
local Alcohol Drug Partnership (ADP) had undertaken an analysis of alcohol-
related health and offence data on behalf of the board and the forum.

However, some case study board respondents suggested that they were still 
struggling to define and measure capacity and overprovision.  One board, for 
example, described the difficulty of balancing capacity (for example, shelf space) 
and the number of premises.

Although the Licensing Act guidance advises boards to take into account the 
style of operation of premises (as outlined in the operating plans submitted with 
licence applications) and ‘particular descriptions’ of premises (recognising that 
different types of premise may have different impacts), one board felt there was a 
need to reintroduce the different licence types6, arguing that the ‘generic licence’ 
made it more difficult to assess overprovision in a locality.

‘Under the old Act, it was very simple.  It was shops.  You had seven 
shops, somebody wanted another one, we would have a moratorium in an 
area for instance, we had that power.  The nearest we’ve got to that is 
overprovision…So, ‘overprovision’, is it shelf space?  Is it shops?..[large 
supermarket] is..How many shops would you say that is?’

The issue, however, was not solely about the sources of data or methodology for 
calculating density or provision, but of interpreting the data, specifically how to 
balance, or even trade-off the different types of ‘harms’, particularly between the 
health impacts of ‘overprovision’ and the economic impacts of reduced provision.  
One board representative, for example, suggested that overprovision was not a 
concern locally because the board and ‘other key agencies’ regarded licence 
applications as business opportunities, particularly in the context of a perceived 
loss of licences resulting from the economic downturn. Another respondent cited 
the difficulty of refusing certain types of licence where there was an ‘economic 
case’ for development.   In one area, respondents in fact described the 
interventions of those they described as ‘health professionals’ as unhelpful, 
particularly if they were seen as favouring a blanket ban on all new licences in 
specific areas.

Government (2007) Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005:  Guidance for Licensing Boards and Local 
Authorities, Scottish Government: Edinburgh 
(http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2007/04/13093458/0)).
6 The Licensing Act introduced a single premises licence to replace the seven fixed categories of 
licence contained in the Licensing (Scotland) Act 1976.

Page 92



7

In other case study board areas, however, health concerns seemed to have been 
given a higher priority.  In one board, for example, the overprovision assessment 
had been driven by a concern with the high number of alcohol-related health 
problems7.

The difficulty of weighing up the different considerations is perhaps also implicit 
in the comment made by one board, which, when describing the problem of 
determining what criteria to use to assess overprovision, cited the example of 
areas which might have a ‘surplus’ of ‘well run’ outlets compared with an area 
with a lower number of outlets but creating more difficulties within the community.

Where boards have identified localities that they have assessed as being 
overprovided in terms of the number and/or types of premises, they can refuse 
new licence applications. Three of the five case study boards indicated that the 
assessments of overprovision had informed their decision-making and had 
refused licence applications on the grounds of overprovision in these localities.   
Consideration would, however, be given to the type of premise applying for a 
licence in these areas, particularly if, as noted above, there was an ‘economic 
case’ and the application was for a hotel or restaurant.

Overprovision was not considered to be an issue in the remaining two case study 
areas which cited the economic downturn as a factor behind the reduction in the 
numbers of licensed premises.  In these areas the perceived issue was one of 
lost capacity rather than ‘overprovision’, particularly when the types of outlet 
which had closed were those that were not felt to be generating alcohol related 
problems such as small hotels, rural shops and heritage sites. The perceived 
shift to off-sales was also felt to have resulted in the loss of the more traditional 
style pubs.

2.1.3 The public right to object
The Licensing Act makes it possible for anyone to object or make 
representations to a licensing board about any application for a premises 
licence8. To support this, case study board members described using websites 
to provide information and guidance to the public on making objections, as well 
as providing advice to community councils on the procedures.  New licence 
applications were also advertised in the press and statutory notices pinned to the 
doors of premises making applications.

Board members did, however, draw attention to some of the difficulties of 
facilitating the public right to object.  First, public awareness was still felt to be 

7 Under the Alcohol etc. (Scotland) Act 2010 boards are required to consult with the relevant 
health board when preparing their policy statements, particularly in relation to their overprovision 
assessments.  Boards must also inform the health board of applications for new premises 
licences.
8 Under the Licensing (Scotland) Act 1976 only certain categories of people could object, such as 
a neighbour, community council or a church.

Page 93



8

limited.  Second, where objections were raised it was felt that these tended to 
made by the same individual or groups of individuals. Third, board members 
were aware of the power imbalances that may discourage members of the public 
from either submitting their objections in writing or repeating their objections at a 
board meeting where they may face opposition from a lawyer representing the 
licence holder.

Community Councils were seen as having a role in redressing the power 
imbalances and raising concerns on behalf of a local community.  It was also 
suggested that LSOs were acting as a channel for local objections.

Perhaps as a result of the lack of awareness case study boards had received few 
objections from the public.  Where objections were received this could, however, 
result in additional conditions being added to a licence.

2.2 Impacts

2.2.1 Meeting the Licensing Act objectives
In each of the case study areas licensing board members participating in the 
focus groups were asked which of the five licensing objectives they felt that they 
had been most and least successful in addressing.  

One board, which argued that it was not possible to separate out the individual 
objectives, felt that it was successfully addressing all of them. The other four 
case study areas felt that they had been most successful in addressing the
‘preventing crime and disorder’ objective. One board also felt that they were 
tackling the ‘protecting children from harm’ objective well locally, while another 
cited success in relation to ‘preventing public nuisance’.  Only one of these four 
boards felt it had been successful in addressing the ‘protecting and improving 
public health’ objective.  

Boards acknowledged that the successful realisation of these objectives could 
only be achieved through joint working with a range of professional groups, 
agencies and individuals. These included, as ‘professional advisors’ to the board, 
LSOs, environmental services, building and trading standards officers, police, fire 
service, and more broadly, the licensed trade and lawyers representing the trade, 
community councils, the public, ADPs and health and social work agencies.

In addition to joint working, board representatives also cited the local knowledge 
and expertise of board members, and the legal expertise of the board clerks, as 
contributing to their success in achieving the Act’s objectives.   

Perceived barriers were both ‘strategic’ and ‘operational’ and often reflected 
competing imperatives or interpretations.

Page 94



9

At a strategic level, respondents referred to the particular difficulties of defining 
and measuring the ‘protecting and improving public health’ objective.  Although 
board respondents included health agencies among the groups helping to 
achieve the Act’s objectives, in some instances, existing links with health were 
felt to be poor or not as productive as they could be.  As noted above, in relation 
to overprovision assessments, for example, the different bodies may bring with 
them competing or different perspectives on the nature of the ‘problem’.

At an ‘operational level’, in one case study area, local sheriffs’ decisions in 
relation to cases relating to individual premises were felt to run counter to what 
the board felt they were trying to achieve.  In particular, the board felt that the
time delays before cases were heard on appeal and the perceived emphasis 
placed by the courts on the licence holder’s behaviour and practice in the
intervening period, rather than the impact on local communities, undermined the 
realisation of the licensing objectives. 

The realisation of the licensing objectives was also felt to be undermined by the 
potential for large supermarket chains to mount a legal challenge if a board 
decided to reject an application for a new outlet in a locality considered 
overprovided.

2.2.2 Addressing irresponsible promotions
The Licensing Act prohibits irresponsible drinks promotions9 as a mandatory 
condition of premises licences. To preclude ‘happy hours’ the Act also makes it a 
requirement that the prices of alcohol have to be fixed for at least 72 hours10.
Some of these irresponsible drinks promotions apply to off-sales, particularly 
promotions aimed at young people, but the main focus is on the on-sales sector 
with a view to discouraging ‘binge’ drinking or the consumption of large quantities 
of alcohol in a short time period. The Alcohol etc. (Scotland) Act 2010 (the 
‘Alcohol Act’) subsequently introduced a ban on quantity discounts in off-sales 
and restricted the location of drinks promotions in off-sale premises.  Data 

9 In both on- and off-sales, a drinks promotion is considered irresponsible if: it relates specifically 
to an alcoholic drink likely to appeal to people aged under 18 years; involves the supply of an 
alcoholic drink free of charge or at a reduced price on the purchase of one or more drinks 
(whether or not alcoholic drinks);  is based on the strength of any alcohol; rewards or encourages, 
or seeks to reward or encourage, drinking alcohol quickly; offers alcohol as a reward or prize, 
unless the alcohol is in a sealed container and consumed off the premises.  In addition, in relation 
to on-sales only, a drinks promotion is irresponsible if it involves the supply free of charge or at a 
reduced price of one or more extra measures of an alcoholic drink on the purchase of one or 
more measures of the drink; involves the supply of unlimited amounts of alcohol for a fixed 
charge (including any charges for entry to the premises);  and encourages, or seeks to 
encourage, a person to buy or consume a larger measure of alcohol than the person had 
otherwise intended to buy or consume.
10 Under the Alcohol etc. (Scotland) Act 2010, this was amended so that for alcohol sold for 
consumption off the premises the 72-hour restriction only applies in relation to the price of the 
particular product in relation to which the price has previously been varied, as opposed to all 
alcoholic products sold.  As this implies, this only relates to off-sales.

Page 95



10

collection for this stage of the evaluation pre-dated the implementation of the 
Alcohol Act which came into effect in October 2011.

The perception among board respondents was that although instances of 
irresponsible promotions still occurred in on-sales this was now less of a problem
with few cases reaching the board.  The continued sale of discounted alcohol in 
off-sales, however, remained a concern for some of the case study boards. 
Although respondents hoped that the Alcohol Act would help to reduce quantity 
discounting by supermarkets this was tempered by the view that this might not be 
sufficient to stop them from selling low priced alcohol.

Factors which boards felt supported compliance with the ban on irresponsible 
promotions included the work of the LSOs who, through their direct contact with 
the licensed trade, were able to stop such promotions at a very early stage.   
Boards were also alerted to possible breaches by the police, ‘general public’, as 
well as by members of the licensed trade.  The possibility of sanctions being 
applied by a board was also perceived to act as a deterrent, and if cases did 
reach a board it was suggested that these could be resolved primarily by issuing 
a warning letter.

For some of those interviewed, however, the way the legislation defined
‘irresponsible promotions’ hampered enforcement of the ban - allowing too much 
scope for variable interpretation and for premises to ‘work their way round them’.  
It was also suggested that the mandatory requirement for alcohol prices to be 
fixed for at least 72-hours had ‘backfired’: it was suggested that some outlets 
were reducing costs for days earlier in the week, before increasing prices over 
the weekend period.

2.2.3 Improving the serving environment
Generally boards felt that the Licensing Act had helped to raise licensed trade 
standards.  

The mandatory training requirement for personal licence holders11 and all staff 
who serve alcohol12 was felt to have increased awareness of the requirements of 
the legislation. Some board respondents did, however, suggest that in some 
sectors such as the heritage industry or tourist shops it should not be necessary 
for personal licence holders to undergo the full training or to have to train their 
staff.

Implementation of, and compliance with, training requirements was supported by 
the role of LSOs in monitoring staff training, through checking training records, 
for example, and through boards being able to issue warning notices or endorse 
or revoke licences in cases of non-compliance.

11 This must be an accredited Personal Licence Holder qualification.
12 Training has to be for a minimum of two hours, covering a set syllabus and provided either by a 
personal licence holder or an approved trainer.

Page 96



11

Continuing poor practice, such as serving alcohol to someone who was 
underage, or who was drunk, was, though, also identified.  Some respondents 
questioned the quality of training provided to staff by some personal licence 
holders, and the support available to staff once trained if, for example, they were 
unable to speak English.

2.3 Facilitating factors and barriers to the role of the boards
Factors felt to support the role of the boards included, at a ‘strategic’ level the 
shift from a reactive role, processing applications, to a more dynamic function, 
enabling boards to develop policies based on local needs.  

‘Operationally’ boards welcomed the extended range of powers13 and sanctions 
available to them, enabling them to suspend or revoke licences with immediate 
effect.

In addition, the role of the LSOs, as well as the police and other statutory 
agencies, in ensuring compliance at licensed premise level was seen as 
supporting the work of the board.  

Despite the extended powers, several case study boards felt that they wanted 
more scope to be able to impose conditions locally to enable them to reduce or 
vary licensing hours.  This could be either to further restrict opening hours by 
stopping off-sales of alcohol after 8.00 pm (rather than as currently at 10.00 pm), 
or to enable some types of premises to be able to sell alcohol before 10.00 am.

Boards felt particularly powerless in addressing the sales of cheap alcohol from 
supermarkets.

The potential for board decisions to be overturned on appeal to the Sheriffs’ court 
was also felt to undermine the role of the Board.

3. Key findings from focus groups and interviews with local 
licensing forum members in five case study areas

Following a proposal contained in the Nicolson report14, the Licensing Act 
requires every council to establish a local licensing forum.  The role of the forum 
is to keep the operation of the licensing system in their area under review. The 
forum does not review or offer advice in relation to individual licence applications
or cases that come before the board.  The board has a duty to ‘have regard’ to
the forum’s views and must offer reasons where it takes decisions against the 
advice of the forum. Forum and board are required to meet at least once a year.  

13 These were extended by the Alcohol Act which enables boards to impose variations in 
premises licence conditions on licences of a particular type, in a particular locality or across their 
area.
14 The Nicholson Committee (2003), Review of Liquor Licensing Law in Scotland, Scottish 
Executive:  Edinburgh (http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2003/08/17590/22947)

Page 97



12

The five ‘constituencies of interest’ the Licensing Act anticipates being 
represented on the forum are: holders of premises and personal licences; the 
chief constable for the police area in which the forum is situated; representatives 
from health, education or social work; young people; and people resident within 
the forum’s area15.  The Act also requires a local LSO to be a member of the 
forum.

The Licensing Act guidance16 underlines the need for the forum to be seen as 
‘independent and expert’ and able to develop an identity separate from the board 
or other interest groups.

In two of the case study areas the forum had been set up prior to the legislation 
coming into effect, in the other areas, the role was in many respects still evolving. 
The following focuses on five issues:  forum membership, internal working 
relationships and role; working with boards;  addressing alcohol availability 
locally;  the perceived impacts of forums;  and barriers and facilitators to the role 
of the forums.

3.1 Forum membership, internal working relationships and role

3.1.1 Membership and working relationships
Members of the case study forums reflected the constituencies of interest 
identified in the legislation, including representatives from the licensed trade, the 
police, community councils, public health and LSOs as well as the ‘local council’. 
Other bodies represented included addiction services, environmental health, the 
legal profession, and business bodies, including representatives of the ‘night time 
economy’. All of the forums had experienced difficulties recruiting young people.  
Two of the forums felt they did not yet have sufficient community representation.

The issue of independence was touched upon indirectly by representatives of 
one forum among whom there were differences of opinion about whether the 
right balance had been struck between the level of licensed trade involvement 
and that of community and health representatives. 

In general, forum respondents felt that members from the different bodies 
represented had developed working relationships and a means for reaching a 
consensus.  A consensus may not, however, always be achievable: one forum, 
for example, alluded to fundamental differences between those representing a 
‘health agenda’ and those representing business interests.  It was suggested that 
this had resulted in some issues effectively becoming ‘off limits’ for discussion.

15 The Alcohol Act introduced a requirement for at least one member of the forum to be 
nominated by the health board for the forum’s area.
16 Scottish Government (2007) op cit 

Page 98



13

3.1.2 Remit, role and scope of the forum
In relation to the remit and role of the forums two related issues emerged. On the 
one hand, in two of the case study forums members felt that the role and remit of 
the forums was unclear.  Some respondents felt that, as a result, the forum 
lacked sufficient focus to be able to provide meaningful support to the boards. 

On the other hand, the focus groups and interviews also suggest that it was not 
necessarily the role of the forum per se that was the issue but the perceived 
scope of the forums’ work. Most members saw their role as being to review the 
licensing board’s policy statement and feedback to the board. For some forum 
representatives this work was comparatively narrowly defined in terms of serving
as an intermediary between the community and the licensing board, providing a 
‘balanced opinion’, highlighting ‘practical problems’, ‘attaching commonsense 
provisions’, or acting as a check and balance on the board and its practices. 

‘I think the forum should be there to attach commonsense provisions to what 
looks like a very sterile Act, and therefore helping the community, helping the 
local business, or indeed to address any complaints the public has.’

Others, however, saw the forums as having a broader role encompassing wider 
public health and social issues. 

‘To keep the licensing system in the area under review.  To identify and adopt 
best practice within the licensed trade, and to keep a watchful eye on 
Scotland’s relationship with alcohol, and to see what initiatives we can work on 
that will help improve those statistics.’

Respondents’ comments suggest that there could be differences in approach 
both between and within forums, with some of those interviewed questioning the 
attempts by colleagues to raise ‘social problems’ in the context of forum 
discussions.

‘It’s a licensing forum so social problems…I would question whether they would 
come into that. And some forums discuss social problems, the task of the forum 
is to oversee the implementation of the Act..’

3.2 Working with licensing boards 

3.2.1 Working with licensing boards
In addition to the mandatory annual meeting, further direct contact between 
boards and forums appears to be comparatively limited.  

The value of more frequent contacts was raised by a number of forum members: 
in two case study areas it was suggested that there should be more than one 
joint meeting with the licensing board per year.  Others felt there should be scope 

Page 99



14

for board members to regularly attend forum meetings17 to ensure that the views
of the forum were raised with boards.  The potential value of forum members 
sitting on boards was also suggested, but it was recognized that this option 
would not be feasible because board members are elected councillors.

Working relationships with boards seemed variable across the case study 
forums.  Members of one forum, set up prior to the implementation of the 
legislation, described a positive working relationship between themselves and the 
board, which had ‘helped achieve the results we have’.  Other forums described 
what they perceived to be a lack of contact with, and support from, the boards.

3.2.2 Reviewing board policy statements
Forums described a process of reviewing board policy and feeding back on any 
emerging issues.  The data the forums drew on in the review process included 
routinely collected police and health statistics on alcohol related incidents and 
alcohol related harms.  One forum in particular had worked with the board and 
local ADP to collect and analyse data to inform the board’s overprovision 
assessments. A number of forums did, however, describe difficulties in gathering 
and interpreting the available data in a way that they could make meaningful to a 
local area. In part this was a resource issue: one forum, for example, referred to
the lack of a designated person to identify, obtain and report on the available 
data.  In part, however, it reflected difficulties in disaggregating routinely collected 
data to forum level.

Although, as suggested above, forums saw themselves as ‘go betweens’ 
between the board and the community, the extent to which the case study forums 
involved the community in their reviews appears variable.  One forum, for 
example, held a development day to obtain information on issues of key concern 
to the licensed trade and the public. Another, however, had fed back the forum 
members’ views, but had not sought to obtain the views of the wider community.

3.2.3 Impact on licensing boards’ policies
Representatives of the case study forums gave examples of areas of licensing 
board policy over which they felt they had had an influence. One forum, for 
example, felt it had had a key role in informing the local overprovision 
assessment.  Others described specific changes that had been introduced in 
response to the advice from the forum in relation to, for example, policies on 
prohibited drinking areas and children’s access to licensed premises after 9.00 
pm for specific events.

Respondents also cited instances where they felt they had had little impact, 
whether this was to introduce more flexibility into licence conditions, in relation to 
Sunday morning drinking, for example, or, conversely, to introduce greater 
controls on alcohol availability to curb excessive drinking associated with big 

17 The Licensing Act guidance does suggest that councils may wish to consider whether a 
member of the board should sit on the forum to provide a direct link to the board.

Page 100



15

events.  One forum representative, expressing concern about the levels of 
alcohol-related violence which they felt was impacting on the local A&E, would 
have liked to have been able to work more closely with the board to look at 
licensing hours, but they felt they ‘had not been successful in being able to 
influence that’.

The working relationships and degree of communication were felt to be influential 
on the extent to which the forums could influence boards’ decisions.   One forum, 
which felt it had been able to inform the board’s overprovision assessment, 
described how the board and forum had worked ‘hand in glove’.  Other forums 
suggested more distant and what were perceived to be less effective working 
relationships.  

3.3 Meeting the licensing objectives:  addressing availability 

3.3.1 Achieving the licensing objectives
From the perspective of forum members most progress locally had been made in 
relation to the ‘preventing crime and disorder’ and ‘preventing public nuisance’ 
objectives.   At a planning level, joint and partnership working between different
agencies and bodies, such as between the forum, community safety forum and 
anti-social behaviour task group were felt to have helped support the 
achievement of these objectives.  At an operational level, forum members cited 
different measures in support of these objectives, such as initiatives to disperse 
people quickly from nightclubs, the introduction of plastic and toughened glass, 
and the implementation of test purchasing to address underage drinking.  

Reflecting the perspectives of their board colleagues, four of the five forums felt 
that least progress had been made locally toward achieving the ‘protecting and 
improving public health’ objective.  This objective was felt to be the least well 
understood and the most difficult to apply and measure.  

In making decisions in relation to individual licence applications boards must 
determine each application on its own merits, even when the application is for a 
premise in an area assessed as overprovided.  In this context, some forum 
members felt that, in comparison with the objectives concerned with crime and 
disorder, public safety and protecting children from harm, the ‘global’ nature of 
the public health objective, often based on population-based evidence, made it 
difficult for boards to establish a ‘causal link’ between individual outlets and the 
impacts on health:

‘You’ve got to show a causal link, that’s almost impossible to show a causal 
link because who are you going to blame?  Is it off-sales that somebody has 
bought their drink at before they’ve went out, is it the pub they’ve went into 
locally, or is it the club in the city centre… that they’ve had their last drink in?  
It’s actually very difficult to get that causal link and that’s where all the NHS and 
the health information..are usually national or certainly regional and I 
think..that’s where we need to go in terms of the public health agenda.’

Page 101



16

One forum, in fact, described what they saw as the ‘discrepancy’ between 
individual licence applications, the practice in individual premises, board reviews
of licenses and the wider public health objective.   Even the forum that felt that it 
was making progress in relation to this objective suggested that its intangibility 
made it much harder to evidence. 

In addition to the difficulties associated with interpreting, meeting and measuring 
the public health objective, it was also suggested that the continued availability of 
cheap alcohol via supermarkets undermined the realization of this objective. 

3.3.2 Overprovision assessments
In one case study area, the overprovision assessment undertaken in partnership 
between the forum, board and ADP, had resulted in a number of localities being 
assessed as overprovided, based on the relatively high number of alcohol-related 
health problems.  This was reflected in the board’s policy statement.

In a second case study area, forum members were in agreement with their board 
that because of the number of premises that had closed or not renewed their 
licences the area was not currently overprovided. Forum members did though 
express reservations about the possible increase in events to which people could 
bring their own alcohol.

In the remaining three case study areas the responses suggest differences of 
perspective within forums, and potentially between individual members of forums
and boards.  In one area, for example, while some forum members felt that the 
density of certain types of premises in some areas had increased public nuisance 
and crime, others were of the view that the economic downturn had reduced the 
number of premises such that overprovision was not an issue.  In this area one 
forum member expressed disappointment that the board had not identified more 
localities as overprovided. In another case study area a health board 
representative on the forum had disagreed with the licensing board’s assessment 
that overprovision was not a problem.

In addition, as noted above a member from one forum referred to the difficulties 
of establishing a ‘causal link’ between an individual premise and the more ‘global’ 
alcohol-related harms.  

In the light of the difficulties of assessing overprovision forum members argued 
for clearer guidelines and support in assessing overprovision.

3.3.3 Addressing irresponsible promotions
Like their board peers, forum representatives felt that, in general, irresponsible 
promotions had become less of a problem in the on-sales sector. This was 
attributed to the powers and restrictions introduced under the Licensing Act, and 
to the role of LSOs in ensuring compliance with the legislation.  

Interviewed prior to the implementation of the Alcohol Act, forum members felt 

Page 102



17

that irresponsible promotions were a continuing problem in relation to the off-
trade in general and supermarkets in particular.

One forum member while suggesting that overprovision was an issue in the area, 
nonetheless expressed some sympathy with what they saw as the economic 
pressures on the licensed trade. The need to make a profit in a competitive 
market was felt to almost force businesses to adopt irresponsible promotions, 
‘not because.they want to do them, they’re there [irresponsible promotions] 
because they have to do them’.

It was conjectured that when implemented the Alcohol Act might go some way 
toward further curbing irresponsible promotions.  One forum also suggested that 
minimum unit pricing, if introduced, would also impact on irresponsible 
promotions. 

3.3.4 Improving the serving environment
For some forum members the on-trade was seen as providing a more ‘controlled 
environment’ for drinking.  A member of one forum, for example, suggested that 
marketing could be used to promote the use of pubs, clubs and restaurants 
because these provided safer drinking environments than obtaining cheap 
alcohol from supermarkets. 

In terms of the more specific impact of staff and personal licence holder training 
on the serving environment, three main issues emerged:

 First, concerns about whether the length and content of the training, 
particularly the two hours training for premises staff, was sufficient to have 
an impact on practice;  

 Second, the difficulties of being able to assess the impact of training;  and,

 Third, because of the lower demand in rural areas concerns about not 
being able to maintain sufficient trainers, particularly to meet the likely 
demand from personal licence holders who will be required to re-do their 
training after five years in 2014.

3.4 Facilitators and barriers to the role of the forums
Internal factors that were felt by forums to impact on their effectiveness as a body 
included the quality of the working relationships between members and the mix 
of backgrounds and experience, and clarity about the role, remit and scope of the 
forum.

Forum members underlined the importance of understanding and respecting the 
various perspectives of the different individual members. They also referred to 
the value of having members who brought a range of expertise and knowledge in 
relation to, for example, the law, the licensed trade, health or local issues.  
Conversely, this very mix could result in tensions and ‘competing voices’ 

Page 103



18

between, for example, those members perceived as prioritizing a concern with 
health-related impacts and those emphasizing the importance of economic 
growth, or who felt that public health considerations were outwith or beyond the 
remit of alcohol licensing bodies.

For some members the lack of clarity about the role and remit of the forum was 
felt to impact on its effectiveness.  It was suggested that guidance or training was 
needed to help clarify the role of the forums and the responsibilities of members.  
One forum, however, felt the issue was less the need for clarity, since this was 
set out in the Licensing Act, but more about how to evidence their effectiveness 
as a body:  at present they felt they had no way of measuring whether they were 
carrying out their functions successfully.

The scope of the forum’s role was raised by a number of participants.  Several 
forum representatives, for example, expressed frustration that there were issues 
which were considered outwith the scope of the forum, such as specific local 
problems or issues ‘we can talk about street crime but not actually talk about 
where the crime was, or how it developed’.  These limitations were built into the 
very way the meetings in one forum were managed:  the introduction of a 
constitution was felt to have limited scope for more open and wide-ranging 
discussion within the forum.

External factors perceived to impact on the forums’ effectiveness included the 
level of support from, relationship with, and communication between the licensing 
board and the forum, and public awareness.

All five case study forums received administrative support from their local 
councils. Some also received legal advice.  Forums did not, however, necessarily 
have their own budgets. One forum felt that a budget would be helpful in 
supporting members to attend workshops and conferences to support them in 
their role.  Another forum had begun to discuss with the board the possibility of a 
separate budget.

While one of the case study forums indicated a positive close working 
relationship with the board, others suggested a more distant relationship with 
their respective boards, one marked by limited contact and communication 
between the two bodies.  One forum for example, felt that the board could do 
more to seek input from, and feedback decisions to, the forum, in order that the 
forum could more effectively inform policy.  Some members also alluded to the 
unequal power relations between forums and boards; for one forum the board
was felt to maintain control by refusing to discuss certain issues or disregarding 
the forum’s views.

In terms of links with their local communities, forums felt that there was very little 
public awareness of the existence or role of the forums. Although the details of 
the forums may be available on council websites it was suggested that finding 
this information could be difficult.  One forum acknowledged that they could 

Page 104



19

perhaps do more to increase awareness in order for the forum to represent 
‘people’ more effectively, but did not have a budget for this.  This forum, as well 
as other case study forums had however engaged in activities to improve their 
public profile:  through contacts with community councils, support for local 
Alcohol Awareness events, a ‘beer map campaign’ distributing the forum’s 
contact details, and putting articles in the press.  

4. Next stages of the evaluation

The third stage of the evaluation comprises follow up telephone interviews with 
LSOs and licensing board representatives.  The findings from this stage will be 
included in the final report of the evaluation.  This is due for publication in June 
2013 and will also include an analysis of the findings from across the three 
stages of the evaluation and present conclusions on the extent to which the 
licensing legislation is being implemented as intended.

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of the Previous Meeting of 15 November 2012 - Ratification of Decisions Required as this Meeting was not Quorate
	1.2 Minute of the Meetings of the Sub Group of the Forum - 13 December 2012 and 31 January 2013
	31 January 2013

	1.4 Workplan/Decision Sheet
	1.5 Further Options for Alcohol Licensing - Consultation Document
	1.6 Evaluation of the Implementation of the Objectives of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 - for information

